ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L P Form 10-Q August 08, 2013

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2013

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from _____ to ____.

Commission file number: 1-14323

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. (Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 76-0568219 (I.R.S. (State or Other Employer Jurisdiction of Identification No.) Incorporation or Organization)

> 1100 Louisiana Street, 10th Floor Houston, Texas 77002 (Address of Principal Executive Offices, including Zip Code) (713) 381-6500 (Registrant's

Telephone Number, including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes þ No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes b No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer b Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes o No þ

There were 915,422,738 common units and 4,520,431 Class B units (which generally vote together with the common units) of Enterprise Products Partners L.P. outstanding at July 31, 2013. Our common units trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "EPD."

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

<u>Item 1.</u>	Financial Statements.	
	Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets	<u>2</u>
	Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations	$\frac{2}{3}$ $\frac{4}{5}$ 6
	Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income	<u>4</u>
	Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows	<u>5</u>
	Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Equity	<u>6</u>
	Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements:	
	1. Partnership Operations, Organization and Basis of Presentation	<u>7</u>
	2. General Accounting Matters	<u>8</u>
	3. Equity-based Awards	<u>10</u>
	4. Derivative Instruments, Hedging Activities and Fair Value Measurements	<u>13</u>
	5. Inventories	<u>21</u>
	6. Property, Plant and Equipment	<u>22</u>
	7. Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates	<u>24</u>
	8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill	<u>26</u>
	9. Debt Obligations	<u>28</u>
	<u>10. Equity and Distributions</u>	<u>30</u>
	<u>11. Business Segments</u>	<u>33</u>
	12. Related Party Transactions	<u>37</u>
	<u>13. Earnings Per Unit</u>	<u>38</u>
	14. Commitments and Contingencies	<u>39</u>
	15. Insurance Matters	<u>40</u>
	16. Supplemental Cash Flow Information	<u>40</u>
	17. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information	<u>41</u>
<u>Item 2.</u>	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition	<u>49</u>
	and Results of Operations.	<u>+2</u>
<u>Item 3.</u>	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.	<u>72</u>
<u>Item 4.</u>	Controls and Procedures.	<u>75</u>
	. OTHER INFORMATION.	
	Legal Proceedings.	<u>76</u>
	<u>. Risk Factors.</u>	<u>76</u>
	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.	<u>76</u>
	Defaults Upon Senior Securities.	<u>76</u>
<u>Item 4.</u>		<u>76</u>
<u>Item 5.</u>		<u>77</u>
<u>Item 6.</u>	Exhibits.	<u>77</u>
Signatur	<u>es</u>	<u>85</u>

<u>Table of Contents</u> PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

Item 1. Financial Statements.

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Dollars in millions)

	June 30,	December 31,
ASSETS	2013	2012
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$45.3	\$16.1
Restricted cash	26.3	4.3
Accounts receivable - trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts		
of \$12.2 at June 30, 2013 and \$13.2 at December 31, 2012	4,651.5	4,350.9
Accounts receivable – related parties	19.8	2.5
Inventories	1,411.4	1,088.4
Prepaid and other current assets	425.7	380.9
Total current assets	6,580.0	5,843.1
Property, plant and equipment, net	25,566.1	24,846.4
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates	1,938.8	1,394.6
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of \$1,098.0 at		
June 30, 2013 and \$1,050.0 at December 31, 2012	1,513.2	1,566.8
Goodwill	2,080.0	2,086.8
Other assets	198.8	196.7
Total assets	\$37,876.9	\$35,934.4
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities:		
Current maturities of debt (see Note 9)	\$540.0	\$1,546.6
Accounts payable – trade	777.4	764.5
Accounts payable – related parties	142.0	127.1
Accrued product payables	4,770.4	4,476.2
Accrued interest	303.6	300.8
Other current liabilities	339.7	540.5
Total current liabilities	6,873.1	7,755.7
Long-term debt (see Note 9)	16,429.6	14,655.2
Deferred tax liabilities	37.2	22.5
Other long-term liabilities	184.2	205.0
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 14)		
Equity: (see Note 10)		
Partners' equity:		
Limited partners:		
Common units (915,434,963 units outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 898,813,337 units outstanding at December 31, 2012) Class B units (4,520,431 units outstanding at June 30, 2013 and	14,400.4	13,439.6
December 31, 2012)	118.5	118.5
Total limited partners' equity	14,518.9	
Accumulated other comprehensive loss) (370.4)
Total partners' equity	14,155.9	13,187.7
····· I.·······························	,	,,

Noncontrolling interests Total equity Total liabilities and equity 196.9 108.3 14,352.8 13,296.0 \$37,876.9 \$35,934.4

See Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P.

UNAUDITED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

(Dollars in millions, except per unit amounts)

	For the The Months Ended June	e 30,	For the Six Ended June		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Revenues:					
Third parties	\$11,142.6			\$20,985.9	
Related parties	6.7	25.6	12.6	56.4	
Total revenues (see Note 11)	11,149.3	9,789.8	22,532.4	21,042.3	
Costs and expenses:					
Operating costs and expenses:					
Third parties	10,143.0	8,788.0	20,349.2	19,106.8	
Related parties	224.2	221.5	438.4	369.9	
Total operating costs and expenses	10,367.2	9,009.5	20,787.6	19,476.7	
General and administrative costs:					
Third parties	17.5	16.7	37.2	40.3	
Related parties	28.0	25.8	57.8	48.5	
Total general and administrative costs	45.5	42.5	95.0	88.8	
Total costs and expenses (see Note 11)	10,412.7	9,052.0	20,882.6	19,565.5	
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates	37.6	11.3	82.1	21.2	
Operating income	774.2	749.1	1,731.9	1,498.0	
Other income (expense):					
Interest expense	(200.2)	(186.6)	(396.1)	(373.1)	
Interest income	0.3	0.1	0.5	0.4	
Other, net (see Note 2)	(0.6)	13.1	(0.9)	71.5	
Total other expense, net	(200.5)	(173.4)	(396.5)	(301.2)	
Income before income taxes	573.7	575.7	1,335.4	1,196.8	
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes (see Note 2)	(20.4)	(8.5)	(26.8)	25.9	
Net income	553.3	567.2	1,308.6	1,222.7	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (see Note 10)	(0.8)	(0.9)	(2.6)	(5.1)	
Net income attributable to limited partners	\$552.5	\$566.3	\$1,306.0	\$1,217.6	
Earnings per unit: (see Note 13)					
Basic earnings per unit	\$0.62	\$0.66	\$1.48	\$1.42	
Diluted earnings per unit	\$0.60	\$0.64	\$1.43	\$1.37	

See Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. UNAUDITED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Dollars in millions)

	For the Months Ended J 2013		For the Si Ended Jun 2013	
Net income	\$553.3	\$567.2	\$1,308.6	\$1,222.7
Other comprehensive income (loss):				
Cash flow hedges:				
Commodity derivative instruments:				
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges	34.1	105.0	(13.5)	45.4
Reclassification of gains and losses to net income	(7.2)	14.2	0.1	36.2
Interest rate derivative instruments:				
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges		(84.0)	6.7	(55.1)
Reclassification of losses to net income	7.8	3.7	13.7	6.4
Total cash flow hedges	34.7	38.9	7.0	32.9
Change in funded status of pension and postretirement plans, net of tax	0.4		0.4	(1.2)
Proportionate share of other comprehensive income of unconsolidated				
affiliate				1.0
Change in fair value of available-for-sale equity securities		(15.8)		
Total other comprehensive income	35.1	23.1	7.4	32.7
Comprehensive income	588.4	590.3	1,316.0	1,255.4
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests	(0.8)	(0.9)	(2.6)	(5.1)
Comprehensive income attributable to limited partners	\$587.6	\$589.4	\$1,313.4	\$1,250.3

See Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table of Contents

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P.

UNAUDITED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS (Dollars in millions)

	For the Six Months Ended June 30,
	2013 2012
Operating activities:	φ1 200 C φ1 200 7
Net income	\$1,308.6 \$1,222.7
Reconciliation of net income to net cash flows provided by operating activities:	500.0 527.7
Depreciation, amortization and accretion	599.8 537.7
Non-cash asset impairment charges	38.1 14.5
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates	(82.1) (21.2)
Distributions received from unconsolidated affiliates	119.3 50.5
Gains attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries (see Note 16)	(58.2) (100.3)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)	14.8 (64.9)
Changes in fair market value of derivative instruments	(1.2) (21.6) (200.2)
Net effect of changes in operating accounts (see Note 16)	(409.2) (280.3)
Other operating activities	1.0 1.2
Net cash flows provided by operating activities	1,530.9 1,338.3
Investing activities:	(1.447.2) (1.012.1)
Capital expenditures	(1,447.3) $(1,813.1)$
Contributions in aid of construction costs	14.9 10.0
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash	(22.0) 38.5
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates	(547.9) (125.5)
Proceeds from asset sales and insurance recoveries (see Note 16)	199.2 1,156.7
Other investing activities	0.5 (16.4)
Cash used in investing activities	(1,802.6) (749.8)
Financing activities:	70645 04146
Borrowings under debt agreements	7,064.5 2,414.6
Repayments of debt	(6,281.6) $(1,891.0)$
Debt issuance costs	(23.7) (7.5)
Monetization of interest rate derivative instruments (see Note 4)	(168.8) (77.6)
Cash distributions paid to limited partners (see Note 10)	(1,171.9) $(1,068.6)$
Cash distributions paid to noncontrolling interests	(4.7) (8.1)
Cash contributions from noncontrolling interests (see Note 10)	95.9 5.9
Net cash proceeds from the issuance of common units	835.4 61.5
Acquisition of treasury units	(35.8) (19.1)
Other financing activities	(8.4) (3.9) (502.8)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities	300.9 (593.8) 20.2 (5.2)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	29.2 (5.3)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1	16.1 19.8 \$45.2 \$14.5
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30	\$45.3 \$14.5

See Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. UNAUDITED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED EQUITY (See Note 10 for Unit History, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Noncontrolling Interests) (Dollars in millions)

	Partners' Eq	luity		
		Accumulated		
		Other		
	Limited	Comprehensive	Noncontrolling	
	Partners	Income (Loss)	Interests	Total
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$13,558.1	\$ (370.4)	\$ 108.3	\$13,296.0
Net income	1,306.0		2.6	1,308.6
Cash distributions paid to limited partners	(1,171.9)			(1,171.9)
Cash distributions paid to noncontrolling interests			(4.7) (4.7)
Cash contributions from noncontrolling interests			95.9	95.9
Net cash proceeds from the issuance of common units	835.4			835.4
Amortization of fair value of equity-based awards	35.6			35.6
Cash flow hedges		7.0		7.0
Other	(44.3)	0.4	(5.2) (49.1)
Balance, June 30, 2013	\$14,518.9	\$ (363.0)	\$ 196.9	\$14,352.8

	Partners' Ec	luity		
		Accumulated		
		Other		
	Limited	Comprehensive	Noncontrolling	
	Partners	Income (Loss)	Interests	Total
Balance, December 31, 2011	\$12,464.8	\$ (351.4) \$ 105.9	\$12,219.3
Net income	1,217.6		5.1	1,222.7
Cash distributions paid to limited partners	(1,068.6)			(1,068.6)
Cash distributions paid to noncontrolling interests			(8.1) (8.1)
Cash contributions from noncontrolling interests			5.9	5.9
Net cash proceeds from the issuance of common units	61.5			61.5
Amortization of fair value of equity-based awards	31.8			31.8
Cash flow hedges		32.9		32.9
Other	(22.1)	(0.2) 1.0	(21.3)
Balance, June 30, 2012	\$12,685.0	\$ (318.7) \$ 109.8	\$12,476.1

See Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 6

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the exception of per unit amounts, or as noted within the context of each disclosure, the dollar amounts presented in the tabular data within these disclosures are stated in millions of dollars.

KEY REFERENCES USED IN THESE NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unless the context requires otherwise, references to "we," "us," "our," "Enterprise" or "Enterprise Products Partners" are intended to mean the business and operations of Enterprise Products Partners L.P. and its consolidated subsidiaries. References to "EPO" mean Enterprise Products Operating LLC, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Enterprise, and its consolidated subsidiaries, through which Enterprise Products Partners L.P. conducts its business. Enterprise is managed by its general partner, Enterprise Products Holdings LLC ("Enterprise GP"), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dan Duncan LLC, a Texas limited liability company.

The membership interests of Dan Duncan LLC are owned of record by a voting trust, the current trustees ("DD LLC Trustees") of which are: (i) Randa Duncan Williams, who is also a director and Chairman of the Board of Enterprise GP; (ii) Dr. Ralph S. Cunningham, who is also a director of Enterprise GP; and (iii) Richard H. Bachmann, who is also a director of Enterprise GP. Each of the DD LLC Trustees also currently serves as one of the three managers of Dan Duncan LLC.

References to "EPCO" mean Enterprise Products Company, a Texas corporation, and its privately held affiliates. A majority of the outstanding voting capital stock of EPCO is owned of record by a voting trust, the current trustees ("EPCO Trustees") of which are: (i) Ms. Williams, who also serves as Chairman of EPCO; (ii) Dr. Cunningham, who also serves as a Vice Chairman of EPCO; and (iii) Mr. Bachmann, who also serves as the President and Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") of EPCO. Each of the EPCO Trustees is also a director of EPCO.

References to "TEPPCO" mean TEPPCO Partners, L.P. prior to its merger with one of our wholly owned subsidiaries in October 2009 (the "TEPPCO Merger").

Note 1. Partnership Operations, Organization and Basis of Presentation

General

We are a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership, the common units of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the ticker symbol "EPD." We were formed in April 1998 to own and operate certain natural gas liquids ("NGLs") related businesses of EPCO and are now a leading North American provider of midstream energy services to producers and consumers of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil, refined products and petrochemicals.

Our integrated midstream energy asset network links producers of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil from some of the largest supply basins in the United States ("U.S."), Canada and Gulf of Mexico with domestic consumers and international markets. Our midstream energy operations include: natural gas gathering, treating, processing, transportation and storage; NGL transportation, fractionation, storage, and import and export terminals; crude oil gathering, transportation, storage and terminals; offshore production platforms; petrochemical and refined products transportation and services; and a marine transportation business that operates primarily on the U.S. inland and Intracoastal Waterway systems and in the Gulf of Mexico. Our assets include approximately 50,000 miles of onshore

and offshore pipelines; 200 million barrels ("MMBbls") of storage capacity for NGLs, petrochemicals, refined products and crude oil; and 14 billion cubic feet ("Bcf") of natural gas storage capacity. In addition, our asset portfolio includes 24 natural gas processing plants, 21 NGL and propylene fractionators, six offshore hub platforms located in the Gulf of Mexico, a butane isomerization complex, NGL import and export terminals, and octane enhancement and high-purity isobutylene production facilities.

We have five reportable business segments: (i) NGL Pipelines & Services; (ii) Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services; (iii) Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services; (iv) Offshore Pipelines & Services; and (v) Petrochemical & Refined Products Services. All activities included in our former sixth reportable business segment, 7

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Investments, ceased on January 18, 2012, which was the date we discontinued using the equity method to account for our previously held investment in Energy Transfer Equity L.P. (together with its subsidiaries, "Energy Transfer Equity") (see "Liquidation of Investment in Energy Transfer Equity" under Note 7).

We are 100% owned by our limited partners from an economic perspective. We are managed and controlled by Enterprise GP, which has a non-economic general partner interest in us. We, Enterprise GP, EPCO and Dan Duncan LLC are affiliates under the collective common control of the DD LLC Trustees and the EPCO Trustees. We have no employees. All of our operating functions and general and administrative support services are provided by employees of EPCO pursuant to an administrative services agreement (the "ASA") or by other service providers. See Note 12 for information regarding the ASA and other related party matters.

Note 2. General Accounting Matters

Our results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of results expected for the full year of 2013. In our opinion, the accompanying Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include all adjustments consisting of normal recurring accruals necessary for fair presentation. Although we believe the disclosures in these financial statements are adequate and make the information presented not misleading, certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

These Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (the "2012 Form 10-K") filed with the SEC on March 1, 2013.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our allowance for doubtful accounts is determined based on specific identification and estimates of future uncollectible accounts. The following table presents our allowance for doubtful accounts activity for the periods indicated:

	For the Six		
	Months		
	Ended.	June	
	30,		
	2013	2012	
Balance at beginning of period	\$13.2	\$13.4	
Charged to costs and expenses	0.4		
Deductions	(1.4)	(0.4)	
Balance at end of period	\$12.2	\$13.0	

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date our consolidated financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to us but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. Management has regular quarterly litigation reviews, including updates from legal counsel, to assess the need for accounting recognition or

disclosure of these contingencies, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise in judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against us or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, our management and legal counsel evaluate the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein.

We accrue an undiscounted liability for those contingencies where the incurrence of a loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If a range of amounts can be reasonably estimated and no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other amount, then the minimum of the range is accrued. We do not record a contingent liability when the likelihood of loss is probable but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or when it is believed to be only reasonably possible or remote.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For contingencies where an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible and the impact would be material, we disclose the nature of the contingency and, if feasible, an estimate of the possible loss or range of loss.

Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve guarantees, in which case the guarantees would be disclosed. See Note 14 for additional information regarding our contingencies.

Derivative Instruments

We use derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, options, forward contracts and other arrangements to manage price risks associated with inventories, firm commitments, interest rates, foreign currencies and certain anticipated future commodity transactions. To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedged item must expose us to risk and the related derivative instrument must reduce the exposure to that risk and meet specific hedge documentation requirements related to designation dates, expectations for hedge effectiveness and the probability that hedged future transactions will occur as forecasted. We formally designate derivative instruments as hedges and document and assess their effectiveness at inception of the hedge and on a monthly basis thereafter. Forecasted transactions are evaluated for the probability of occurrence and are periodically back-tested once the forecasted period has passed to determine whether similarly forecasted transactions are probable of occurring in the future.

For certain physical forward commodity derivative contracts, we apply the normal purchase/normal sale exception, whereby changes in the mark-to-market values of such contracts are not recognized in income. As a result, the revenues and expenses associated with such physical contract transactions are recognized during the period when volumes are physically delivered or received. Physical forward commodity contracts subject to this exception are evaluated for the probability of future delivery and are periodically back-tested once the forecasted period has passed to determine whether similar forward contracts are probable of physical delivery in the future.

See Note 4 for additional information regarding our derivative instruments.

Estimates

Preparing our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates that affect amounts presented in the financial statements. Our most significant estimates relate to (i) the useful lives and depreciation/amortization methods used for fixed and identifiable intangible assets; (ii) measurement of fair value and projections used in impairment testing of fixed and intangible assets (including goodwill); (iii) contingencies; and (iv) revenue and expense accruals.

Actual results could differ materially from our estimates. On an ongoing basis, we review our estimates based on currently available information. Any changes in the facts and circumstances underlying our estimates may require us to update such estimates, which could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$11.9 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to Texas Margin Tax accruals. In June 2013, the State of Texas enacted certain changes to the Texas Margin Tax which lowered the tax rate and expanded the scope of depreciation deductions. As a result of these changes, current income tax expense decreased \$7.2 million and our deferred income tax expense (related to book/tax depreciation timing differences) increased \$20.3 million, for a net \$13.1 million expense in the second quarter of 2013.

We recognized a net income tax expense of \$26.8 million for the first six months of 2013 compared to a net income tax benefit of \$25.9 million for the same period in 2012. The \$52.7 million period-to-period change is primarily due to (i) a \$46.5 million benefit recorded in the first quarter of 2012 related to the conversion of certain of our subsidiaries to limited liability companies and (ii) the \$13.1 million of expense recorded in June 2013 related to the Texas Margin Tax (as discussed above).

The \$46.5 million net income tax benefit recorded in 2012 is attributable to the difference between deferred income taxes accrued by the applicable subsidiaries through the date of conversion and any current income tax due 9

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in connection with the conversions. After taking into account certain tax loss carryforward amounts, we paid \$22.0 million in federal income taxes in connection with the conversions.

Other Non-Operating Income (Expense)

The following table presents the components of "Other, net" as presented on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations for the periods indicated:

	For the Three Months Ended June 30,					the Six	x Months e 30,	8				
	201	3		201	2		201	3		201	12	
Gain on sales of available-for-sale securities of Energy Transfer Equity (1) Distribution income from Energy Transfer	\$			\$	15.5		\$			\$	68.8	
Equity											4.1	
Other		(0.6)		(2.4)		(0.9)		(1.4)
Total	\$	(0.6)	\$	13.1		\$	(0.9)	\$	71.5	

(1) See Note 7 for information regarding the liquidation of our investment in limited partnership units of Energy Transfer Equity.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents amounts held in bank accounts as margin in support of our commodity derivative instruments portfolio and related physical natural gas, crude oil, refined products and NGL purchases. Additional cash may be restricted to maintain this portfolio as commodity prices fluctuate or deposit requirements change. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, our restricted cash amounts were \$26.3 million and \$4.3 million, respectively. See Note 4 for information regarding our derivative instruments and hedging activities.

Note 3. Equity-based Awards

An allocated portion of the fair value of EPCO's equity-based awards is charged to us under the ASA. The following table summarizes the compensation expense we recognized in connection with equity-based awards for the periods indicated:

	For the Three		For the Six		
	Months		Months		
	Ended June		Ended	June	
	30,		30,		
	2013 2012		2013	2012	
Restricted common unit awards	\$18.3	\$15.7	\$34.9	\$30.5	
Unit option awards	0.2	0.3	0.6	1.0	
Other (1)	0.1	0.5	0.3	1.4	

\$18.6 \$16.5 \$35.8 \$32.9

(1) Primarily represents expense associated with unit appreciation rights ("UARs"), phantom units and similar awards.

Total

The fair value of equity-classified awards (e.g., restricted common unit and unit option awards) is amortized to earnings over the requisite service or vesting period. Compensation expense for liability-classified awards (e.g., UARs and phantom units) is recognized over the requisite service or vesting period based on the fair value of the award remeasured at each reporting date. Liability-classified awards are settled in cash upon vesting.

At June 30, 2013, EPCO's significant long-term incentive plans applicable to us were the Enterprise Products 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan ("1998 Plan") and the Amended and Restated 2008 Enterprise Products Long-Term Incentive Plan ("2008 Plan"). After giving effect to awards granted under the 1998 Plan and 2008 Plan through June 30, 2013, a total of 1,155,077 and 4,307,512 additional common units could be issued under these plans, respectively. 10

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Restricted Common Unit Awards

Restricted common unit awards allow recipients to acquire our common units (at no cost to the recipient apart from service or other conditions) once a defined vesting period expires, subject to customary forfeiture provisions. As used in the context of EPCO's long-term incentive plans, the term "restricted common unit" represents a time-vested unit. Restricted common unit awards generally vest at a rate of 25% per year beginning one year after the grant date. Such awards are non-vested until the required service period expires. Restricted common units are included in the number of common units presented on our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The fair value of a restricted common unit award is based on the market price per unit of the underlying security on the date of grant. Compensation expense is recognized based on the grant date fair value, net of an allowance for estimated forfeitures, over the requisite service or vesting period.

The following table presents information regarding restricted common unit awards for the period indicated:

		Weighted-
		Average
		Grant
		Date Fair
		Value
	Number of	per Unit
	Units	(1)
Restricted common units at December 31, 2012	3,893,486	\$ 40.87
Granted (2,3)	1,748,476	\$ 57.15
Vested (3)	(1,830,010)	\$ 34.71
Forfeited	(120,882)	\$ 45.98
Restricted common units at June 30, 2013	3,691,070	\$ 51.46

 Determined by dividing the aggregate grant date fair value of awards (before an allowance for forfeitures) by the number of awards issued.
 The aggregate grant date fair value of restricted common unit awards issued during 2013 was \$99.9 million based on a grant date market price of our common units ranging from \$57.11 to \$59.74 per unit. An estimated annual forfeiture rate of 3.9% was applied to these awards.
 Includes awards granted to the independent directors of the board of directors of Enterprise GP as part of their annual compensation for 2013. A total of 9,296 restricted common unit awards were issued to the independent directors of Enterprise GP, which immediately vested upon issuance.

Typically, each recipient is also entitled to nonforfeitable cash distributions equal to the product of the number of restricted common units outstanding for the participant and the cash distribution per unit paid to limited partners. Since these restricted common units are participating securities, such distributions are included in "Cash distributions paid to limited partners" as presented on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows.

The following table presents supplemental information regarding restricted common unit awards for the periods indicated:

	For the	Three	For the	Six
	Month	s	Months	
	Ended	June	Ended J	une
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Cash distributions paid to restricted common unitholders	\$3.0	\$3.0	\$5.6	\$5.4
Total intrinsic value of restricted common unit awards that vested during period	54.0	30.1	106.4	62.7

For the EPCO group of companies, the unrecognized compensation cost associated with restricted common unit awards was an aggregate \$109.4 million at June 30, 2013, of which our allocated share of the cost is currently estimated to be \$100.3 million. We expect to recognize our share of the unrecognized compensation cost for these awards over a weighted-average period of 2.1 years.

11

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unit Option Awards

EPCO's long-term incentive plans provide for the issuance of non-qualified incentive options. These unit option awards are denominated in our common units. When issued, the exercise price of each unit option award may be no less than the market price of our common units on the date of grant. In general, unit option awards have a vesting period of four years from the date of grant and expire at the end of the calendar year following the year of vesting (e.g., an option vesting on May 29, 2012 will expire on December 31, 2013). However, unit option awards only become exercisable at certain times during the calendar year following the year in which they vest (typically the months of February, May, August and November).

The fair value of each unit option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Compensation expense recorded in connection with unit option awards is based on the grant date fair value, net of an allowance for estimated forfeitures, over the requisite service or vesting period. The following table presents unit option award activity for the period indicated:

			Weighted-	
			Average	
		Weighted-	Remaining	
		Average	Contractual	Aggregate
	Number of	Strike Price	Term	Intrinsic
	Units	(dollars/unit)	(in years)	Value (1)
Unit option awards at December 31, 2012	2,761,140	\$ 27.41	2.0	\$ 13.0
Exercised	(736,140)	\$ 29.95		
Unit option awards at June 30, 2013	2,025,000	\$ 26.49	1.8	\$ 51.4
Options exercisable at June 30, 2013		\$		\$

(1) Aggregate intrinsic value reflects fully vested unit option awards at the date indicated.

In order to fund its unit option award-related obligations, EPCO may purchase common units at fair value either in the open market or directly from us. When employees exercise unit option awards, we reimburse EPCO for the cash difference between the strike price paid by the employee and the actual purchase price paid by EPCO for the units issued to the employee.

The following table presents supplemental information regarding unit option awards during the periods indicated:

	For the	
	Three	For the Six
	Months	Months
	Ended June	Ended June
	30,	30,
	2013 2012	2013 2012
Total intrinsic value of unit option awards exercised during period	\$3.4 \$	\$19.8 \$14.0
Cash received from EPCO in connection with the exercise of unit option awards	2.0	11.5 10.2
Unit option award-related cash reimbursements to EPCO	3.4	19.8 14.0

For the EPCO group of companies, the unrecognized compensation cost associated with unit option awards was an aggregate \$0.3 million at June 30, 2013, of which our allocated share of the cost is currently estimated to be \$0.3

million. We expect to recognize our share of the unrecognized compensation cost for these awards over a weighted-average period of 0.6 years.

12

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. Derivative Instruments, Hedging Activities and Fair Value Measurements

In the normal course of our business operations, we are exposed to certain risks, including changes in interest rates and commodity prices. In order to manage risks associated with assets, liabilities and certain anticipated future transactions, we use derivative instruments such as futures, forward contracts, swaps, options and other instruments with similar characteristics. Substantially all of our derivatives are used for non-trading activities.

We are required to recognize derivative instruments at fair value as either assets or liabilities on our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets unless such instruments meet certain normal purchase/normal sale criteria. While all derivatives are required to be reported at fair value on the balance sheet, changes in fair value of derivative instruments are reported in different ways, depending on the nature and effectiveness of the hedging activities to which they relate. After meeting specified conditions, a qualified derivative may be designated as a total or partial hedge of:

Changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability, or an unrecognized firm commitment – In a fair value \$ hedge, gains and losses for both the derivative instrument and the hedged item are recognized in income during the period of change.

[§] Variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction – In a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the hedge is reported in other comprehensive income (loss) and is reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings.

An effective hedge relationship is one in which the change in fair value of a derivative instrument can be expected to offset 80% to 125% of the changes in fair value of a hedged item at inception and throughout the life of the hedging relationship. The effective portion of a hedge relationship is the amount by which the derivative instrument exactly offsets the change in fair value of the hedged item during the reporting period. Conversely, ineffectiveness represents the change in the fair value of the derivative instrument that does not exactly offset the change in the fair value of the hedge with a hedge relationship is recognized in earnings immediately. Ineffectiveness can be caused by, among other things, changes in the timing of forecasted transactions or a mismatch of terms between the derivative instrument and the hedged item.

A contract designated as a cash flow hedge of an anticipated transaction that is not probable of occurring is immediately recognized in earnings.

Certain of our derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment; therefore, they are accounted for using mark-to-market accounting.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

We may utilize interest rate swaps, forward starting swaps and similar derivative instruments to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates charged on borrowings under certain consolidated debt agreements. This strategy is a component in controlling our overall cost of capital associated with such borrowings. Interest rate swaps exchange the stated interest rate paid on a notional amount of existing debt for the fixed or floating interest rate stipulated in the derivative instrument. Forward starting swaps perform a similar function except that they are associated with interest rates underlying anticipated future issuances of debt.

The following table summarizes our portfolio of interest rate swaps at June 30, 2013:

	Number and Type				
	of Derivatives	Notional	Period of	Rate	Accounting
Hedged Transaction	Outstanding	Amount	Hedge	Swap	Treatment
Senior Notes AA	10 fixed-to-floating swaps	\$750.0	1/2011 to 2/2016	3.2% to 1.3%	Fair value hedge
Undesignated swaps	s 6 floating-to-fixed swaps	\$ 600.0	5/2010 to 7/2014	0.3% to 2.0%	Mark-to-market

In February 2012, we settled 11 fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps having an aggregate notional amount of \$800.0 million, resulting in gains totaling \$37.7 million. These gains are being amortized to earnings (as a decrease in interest expense) using the effective interest method over the forecasted hedged period of three years. 13

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At December 31, 2012, our portfolio of forward starting interest rate swaps consisted of 16 derivative instruments having an aggregate notional amount of \$1.0 billion. Forward starting swaps hedge the expected underlying benchmark interest rates related to future issuances of debt. We accounted for these derivative instruments as cash flow hedges. In connection with the issuance of Senior Notes II and HH in March 2013 (see Note 9), we settled all 16 forward starting swaps that were outstanding at December 31, 2012, which resulted in cash payments totaling \$168.8 million. These losses are a component of accumulated other comprehensive income and are being amortized to earnings (as an increase in interest expense) over the forecasted hedge period of ten years using the effective interest method.

In connection with the issuance of Senior Notes EE in February 2012, we settled ten forward starting swaps having an aggregate notional amount of \$500.0 million, resulting in cash payments totaling \$115.3 million. These losses are a component of accumulated other comprehensive income and are being amortized to earnings (as an increase in interest expense) over the forecasted hedge period of ten years using the effective interest method.

Commodity Hedging Activities

The prices of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil, refined products and certain petrochemical products are subject to fluctuations in response to changes in supply and demand, market conditions and a variety of additional factors that are beyond our control. In order to manage such price risks, we enter into commodity derivative instruments such as physical forward contracts, futures contracts, fixed-for-float swaps, basis swaps and option contracts. The following table summarizes our portfolio of commodity derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2013 (volume measures as noted):

	Volume	(1)	Accounting
Derivative Purpose	Current (2)Long-Term (2	2)Treatment
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:			
Octane enhancement:			
Forecasted purchases of NGLs (MMBbls)	1.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of octane enhancement products (MMBbls)	2.2	0.1	Cash flow hedge
Natural gas marketing:			
Forecasted sales of natural gas (Bcf)	2.3	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Natural gas storage inventory management activities (Bcf)	10.0	n/a	Fair value hedge
NGL marketing:			
Forecasted purchases of NGLs and related hydrocarbon products	3.3	n/a	Cash flow hadra
(MMBbls)	5.5	11/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of NGLs and related hydrocarbon products (MMBbls)	7.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Refined products marketing:			
Forecasted purchases of refined products (MMBbls)	0.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of refined products (MMBbls)	0.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Crude oil marketing:			
Forecasted purchases of crude oil (MMBbls)	2.6	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of crude oil (MMBbls)	3.0	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:			
Natural gas risk management activities (Bcf) (3,4)	145.7	24.0	Mark-to-market
Refined products risk management activities (MMBbls) (4)	0.5	n/a	Mark-to-market
Crude oil risk management activities (MMBbls) (4)	8.5	n/a	Mark-to-market

(1) Volume for derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflects the total amount of volumes hedged whereas volume for derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflects the absolute value of derivative notional volumes.

(2) The maximum term for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, derivatives designated as fair value hedges and derivatives not designated as hedging instruments is January 2015, February 2014 and March 2016, respectively.
(3) Current and long-term volumes include 63.9 Bcf and 1.2 Bcf, respectively, of physical derivative instruments that are predominantly priced at a marked-based index plus a premium or minus a discount related to location differences.
(4) Reflects the use of derivative instruments to manage risks associated with transportation, processing and storage assets.

14

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At June 30, 2013, our predominant commodity hedging strategies consisted of (i) hedging anticipated future contracted sales of NGLs, crude oil, and related products associated with volumes held in inventory and (ii) hedging the fair value of natural gas and refined products in inventory. The following information summarizes these hedging strategies:

The objective of our NGL, crude oil, and related products sales hedging program is to hedge the margins of § anticipated future sales of inventory by locking in sales prices through the use of forward physical sales contracts and commodity derivative instruments.

The objective of our natural gas and refined products inventory hedging program is to hedge the fair value of natural §gas and refined products currently held in inventory by locking in the sales price of the inventory through the use of commodity derivative instruments.

At June 30, 2013, we did not have any hedges in place with respect to gross margins associated with our future natural gas processing activities. Management continues to evaluate market conditions to determine the appropriate timing to implement this strategy, if at all, during 2013.

Certain basis swaps, basis spread options and other derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments are used to manage market risks associated with anticipated purchases and sales of natural gas and crude oil. There is some uncertainty involved in the timing of these transactions often due to the development of more favorable profit opportunities or when spreads are insufficient to cover variable costs thus reducing the likelihood that the transactions will occur during the periods originally forecasted. In accordance with derivatives guidance, these instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting even though they are effective at managing the risk exposures of the underlying assets. The earnings volatility caused by fluctuations in non-cash, mark-to-market earnings cannot be predicted.

Tabular Presentation of Fair Value Amounts, Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments and Related Hedged Items

The following table provides a balance sheet overview of our derivative assets and liabilities at the dates indicated:

	Asset Derivatives			Liability Derivatives				
			December	December 31,				
	June 30, 20	13	2012 J		June 30, 2013		December 31, 2012	
	Balance		Balance E		Balance		Balance	
	Sheet	Fair	Sheet	Fair	Sheet	Fair	Sheet	Fair
	Location	Value	Location	Value	Location	Value	Location	Value
Derivatives designated as hedging	instruments							
	Other		Other		Other		Other	
	current		current		current		current	
Interest rate derivatives	assets	\$19.8	assets	\$19.6	liabilities	\$	liabilities	\$175.4
	Other		Other		Other		Other	
Interest rate derivatives	assets	15.7	assets	25.6	liabilities		liabilities	
Total interest rate derivatives		35.5		45.2				175.4
	Other		Other		Other		Other	
	current		current		current		current	
Commodity derivatives	assets	42.6	assets	45.3	liabilities	41.6	liabilities	35.4
Commodity derivatives								0.5

	Other assets		Other assets		Other liabilities		Other liabilities	
Total commodity derivatives Total derivatives designated as		42.6		45.3		41.6		35.9
hedging instruments		\$78.1		\$90.5		\$41.6		\$211.3
Derivatives not designated as hedg	<u>ing instrume</u>	ents						
	Other current		Other current		Other current		Other current	
Interest rate derivatives	assets Other	\$	assets Other	\$	Liabilities Other	\$12.1	liabilities Other	\$12.2
Interest rate derivatives	assets		assets		liabilities	0.3	liabilities	5.0
Total interest rate derivatives						12.4		17.2
	Other current		Other current		Other current		Other current	
Commodity derivatives	assets Other	18.0	assets Other	15.7	liabilities Other	3.9	liabilities Other	8.9
Commodity derivatives	assets	0.2	assets	0.6	liabilities	1.4	liabilities	0.7
Total commodity derivatives Total derivatives not designated as		18.2		16.3		5.3		9.6
hedging instruments		\$18.2		\$16.3		\$17.7		\$26.8
15								

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain of our commodity derivative instruments are subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements. The following tables present our derivative instruments subject to such arrangements at the dates indicated:

	Offsett						
				Gross Amounts Not	t Offset	Amounts	
				in the Balance Shee	t	That	
		Gross	Amounts			Would	
	Gross	Amounts	of Assets			Have	
	Amour	ntoffset in	Presented			Been	
	of	the	in the	Cash	Cash	Presented	
	Recogi	n Bedance	Balance	FinanciaCollateral	Collateral	On Net	
	Assets	Sheet	Sheet	InstrumeRtsceived Paid		Basis	
			(iii) = (i) -			(v) = (iii) -	
	(i)	(ii)	(ii)	(iv)		(iv)	
As of June 30, 2013:							
Commodity derivatives	\$60.8	\$	\$ 60.8	\$(43.2) \$	\$ (14.3)	\$ 3.3	
As of December 31, 2012:							
Commodity derivatives	\$61.6	\$	\$ 61.6	\$(38.7) \$ (15.2)\$	\$ 7.7	

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities and Derivative Liabilities

its
ed
ii) –
t

Derivative assets and liabilities recorded in our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets are presented on a gross-basis and determined at the individual transaction level. This presentation method is applied regardless of whether the respective exchange clearing agreements, counterparty contracts or master netting agreements contain netting language often referred to as "rights of offset." Although derivative amounts are presented on a gross-basis, having rights of offset enable the settlement of a net as opposed to gross receivable or payable amount under a counterparty default or liquidation scenario.

Cash is paid and received as collateral under certain agreements, particularly for those associated with exchange transactions. For any cash collateral payments or receipts, corresponding assets or liabilities are recorded to reflect the variation margin deposits or receipts with exchange clearing brokers and customers. These balances are also presented on a gross-basis in our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The tabular presentation above provides a means for comparing the gross amount of derivative assets and liabilities, excluding associated accounts payable and receivable, to the net amount that would likely be receivable or payable under a default scenario based on the existence of rights of offset in the respective derivative agreements. Any cash collateral paid or received is reflected in this table, but only to the extent that it represents variation margins. Any amounts associated with derivative prepayments or initial margins that are not influenced by the derivative asset or liability amounts or those that are determined solely on their volumetric notional amounts are excluded from this table.

16

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables present the effect of our derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations for the periods indicated:

Derivatives in Fair Value			Gain (Loss) Recognized in			
Hedging Relationships	Location	Income on Derivative				
		For the	Three	For the Six		
		Months		Months		
		Ended J	lune			
		30,		Ended June 30,		
		2013	2012	2013	2012	
Interest rate derivatives	Interest expense	\$(6.6)	\$4.6	\$(10.1)	\$3.1	
Commodity derivatives	Revenue	6.9	(16.4)	6.2	(15.7)	
Total		\$0.3	\$(11.8)	\$(3.9)	\$(3.9) \$(12.6)	
Derivatives in Fair Value		Gain (L	loss) Re	cognized	l in	
	Location			cognized ged Item		
		Income	on Hed	-	l	
		Income	on Hed Three	ged Item	l	
		Income For the	on Hed Three	ged Item For the S	ı Six	
		Income For the Months	on Hed Three June	ged Item For the S Months	ı Six	
		Income For the Months Ended J 30,	on Hed Three June	ged Item For the S Months Ended Ju	ı Six	
	Location	Income For the Months Ended J 30, 2013	on Hed Three June 2012	ged Item For the S Months Ended Ju 30, 2013	ı Six une	
Hedging Relationships	Location Interest expense	Income For the Months Ended J 30, 2013 \$6.5 (4.9)	on Hed Three June 2012 \$(4.5) 15.9	ged Item For the S Months Ended Ju 30, 2013	une 2012 \$(3.4) 16.3	

With respect to our derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges, amounts attributable to ineffectiveness and those excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness were not material to our consolidated financial statements during the periods indicated.

The following tables present the effect of our derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations and Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income for the periods indicated:

	Change in Value Recognized in			
	Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) on Derivative (Effective			
Derivatives in Cash Flow				
Hedging Relationships	Portion)			
	For the Three For t		For the Six	
	Month	s	Months	
	Ended	June		
	30,		Ended June 30,	
	2013	2012	2013 2012	
Interest rate derivatives	\$	\$(84.0)	\$6.7 \$(55.1)	
Commodity derivatives – Revenue	34.1	99.8	(13.5) 60.2	
Commodity derivatives - Operating costs and expenses		5.2	(14.8)	
Total	\$34.1	\$21.0	\$(6.8) \$(9.7)	

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships	Location	Accumulat (Loss)	(Effective P ree	omprehensive	Months
Interest rate derivatives Commodity derivatives	Interest expense Revenue Operating	\$ (7.8) 7.2	\$ (3.7) (2.6)	\$ (13.7)	
Commodity derivatives Total	costs and expenses	 \$ (0.6)	(11.6) \$ (17.9)		(23.6) \$ (42.6)
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships	Location		ive (Ineffect ree e 30,	ed in Income ive Portion) For the Six Months Ended June 3 2013 20	0, 012
Commodity derivatives	Revenue Operating costs and	\$ (0.1)	\$ 0.9	\$ (0.1) \$	0.9
Commodity derivatives Total	expenses	 \$ (0.1)	 \$ 0.9	 \$ (0.1) \$	0.3 1.2
17					

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Over the next twelve months, we expect to reclassify \$31.3 million of losses attributable to interest rate derivative instruments from accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings as an increase in interest expense. Likewise, we expect to reclassify \$3.2 million of losses attributable to commodity derivative instruments from accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings as a decrease in revenue.

The following table presents the effect of our derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations for the periods indicated:

Derivatives Not Designated		Gain (Loss) Recognized in					
as Hedging Instruments	Location	Income on Derivative					
		For the Three For the		e Six			
		Months	8	Month	S		
		Ended	June	Ended	June		
		30,		30,			
		2013	2012	2013	2012		
Interest rate derivatives	Interest expense	\$(0.2)	\$(1.1)	\$(0.1)	\$(3.3)		
Commodity derivatives	Revenue	14.2	9.3	8.9	30.1		
Commodity derivatives	Operating costs and expenses				(2.8)		
Total		\$14.0	\$8.2	\$8.8	\$24.0		

Fair Value Measurements

Our fair value estimates are based on either (i) actual market data or (ii) assumptions that other market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability, including estimates of risk, in the principal market of the asset or liability at a specified measurement date. Recognized valuation techniques employ inputs such as contractual prices, quoted market prices or rates, operating costs, discount factors and business growth rates. These inputs may be either readily observable, corroborated by market data or generally unobservable. In developing our estimates of fair value, we endeavor to utilize the best information available and apply market-based data to the highest extent possible. Accordingly, we utilize valuation techniques (such as the market approach) that maximize the use of observable inputs.

A three-tier hierarchy has been established that classifies fair value amounts recognized in the financial statements based on the observability of inputs used to estimate such fair values. The hierarchy considers fair value amounts based on observable inputs (Levels 1 and 2) to be more reliable and predictable than those based primarily on unobservable inputs (Level 3). At each balance sheet reporting date, we categorize our financial assets and liabilities using this hierarchy.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the carrying values of our financial assets and liabilities at June 30, 2013. These assets and liabilities are measured on a recurring basis and are classified based on the lowest level of input used to estimate their fair value. Our assessment of the relative significance of such inputs requires judgment.

Fair Value Measurements Using Quoted Prices

	in Active Market		gnificant				
	for		ther	Sig	nificant	Carrying	
	Identic			- 0		J - O	
	Assets	0	bservable	Un	observable	Value	
	and					at June	
	Liabiliti lis puts			Inp	uts	30,	
	(Level						
	1)	(L	Level 2)	(Le	evel 3)	2013	
Financial assets:	*					*	
Interest rate derivatives		\$	35.5	\$		\$ 35.5	
Commodity derivatives			40.2		0.1	60.8	
Total	\$20.5	\$	75.7	\$	0.1	\$ 96.3	
Financial liabilities:							
Interest rate derivatives	\$	\$	12.4	\$		\$ 12.4	
Commodity derivatives	8.9		37.7		0.3	46.9	
Total	\$8.9	\$	50.1	\$	0.3	\$ 59.3	
18							

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of changes in the fair values of our recurring Level 3 financial assets and liabilities on a combined basis for the periods indicated:

		For the Month Ended 30,	S
	Location	2013	2012
Financial asset (liability) balance, net,			
January 1		\$(1.5)	\$0.4
Total gains (losses) included in:			
Net income (1)	Revenue	(0.6)	0.5
	Commodity derivative instruments – changes in fair value of		
Other comprehensive income	cash flow hedges		0.5
Settlements	Revenue	1.5	(0.5)
Financial asset (liability) balance, net,			
March 31		(0.6)	0.9
Total gains (losses) included in:			
Net income (1)	Revenue	(0.2)	(1.3)
	Commodity derivative instruments – changes in fair value of		
Other comprehensive income	cash flow hedges		6.0
Settlements	Revenue	0.6	(0.7)
Financial asset (liability) balance, net,			
June 30 (2)		\$(0.2)	\$4.9

(1) There were unrealized gains of \$0.4 million and \$1.3 million included in these amounts for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. There were \$2.0 million and \$1.9 million of unrealized losses included in these amounts for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively.

(2) There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the three or six months ended June 30, 2013.

The following table provides quantitative information about our recurring Level 3 fair value measurements at June 30, 2013:

	Fair Value			
	Financ Fahancial	Valuation	Unobservable	
	AssetsLiabilitie	s Techniques	Input	Range
Commodity derivatives – Crude		Discounted cash	Forward commodity	
oil	\$0.1 \$ 0.3	flow	prices	\$94.20-\$96.63/barrel

We believe forward commodity prices are the most significant unobservable inputs in determining our Level 3 recurring fair value measurements at June 30, 2013. In general, changes in the price of the underlying commodity increases or decreases the fair value of a commodity derivative depending on whether the derivative was purchased or sold. We generally expect changes in the fair value of our derivative instruments to be offset by corresponding changes in the fair value of our hedged exposures.

We have a risk management policy that covers our Level 3 commodity derivatives. Governance and oversight of risk management activities for these commodities are provided by our CEO with guidance and support from a risk

management committee ("RMC") that meets quarterly (or on a more frequent basis, if needed). Members of executive management attend the RMC meetings, which are chaired by the head of our commodities risk control group. This group is responsible for preparing and distributing daily reports and risk analysis to members of the RMC and other appropriate members of management. These reports include mark-to-market valuations with the one-day and month-to-date changes in fair values. This group also develops and validates the forward commodity price curves used to estimate the fair values of our Level 3 commodity derivatives. These forward curves incorporate published indexes, market quotes and other observable inputs to the extent available.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes our non-cash asset impairment charges by segment during each of the periods indicated:

	For the	e		
	Three		For the Six	
	Month	s	Months	
	Ended	June	Ended June	
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$8.7	\$2.9	\$9.7	\$8.0
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	16.6	6.2	16.6	6.2
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	1.8		11.8	0.3
Total	\$27.1	\$9.1	\$38.1	\$14.5

These impairment charges are a component of operating costs and expenses on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations.

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we recorded \$38.1 million of non-cash asset impairment charges primarily due to the abandonment of assets classified as property, plant and equipment. Of this amount, \$16.6 million relates to the abandonment of certain crude oil pipeline segments in Texas and Oklahoma, \$10.0 million relates to the abandonment of certain refined products terminal and storage assets located in southeast Texas, and \$6.3 million relates to the abandonment of an NGL storage cavern in Arizona. The following table summarizes our non-recurring fair value measurements for the six months ended June 30, 2013:

		Fair Value Measurements Using							
		Quoted							
		Prices							
		in							
		Active	Sign	nificant					
		Market	S						
	Carrying	for	Oth	er	Sig	nificant	Т	otal	
	Value at	IdenticaObservable			Unobservable		N	on-Cash	
	June 30,	Assets Inputs Inp			Inp	Inputs		Impairment	
		(Level							
	2013	1)	(Lev	vel 2)	(Le	vel 3)	Lo	DSS	
Impairment of long-lived assets disposed of									
other than by sale	\$	\$	\$		\$		\$	29.8	
Impairment of long-lived assets held and used	6.3					6.3		4.2	
Impairment of long-lived assets to be disposed	34.6					0.0			
of by sale	* 10.0	33.8				0.8		4.1	
Total	\$ 40.9						\$	38.1	

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we recorded \$14.5 million of non-cash asset impairment charges primarily due to the abandonment of assets classified as property, plant and equipment. Of this amount, \$6.2 million relates to the abandonment of certain crude oil pipeline segments in Texas and Oklahoma, \$4.6 million relates to the

abandonment of an NGL fractionator in South Texas, and \$2.9 million relates to abandonment of certain segments of the Tri-States pipeline. The following table summarizes our non-recurring fair value measurements for the six months ended June 30, 2012:

	Fair Value Measurements Using Quoted Prices in Activ&ignificant								
	~		Mar			~.			
	Ca	rrying	for	Oth	er	Sign	ificant	Τc	otal
	Va	lue at	Iden	ti Ob s	servable	Uno	bservable	N	on-Cash
	Ju	ne 30,	Asse	t¶np	uts	Inpu	ts	In	npairment
		,	(Lev	-		1			1
	20	12	1)	(Le	vel 2)	(Lev	el 3)	L	DSS
Impairment of long-lived assets disposed of									
other than by sale	\$		\$	\$		\$		\$	14.2
Impairment of long-lived assets to be disposed									
of by sale									0.3
Total	\$							\$	14.5

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Fair Value Information

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash balances), accounts receivable, commercial paper notes and accounts payable approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature. The estimated total fair value of our long-term fixed-rate debt obligations was \$17.98 billion and \$18.42 billion at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The aggregate carrying value of these debt obligations was \$16.88 billion and \$16.18 billion at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. These values are based on quoted market prices for such debt or debt of similar terms and maturities (Level 2), our credit standing and the credit standing of our counterparties. Changes in market rates of interest affect the fair value of our fixed-rate debt. The carrying values of our variable-rate long-term debt obligations approximate their fair values since the associated interest rates are market-based. We do not have any long-term investments in debt or equity securities recorded at fair value.

Note 5. Inventories

Our available-for-sale inventory amounts by product type were as follows at the dates indicated:

		December
	June 30,	31,
	2013	2012
NGLs	\$799.1	\$594.3
Petrochemicals and refined products	394.0	304.5
Crude oil	156.9	119.4
Natural gas	61.4	70.2
Total	\$1,411.4	\$1,088.4

In those instances where we take ownership of inventory volumes through percent-of-liquids contracts and similar arrangements (as opposed to outright purchases from third parties for cash), these volumes are valued at market-based prices during the month in which they are acquired.

Due to fluctuating commodity prices, we recognize lower of cost or market adjustments when the carrying value of our available-for-sale inventories exceeds their net realizable value. These non-cash charges are a component of cost of sales in the period they are recognized. To the extent our commodity hedging strategies address inventory-related price risks and are successful, these inventory valuation adjustments are mitigated or offset. See Note 4 for a description of our commodity hedging activities.

The following table presents our total cost of sales amounts and lower of cost or market adjustments for the periods indicated:

	For the Three				
	Months		For the Six Months		
	Ended Jui	ne 30,	Ended June	e 30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Cost of sales (1)	\$9,458.3	\$8,195.2	\$19,150.8	\$17,861.0	
Lower of cost or market adjustments	7.7	8.0	10.4	13.9	
(1) Cost of sales is a component of "Operating costs and expenses," as presented					
on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations.					

Period-to-period fluctuations in these amounts are primarily due to changes in energy commodity prices and sales volumes associated with our marketing activities.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. Property, Plant and Equipment

The historical costs of our property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation balances were as follows at the dates indicated:

	Estimated		
	Useful		December
	Life	June 30,	31,
	in Years	2013	2012
Plants, pipelines and facilities (1)	3-45 (6)	\$26,455.2	\$25,382.4
Underground and other storage facilities (2)	5-40 (7)	1,895.8	1,826.3
Platforms and facilities (3)	20-31	664.8	635.2
Transportation equipment (4)	3-10	132.1	136.2
Marine vessels (5)	15-30	713.3	695.0
Land		179.0	167.2
Construction in progress		2,104.7	2,113.1
Total		32,144.9	30,955.4
Less accumulated depreciation		6,578.8	6,109.0
Property, plant and equipment, net		\$25,566.1	\$24,846.4

(1) Plants and pipelines include processing plants; NGL, natural gas, crude oil and petrochemical and refined products pipelines; terminal loading and unloading facilities; office furniture and equipment; buildings; laboratory and shop equipment and related assets.

(2) Underground and other storage facilities include underground product storage caverns; above ground storage tanks; water wells and related assets.(3) Platforms and facilities include offshore platforms and related facilities and

other associated assets located in the Gulf of Mexico.

(4) Transportation equipment includes tractor-trailer tank trucks and other vehicles and similar assets used in our operations.

(5) Marine vessels include tow boats, barges and related equipment used in our marine transportation business.

(6) In general, the estimated useful lives of major assets within this category are: processing plants, 20-35 years; pipelines and related equipment, 5-45 years; terminal facilities, 10-35 years; office furniture and equipment, 3-20 years; buildings, 20-40 years; and laboratory and shop equipment, 5-35 years.
(7) In general, the estimated useful lives of assets within this category are:

underground storage facilities, 5-35 years; storage tanks, 10-40 years; and water wells, 5-35 years.

The following table summarizes our depreciation expense and capitalized interest amounts for the periods indicated:

	For the	Three	For the Six			
	Months		Months			
	Ended J	une 30,	Ended June 30,			
	2013	2012	2013	2012		
Depreciation expense (1)	\$250.8	\$222.0	\$496.2	\$434.0		

Capitalized interest (2) 35.7 29.5 67.3 60.1
(1) Depreciation expense is a component of "Costs and expenses" as presented on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations.
(2) We capitalize interest cost incurred on funds used to construct property, plant and equipment. The capitalized interest is recorded as part of the asset to which it relates and is amortized over the asset's estimated useful life as a component of depreciation expense. When capitalized interest is recorded, it reduces interest expense from what it would be otherwise.

In January 2013, we sold certain trucking assets for cash proceeds of \$29.5 million. As a result of this transaction, net income for the six months ended June 30, 2013 includes a \$0.5 million loss from the sale of these assets.

In March 2013, we sold the Stratton Ridge-to-Mont Belvieu segment of the Seminole Pipeline, along with a related storage cavern, for cash proceeds of \$86.9 million. As a result, net income for the six months ended June 30, 2013 includes a \$52.5 million gain from the sale of these assets. The Seminole Pipeline remains connected to our Mont Belvieu complex through a newly constructed NGL pipeline that we own.

In April 2013, we sold certain lubrication oil and specialty chemical distribution assets for cash proceeds of \$35.3 million. As a result, net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 includes a \$6.7 million gain from the sale of these assets.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We received cash proceeds of \$14.3 million and \$14.9 million from the sale of certain marine transportation assets during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. As a result of these transactions, net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 includes a \$6.7 million loss from the sale of these assets.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Property, plant and equipment at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 includes \$40.9 million and \$40.3 million, respectively, of asset retirement costs capitalized as an increase in the associated long-lived asset.

The following table presents information regarding our asset retirement obligations ("AROs") during the six months ended June 30, 2013:

ARO liability balance, December 31, 2012	\$105.2
Liabilities incurred	0.1
Liabilities settled	(6.8)
Revisions in estimated cash flows	2.9
Accretion expense	3.1
ARO liability balance, June 30, 2013	\$104.5

The following table presents our forecast of accretion expense for the periods indicated:

Re	mainder				
of	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
\$	3.1	\$6.5	\$6.3	\$6.6	\$7.1

Certain of our unconsolidated affiliates have AROs recorded at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 relating to contractual agreements and regulatory requirements. These amounts are immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

The following table presents our investments in unconsolidated affiliates by business segment at the dates indicated. Unless noted otherwise, we account for these investments using the equity method.

	Ownership		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Interest at		December
	June 30,	June 30,	31,
	2013	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services:			
Venice Energy Service Company, L.L.C.	13.1%	\$30.6	\$29.6
K/D/S Promix, L.L.C.	50%	45.2	46.9
Baton Rouge Fractionators LLC	32.2%	19.4	20.2
Skelly-Belvieu Pipeline Company, L.L.C.	50%	40.3	38.2
Texas Express Pipeline LLC	35%	282.7	144.4
Texas Express Gathering LLC	45%	29.2	20.9
Front Range Pipeline LLC	33.3%	68.1	24.4
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services:			
White River Hub, LLC	50%	24.4	24.9
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services:			
Seaway Crude Pipeline Company LLC	50%	558.1	341.4
Eagle Ford Pipeline LLC	50%	225.0	152.4
Offshore Pipelines & Services:			
Poseidon Oil Pipeline Company, L.L.C. ("Poseidon")	36%	45.4	47.3
Cameron Highway Oil Pipeline Company	50%	211.1	220.0
Deepwater Gateway, L.L.C.	50%	87.2	90.0
Neptune Pipeline Company, L.L.C.	25.7%	44.6	46.8
Southeast Keathley Canyon Pipeline Company L.L.C.	50%	155.0	74.9
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services:			
Baton Rouge Propylene Concentrator, LLC	30%	8.0	8.5
Centennial Pipeline LLC ("Centennial")	50%	61.5	60.8
Other (1)	Various	3.0	3.0
Total		\$1,938.8	\$1,394.6

(1) Other unconsolidated affiliates include a 50% interest in a propylene pipeline extending from Mont Belvieu, Texas to La Porte, Texas and a 25% interest in a company that provides logistics communications solutions between petroleum pipelines and their customers.

The following table presents our equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates by business segment for the periods indicated:

For the Three	For the Six
Months	Months

	Ended June		Ended.	June
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$3.8	\$3.8	\$7.7	\$9.0
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services	0.9	1.2	1.9	2.6
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	30.1	3.6	66.7	4.1
Offshore Pipelines & Services	8.7	4.1	15.1	11.0
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	(5.9)	(1.4)	(9.3)	(7.9)
Other Investments				2.4
Total	\$37.6	\$11.3	\$82.1	\$21.2
24				

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents our unamortized excess cost amounts by business segment at the dates indicated:

	June	December
	30,	31,
	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$28.3	\$ 28.9
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	18.1	18.5
Offshore Pipelines & Services	12.9	13.6
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	2.7	2.7
Total	\$62.0	\$ 63.7

The following table presents our amortization of excess cost amounts by business segment for the periods indicated:

	For the			
	Three	,	For the Six	
	Mont	hs	Months	
	Endee	d June	Ended June	
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$0.3	\$0.3	\$0.6	\$0.5
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	0.2	0.1	0.4	0.3
Offshore Pipelines & Services	0.4	0.3	0.7	0.6
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services				0.1
Other Investments				0.3
Total	\$0.9	\$0.7	\$1.7	\$1.8

Liquidation of Investment in Energy Transfer Equity

The Other Investments segment included our noncontrolling ownership interest in Energy Transfer Equity, which was accounted for using the equity method until January 18, 2012.

At December 31, 2011, we owned 29,303,514 common units of Energy Transfer Equity representing 13.1% of its limited partner interests. On January 18, 2012, we sold 22,762,636 of these common units in a private transaction, which generated cash proceeds of \$825.1 million and a gain on the sale of \$27.5 million. As a result of the January 18, 2012 transaction, our ownership interest in Energy Transfer Equity was reduced below 3%, and we discontinued using the equity method to account for this investment and began accounting for it as an investment in available-for-sale equity securities. Following the January 18, 2012 transaction, we sold the remaining 6,540,878 Energy Transfer Equity common units through April 27, 2012, which generated cash proceeds of \$270.2 million and gains on these sales totaling \$41.3 million. The \$68.8 million of aggregate gains on the 2012 sales, of which \$15.5 million are attributed to sales during the second quarter of 2012, are a component of "Other income" on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations.

All activities included in our former sixth reportable business segment, Other Investments, ceased on January 18, 2012, which was the date we discontinued using the equity method to account for our investment in Energy Transfer Equity. See Note 11 for additional information regarding our business segments.

Summarized Income Statement Information of Unconsolidated Affiliates

The following tables present unaudited income statement information (on a 100% basis for the periods indicated) of our unconsolidated affiliates, aggregated by the business segments to which they relate:

	Summarized Income Statement Information for the						
	Three Months Ended						
	June 30, 2013			June 3			
		Operating	Net		Operating	Net	
		Income	Income		Income	Income	
	Revenuekoss)		(Loss)	RevenueLoss)		(Loss)	
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$71.5	\$ 12.7	\$12.6	\$71.5	\$ 15.3	\$15.2	
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services	2.9	1.8	1.8	2.9	1.9	1.9	
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	88.4	63.4	59.1	21.5	7.4	7.3	
Offshore Pipelines & Services	46.9	24.2	23.9	39.1	12.8	12.5	
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	5.7	(9.2) (11.0)	5.9	(0.3) (2.4)	

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Summarized Income Statement Information for the Six						
	Months Ended						
	June 30, 2013			June 30, 2012			
		Operating	Net		Operating	Net	
		Income	Income		Income	Income	
	Revenue	es(Loss)	(Loss)	Revenue	es(Loss)	(Loss)	
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$154.9	\$ 28.0	\$27.8	\$182.4	\$ 42.3	\$42.2	
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services	5.8	3.7	3.7	5.7	3.7	3.7	
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	166.9	135.1	127.0	33.8	8.2	8.1	
Offshore Pipelines & Services	89.2	42.2	41.2	80.2	31.9	30.9	
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	11.7	(13.1) (16.8)	11.3	(9.7	(13.8)	

Other

The credit agreements of Poseidon and Centennial restrict their ability to pay cash dividends if a default or event of default (as defined in each credit agreement) has occurred and is continuing at the time such payments are scheduled to be paid. These businesses were in compliance with the terms of their credit agreements at June 30, 2013.

Note 8. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The following table summarizes our intangible assets by business segment at the dates indicated:

	June 30, 2013			December 31, 2012		
	Gross	Accumulate	ed Carryin	g Gross	Accumulate	ed Carrying
	Value	Amortizatio	on Value	-	Amortizatio	
NGL Pipelines & Services:						
Customer relationship intangibles	\$340.8	\$ (156.8)\$184.0	\$340.8	\$ (147.6)\$193.2
Contract-based intangibles	280.3	(162.8) 117.5	284.6	(157.2) 127.4
Segment total	621.1	(319.6) 301.5	625.4	(304.8) 320.6
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services:						
Customer relationship intangibles	1,163.0	6 (265.3) 898.3	1,163.6	(250.0) 913.6
Contract-based intangibles	466.1	(321.2) 144.9	466.1	(311.8) 154.3
Segment total	1,629.7	7 (586.5) 1,043.	2 1,629.7	(561.8) 1,067.9
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services:						
Customer relationship intangibles	10.7	(5.6) 5.1	10.7	(4.9) 5.8
Contract-based intangibles	0.4	(0.3) 0.1	0.4	(0.3) 0.1
Segment total	11.1	(5.9) 5.2	11.1	(5.2) 5.9
Offshore Pipelines & Services:						
Customer relationship intangibles	203.9	(144.5) 59.4	203.9	(138.5) 65.4
Contract-based intangibles	1.2	(0.4) 0.8	1.2	(0.4) 0.8
Segment total	205.1	(144.9) 60.2	205.1	(138.9) 66.2
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services:						
Customer relationship intangibles	104.3	(35.9) 68.4	104.3	(33.4) 70.9
Contract-based intangibles	39.9	(5.2) 34.7	41.2	(5.9) 35.3
Segment total	144.2	(41.1) 103.1	145.5	(39.3) 106.2
Total all segments	\$2,611.2	2\$ (1,098.0)\$1,513.	2\$2,616.8	\$ (1,050.0)\$1,566.8

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents the amortization expense of our intangible assets by business segment for the periods indicated:

	For the Three		For the Six	
	Months		Month	s
	Ended June		Ended	June
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$9.5	\$9.6	\$19.1	\$19.8
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services	12.3	15.8	24.7	31.6
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	0.4	0.1	0.7	0.3
Offshore Pipelines & Services	2.9	2.6	5.9	5.2
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	1.6	3.2	3.2	6.7
Total	\$26.7	\$31.3	\$53.6	\$63.6

The following table presents our forecast of amortization expense associated with existing intangible assets for the periods indicated:

Remainder

of 2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
\$ 51.7	\$96.2	\$90.3	\$92.0	\$96.0

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquired business over the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction. The following table presents changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the six months ended June 30, 2013:

		Onshore Natural	Onshore Crude			
	NGL	Gas	Oil	Offshore	Petrochemical	
	Pipelines	Pipelines	Pipelines	Pipelines	& Refined	
	&	&	&	&	Products	Consolidated
	Services	Services	Services	Services	Services	Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 (1)	\$ 341.2	\$ 296.3	\$ 311.2	\$ 82.1	\$ 1,056.0	\$ 2,086.8
Goodwill related to the sale of assets			(6.1)		(0.7)	(6.8)
Balance at June 30, 2013 (1)	\$ 341.2	\$ 296.3	\$ 305.1	\$ 82.1	\$ 1,055.3	\$ 2,080.0

(1) The total carrying amount of goodwill at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is net of \$1.3 million of accumulated impairment charges. No goodwill impairment charges were recorded during the six months ended June 30, 2013.

Table of Contents

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. Debt Obligations

The following table presents our consolidated debt obligations (arranged by company and maturity date) at the dates indicated:

		December
	June 30,	31,
	2013	2012
EPO senior debt obligations:		
Commercial Paper Notes, fixed-rates (1)	\$40.0	\$346.6
Senior Notes C, 6.375% fixed-rate, due February 2013		350.0
Senior Notes T, 6.125% fixed-rate, due February 2013		182.5
Senior Notes M, 5.65% fixed-rate, due April 2013		400.0
Senior Notes U, 5.90% fixed-rate, due April 2013		237.6
Senior Notes O, 9.75% fixed-rate, due January 2014	500.0	500.0
364-Day Credit Agreement, variable-rate, due June 2014		
Senior Notes G, 5.60% fixed-rate, due October 2014	650.0	650.0
Senior Notes I, 5.00% fixed-rate, due March 2015	250.0	250.0
Senior Notes X, 3.70% fixed-rate, due June 2015	400.0	400.0
Senior Notes FF, 1.25% fixed-rate, due August 2015	650.0	650.0
Senior Notes AA, 3.20% fixed-rate, due February 2016	750.0	750.0
Senior Notes L, 6.30% fixed-rate, due September 2017	800.0	800.0
Senior Notes V, 6.65% fixed-rate, due April 2018	349.7	349.7
\$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility, variable-rate, due June 2018	45.0	
Senior Notes N, 6.50% fixed-rate, due January 2019	700.0	700.0
Senior Notes Q, 5.25% fixed-rate, due January 2020	500.0	500.0
Senior Notes Y, 5.20% fixed-rate, due September 2020	1,000.0	1,000.0
Senior Notes CC, 4.05% fixed-rate, due February 2022	650.0	650.0
Senior Notes HH, 3.35% fixed-rate, due March 2023	1,250.0	
Senior Notes D, 6.875% fixed-rate, due March 2033	500.0	500.0
Senior Notes H, 6.65% fixed-rate, due October 2034	350.0	350.0
Senior Notes J, 5.75% fixed-rate, due March 2035	250.0	250.0
Senior Notes W, 7.55% fixed-rate, due April 2038	399.6	399.6
Senior Notes R, 6.125% fixed-rate, due October 2039	600.0	600.0
Senior Notes Z, 6.45% fixed-rate, due September 2040	600.0	600.0
Senior Notes BB, 5.95% fixed-rate, due February 2041	750.0	750.0
Senior Notes DD, 5.70% fixed-rate, due February 2042	600.0	600.0
Senior Notes EE, 4.85% fixed-rate, due August 2042	750.0	750.0
Senior Notes GG, 4.45% fixed-rate, due February 2043	1,100.0	1,100.0
Senior Notes II, 4.85% fixed-rate, due March 2044	1,000.0	
TEPPCO senior debt obligations:	,	
TEPPCO Senior Notes, 6.125% fixed-rate, due February 2013		17.5
TEPPCO Senior Notes, 5.90% fixed-rate, due April 2013		12.4
TEPPCO Senior Notes, 6.65% fixed-rate, due April 2018	0.3	0.3
TEPPCO Senior Notes, 7.55% fixed-rate, due April 2038	0.4	0.4
Total principal amount of senior debt obligations	15,435.0	14,646.6
r	10,10010	1.,01010

EPO Junior Subordinated Notes A, fixed/variable-rate, due August 2066	550.0	550.0
EPO Junior Subordinated Notes C, fixed/variable-rate, due June 2067	285.8	285.8
EPO Junior Subordinated Notes B, fixed/variable-rate, due January 2068	682.7	682.7
TEPPCO Junior Subordinated Notes, fixed/variable-rate, due June 2067	14.2	14.2
Total principal amount of senior and junior debt obligations	16,967.7	16,179.3
Other, non-principal amounts:		
Change in fair value of debt hedged in fair value hedging relationship (2)	29.3	39.3
Unamortized discounts, net of premiums	(42.2)	(38.0)
Other	14.8	21.2
Total other, non-principal amounts	1.9	22.5
Less current maturities of debt (3)	(540.0)	(1,546.6)
Total long-term debt	\$16,429.6	\$14,655.2

(1) Principal amounts outstanding at June 30, 2013 have a fixed-rate of 0.29% and are due in July 2013.

(2) See Note 4 for information regarding our interest rate hedging activities.

(3) We expect to refinance the current maturities of our debt obligations at or prior to their maturity.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. acts as guarantor of the consolidated debt obligations of EPO with the exception of the remaining debt obligations of TEPPCO. If EPO were to default on any of its guaranteed debt, Enterprise Products Partners L.P. would be responsible for full and unconditional repayment of that obligation.

The following table presents contractually scheduled maturities of our consolidated debt obligations outstanding at June 30, 2013 for the next five years, and in total thereafter:

	Scheduled Maturities of Debt Remainder								
		of After							
	Total	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2017		
Commercial Paper Notes	\$40.0	\$40.0	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$		
Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility	45.0						45.0		
Senior Notes	15,350.0		1,150.0	1,300.0	750.0	800.0	11,350.0		
Junior Subordinated Notes	1,532.7						1,532.7		
Total	\$16,967.7	\$40.0	\$1,150.0	\$1,300.0	\$750.0	\$800.0	\$12,927.7		

Apart from those items discussed below and routine fluctuations in the balance of our multi-year revolving credit facility and commercial paper notes, there have been no significant changes in the terms or amounts of our consolidated debt obligations since those reported in our 2012 Form 10-K.

364-Day Credit Agreement

In June 2013, EPO entered into a 364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement with a group of lenders (the "364-Day Credit Agreement"). Under the terms of the 364-Day Credit Agreement, EPO may borrow up to \$1.0 billion at a variable interest rate for a term of 364 days, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.

EPO's obligations under the 364-Day Credit Agreement are not secured by any collateral; however, they are guaranteed by Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Amounts borrowed under the 364-Day Credit Agreement mature on June 18, 2014, although EPO may, between 15 and 60 days prior to the maturity date, elect to have the entire principal balance then outstanding continued as non-revolving term loans for a period of one additional year, payable on June 18, 2015.

The 364-Day Credit Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, covenants (affirmative and negative) and events of default, the occurrence of which would permit the lenders to accelerate the maturity date of amounts borrowed under the 364-Day Credit Agreement. The 364-Day Credit Agreement also restricts EPO's ability to pay cash distributions to its parent, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., if a default or an event of default (as defined in the 364-Day Credit Agreement) has occurred and is continuing at the time such distribution is scheduled to be paid.

First Amendment to \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility

In June 2013, EPO amended the terms of its \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things, extend the maturity date of commitments under the agreement from September 2016 to June 2018 and lower the applicable margin on borrowings.

Issuance of Senior Notes in March 2013

In March 2013, EPO issued \$1.25 billion principal amount of 3.35% senior notes due March 2023 ("Senior Notes HH") and \$1.0 billion principal amount of 4.85% senior notes due March 2044 ("Senior Notes II"). Senior Notes HH were issued at 99.908% of their principal amount and Senior Notes II were issued at 99.619% of their principal amount. Net proceeds from the issuance of Senior Notes HH and II were used to repay debt, including (i) amounts outstanding under EPO's \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and EPO's commercial paper program (which we used to repay \$550.0 million principal amount of senior notes that matured in February 2013) and (ii) \$650.0 million principal amount of senior notes that matured in April 2013, and for general company purposes. 29

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. has unconditionally guaranteed Senior Notes HH and II on an unsecured and unsubordinated basis. These senior notes rank equal with EPO's existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and are senior to any existing and future subordinated indebtedness of EPO. These senior notes are subject to make-whole redemption rights and were issued under indentures containing certain covenants, which generally restrict EPO's ability (with certain exceptions) to incur debt secured by liens and engage in sale and leaseback transactions.

Letters of Credit

At June 30, 2013, EPO had \$2.5 million of letters of credit outstanding related to operations at our facilities and motor fuel tax obligations.

Lender Financial Covenants

We were in compliance with the financial covenants of our consolidated debt agreements at June 30, 2013.

Information Regarding Variable Interest Rates Paid

The following table presents the range of interest rates and weighted-average interest rates paid on our consolidated variable-rate debt during the six months ended June 30, 2013:

	Range of	Weighted-Average
	Interest Rates	Interest Rate
	Paid	Paid
EPO \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility	1.17% to 1.51%	1.36%

Note 10. Equity and Distributions

Partners' equity reflects the various classes of limited partner interests (i.e., common units, including restricted common units, and Class B units) that we have outstanding. The following table summarizes changes in the number of our common units outstanding during the six months ended June 30, 2013:

	Common	Restricted	Total	
	Units	Common	Common	
	(Unrestricted)	Units	Units	
Number of units outstanding at December 31, 2012	894,919,851	3,893,486	898,813,33	7
Common units issued in connection with underwritten offering	9,200,000		9,200,000	
Common units issued in connection with our at-the-market program	3,766,557		3,766,557	
Common units issued in connection with our DRIP and EUPP	2,440,784		2,440,784	
Common units issued in connection with the vesting of unit options	200,882		200,882	
Common units issued in connection with the vesting of restricted				
common unit awards	1,830,010	(1,830,010)		
Restricted common unit awards issued		1,748,476	1,748,476	
Forfeiture of restricted common unit awards		(120,882)	(120,882)
Acquisition and cancellation of treasury units in connection with the				
vesting of equity-based awards	(614,191)		(614,191)

Number of units outstanding at June 30, 2013

911,743,893 3,691,070 915,434,963

We may issue additional equity or debt securities to assist us in meeting our future liquidity and capital spending requirements. In June 2013, we filed with the SEC a new universal shelf registration statement (the "2013 Shelf") that replaced our prior universal shelf registration statement filed with the SEC in July 2010 (the "2010 Shelf"). The 2013 Shelf allows (and the prior 2010 Shelf allowed) Enterprise Products Partners L.P. and EPO (each on a standalone basis) to issue an unlimited amount of equity and debt securities, respectively.

In February 2013, we issued 9,200,000 common units to the public (including an over-allotment amount of 1,200,000 common units) at an offering price of \$54.56 per unit. This underwritten offering, using the 2010 Shelf, generated net proceeds of \$486.6 million. Also, EPO utilized the 2010 Shelf to issue \$2.25 billion of senior notes in March 2013 (see Note 9).

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have a registration statement on file with the SEC covering the issuance of up to \$1.0 billion of our common units in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions and other factors at the time of such offerings. Pursuant to this "at-the-market" program, we may sell common units under an equity distribution agreement between Enterprise Products Partners L.P. and certain broker-dealers from time-to-time by means of ordinary brokers' transactions through the NYSE at market prices, in block transactions or as otherwise agreed to with the broker-dealer parties to the agreement. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we sold 3,766,557 common units under the program for aggregate gross proceeds of \$228.5 million. After taking into account applicable costs, these transactions result in net proceeds of \$226.5 million, of which \$214.2 million was received as of June 30, 2013. After taking into account the aggregate sale price of common units sold under this program through June 30, 2013, we have the capacity to issue additional common units under this program up to an aggregate sale price of \$566.1 million.

We also have registration statements on file with the SEC collectively authorizing the issuance of up to 70,000,000 of our common units in connection with a distribution reinvestment plan (or "DRIP"). The DRIP provides unitholders of record and beneficial owners of our common units a voluntary means by which they can increase the number of our common units they own by reinvesting the quarterly cash distributions they would otherwise receive from us into the purchase of additional new common units. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we issued 1,198,552 common units, which generated net proceeds of \$58.0 million. We issued 2,359,089 common units under our DRIP during the six months ended June 30, 2013, which generated net proceeds of \$129.8 million. After taking into account the number of common units issued under the DRIP through June 30, 2013, we may issue an additional 21,134,203 common units under this plan.

In January 2013, affiliates of privately held EPCO, which own our general partner and approximately 37.0% of our limited partner interests at June 30, 2013, expressed their willingness to purchase at least \$100 million of our common units during 2013 through our DRIP. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, these EPCO affiliates reinvested \$50.0 million, resulting in the issuance of 908,217 common units under our DRIP (this amount being a component of the 2,359,089 common units issued in total under the DRIP during the first six months of 2013). In August 2013, these affiliates reinvested an additional \$25.0 million under the DRIP.

In addition to the DRIP, we have a registration statement on file with the SEC authorizing the issuance of up to 440,879 of our common units in connection with an employee unit purchase plan (or "EUPP"). During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we issued 72,057 common units, which generated net proceeds of \$3.7 million. We issued 81,695 common units under our EUPP during the six months ended June 30, 2013, which generated net proceeds of \$4.8 million. After taking into account the number of common units issued under the EUPP through June 30, 2013, we may issue an additional 214,341 common units under this plan.

The net cash proceeds we received from the issuance of common units during the six months ended June 30, 2013 were used to temporarily reduce amounts outstanding under EPO's Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and commercial paper program and for general company purposes.

A total of 1,830,010 restricted common unit awards granted to employees of EPCO vested and converted to common units during the six months ended June 30, 2013. Of this amount, 614,191 were sold back to us by employees to cover related withholding tax requirements. The total cost of these treasury unit purchases was approximately \$35.8 million. We cancelled such treasury units immediately upon acquisition. For additional information regarding our equity-based awards, see Note 3.

<u>Class B units</u>. In October 2009, we issued 4,520,431 Class B units to a privately held affiliate of EPCO in connection with the TEPPCO Merger. The Class B units were entitled to vote together with our common units as a single class on partnership matters and generally had the same rights and privileges as our common units, except that the Class B units were not entitled to receive regular quarterly cash distributions until they automatically converted into an equal number of common units on August 8, 2013.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) primarily reflects the effective portion of the gain or loss on derivative instruments designated and qualified as cash flow hedges. Gain or loss amounts related to cash flow hedges recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified to earnings in the same period(s) in which the underlying hedged forecasted transactions affect earnings. If it becomes probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur, the related net gain or loss in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is immediately reclassified into earnings.

The following table presents reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net income during the three and six months ended June 30, 2013:

T Location M E Ju		Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
Interest rate derivatives Interest expense \$	5 7.8	\$ 13.7
Commodity derivatives Revenue	(7.2)	0.5
Commodity derivatives Operating costs and expenses		(0.4)
Total \$	5 0.6	\$ 13.8

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests as presented on our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements represent third party ownership interests in joint ventures that we consolidate for financial reporting purposes, including Tri-States NGL Pipeline L.L.C., Independence Hub LLC, Rio Grande Pipeline Company, Wilprise Pipeline Company LLC and Enterprise EF78 LLC.

In June 2013, we formed a joint venture, Enterprise EF78 LLC, with Western Gas Partners, LP ("Western Gas") involving two NGL fractionators that are under construction at our complex in Mont Belvieu, Texas (i.e., NGL fractionators seven and eight). We own 75% of the joint venture's membership interests and consolidate the joint venture. Western Gas acquired a 25% noncontrolling interest in the joint venture for an initial contribution of \$90.2 million, which is reflected as a contribution from noncontrolling interests on our Unaudited Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows. NGL fractionators seven and eight are expected to begin operations in the fourth quarter of 2013.

Cash Distributions

The following table presents our declared quarterly cash distribution rates per common unit with respect to the quarters indicated:

DistributionRecordPaymentPerDateDate

Common Unit 2013 1st Quarter \$ 0.67 04/30/1305/07/13 2nd Quarter \$ 0.68 07/31/1308/07/13

In November 2010, we completed our merger with Enterprise GP Holdings L.P. (the "Holdings Merger"). In connection with the Holdings Merger, a privately held affiliate of EPCO agreed to temporarily waive the regular quarterly cash distributions it would otherwise receive from us with respect to a certain number of our common units it owns (the "Designated Units"). Distributions paid during 2013 exclude 23,700,000 Designated Units. Distributions to be paid, if any, during 2014 and 2015 will exclude 22,560,000 Designated Units and 17,690,000 Designated Units, respectively.

As previously noted, 4,520,431 Class B units automatically converted into an equal number of distribution-bearing common units on August 8, 2013.

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11. Business Segments

We have five reportable business segments: (i) NGL Pipelines & Services; (ii) Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services; (iii) Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services; (iv) Offshore Pipelines & Services; and (v) Petrochemical & Refined Products Services. Our business segments are generally organized and managed according to the types of services rendered (or technologies employed) and products produced and/or sold.

All activities included in our former sixth reportable business segment, Other Investments, ceased on January 18, 2012, which was the date we discontinued using the equity method to account for our previously held investment in Energy Transfer Equity. See Note 7 for information regarding the liquidation of our investment in Energy Transfer Equity.

We evaluate segment performance based on the non-GAAP financial measure of gross operating margin. Gross operating margin (either in total or by individual segment) is an important performance measure of the core profitability of our operations. This measure forms the basis of our internal financial reporting and is used by our management in deciding how to allocate capital resources among business segments. We believe that investors benefit from having access to the same financial measures that our management uses in evaluating segment results. The GAAP financial measure most directly comparable to total segment gross operating margin is operating income. Our non-GAAP financial measure of total segment gross operating margin should not be considered an alternative to GAAP operating income.

We define total segment gross operating margin as operating income before: (i) depreciation, amortization and accretion expenses; (ii) non-cash asset impairment charges; (iii) gains and losses attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries; and (iv) general and administrative costs. Gross operating margin by segment is calculated by subtracting segment operating costs and expenses (net of the adjustments noted above) from segment revenues, with both segment totals before the elimination of intercompany transactions. In accordance with GAAP, intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Gross operating margin is exclusive of other income and expense transactions, income taxes, the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles and extraordinary charges. Gross operating margin is presented on a 100% basis before any allocation of earnings to noncontrolling interests.

We include equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates in our measurement of segment gross operating margin and operating income. Equity investments with industry partners are a significant component of our business strategy. They are a means by which we conduct our operations to align our interests with those of customers and/or suppliers. This method of operation enables us to achieve favorable economies of scale relative to the level of investment and business risk assumed. Many of these businesses perform supporting or complementary roles to our other midstream business operations.

Segment revenues include intersegment and intrasegment transactions, which are generally based on transactions made at market-based rates. Our consolidated revenues reflect the elimination of intercompany transactions.

Segment assets consist of property, plant and equipment, investments in unconsolidated affiliates, intangible assets and goodwill. The carrying values of such amounts are assigned to each segment based on each asset's or investment's principal operations and contribution to the gross operating margin of that particular segment. Since construction-in-progress amounts (a component of property, plant and equipment) generally do not contribute to segment gross operating margin, such amounts are excluded from segment asset totals until the underlying assets are

placed in service. Intangible assets and goodwill are assigned to each segment based on the classification of the assets to which they relate.

Table of Contents

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents our measurement of total segment gross operating margin for the periods indicated:

	For the Three	ee Months	For the Six Months		
	Ended June	30,	Ended June 30,		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Revenues	\$11,149.3	\$9,789.8	\$22,532.4	\$21,042.3	
Less: Operating costs and expenses	(10,367.2)	(9,009.5)	(20,787.6)	(19,476.7)	
Add: Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates	37.6	11.3	82.1	21.2	
Amounts included in operating costs and expenses:					
Depreciation, amortization and accretion	289.7	261.3	566.5	515.9	
Non-cash asset impairment charges	27.1	9.1	38.1	14.5	
Losses (gains) attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries	5.7	(29.0)	(58.2)	(31.5)	
Total segment gross operating margin	\$1,142.2	\$1,033.0	\$2,373.3	\$2,085.7	

The following table presents a reconciliation of total segment gross operating margin to operating income and further to income before income taxes for the periods indicated:

	For the Three			
	Months For the Six M			
	Ended June 30,	Ended June 30,		
	2013 2012	2013 2012		
Total segment gross operating margin	\$1,142.2 \$1,033.0	\$2,373.3 \$2,085.7		
Adjustments to reconcile total segment gross operating margin to				
operating income:				
Amounts included in operating costs and expenses:				
Depreciation, amortization and accretion	(289.7) (261.3) (566.5) (515.9)		
Non-cash asset impairment charges	(27.1) (9.1) (38.1) (14.5)		
Gains (losses) attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries	(5.7) 29.0	58.2 31.5		
General and administrative costs	(45.5) (42.5) (95.0) (88.8)		
Operating income	774.2 749.1	1,731.9 1,498.0		
Other expense, net	(200.5) (173.4) (396.5) (301.2)		
Income before income taxes	\$573.7 \$575.7	\$1,335.4 \$1,196.8		

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information by business segment, together with reconciliations to our consolidated financial statement totals, is presented in the following table:

	Reportable	Business S	egments					
	NGL Pipelines & Services	Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services	Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	Offshore Pipelines & Services	Petrochemi & Refined Products Services	Other	Adjustments and erffikiminations	Consolidated
Revenues from third parties:								
Three months								
ended June 30, 2013 Three months	\$3,504.7	\$953.0	\$5,129.5	\$39.3	\$ 1,516.1	\$	\$	\$11,142.6
ended June 30, 2012 Six months ended	3,327.9	700.9	4,188.7	47.5	1,499.2			9,764.2
June 30, 2013 Six months ended	7,455.4	1,827.2	9,922.7	79.8	3,234.7			22,519.8
June 30, 2012 Revenues from	7,682.0	1,505.8	8,662.3	101.9	3,033.9			20,985.9
related parties: Three months								
ended June 30, 2013 Three months	0.2	4.5		2.0				6.7
ended June 30, 2012 Six months ended	4.6	19.5		1.5				25.6
June 30, 2013 Six months ended	0.5	8.0		4.1				12.6
June 30, 2012 Intersegment and	5.0	48.2		3.2				56.4
intrasegment revenues:								
Three months ended June 30, 2013 Three months	2,380.4	254.9	2,717.0	4.2	394.2		(5,750.7)	
ended June 30, 2012 Six months ended	2,276.5	179.0	1,735.5	1.7	438.7		(4,631.4)	
June 30, 2013 Six months ended	5,089.4	511.1	4,741.7	6.2	816.3		(11,164.7)	
June 30, 2012 Total revenues: Three months	5,094.7	402.7	3,466.4	5.0	878.6		(9,847.4)	
ended June 30, 2013 Three months	5,885.3	1,212.4	7,846.5	45.5	1,910.3		(5,750.7)	11,149.3
ended June 30, 2012	5,609.0 12,545.3	899.4 2,346.3	5,924.2 14,664.4	50.7 90.1	1,937.9 4,051.0		(4,631.4) (11,164.7)	

Six months ended June 30, 2013 Six months ended June 30, 2012 Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates:	12,781.7	1,956.7	12,128.7	110.1	3,912.5			(9,847.4)	21,042.3
Three months ended June 30, 2013 Three months	3.8	0.9	30.1	8.7	(5.9)			37.6
ended June 30, 2012 Six months ended	3.8	1.2	3.6	4.1	(1.4)			11.3
June 30, 2013 Six months ended	7.7	1.9	66.7	15.1	(9.3)			82.1
June 30, 2012 Gross operating	9.0	2.6	4.1	11.0	(7.9)	2.4		21.2
margin: Three months									
ended June 30, 2013 Three months	544.9	197.7	197.2	39.7	162.7				1,142.2
ended June 30, 2012 Six months ended	565.8	175.8	95.8	38.3	157.3				1,033.0
June 30, 2013 Six months ended	1,137.4	388.5	433.6	80.2	333.6				2,373.3
June 30, 2012 Property, plant and equipment, net: (see Note 6)	1,220.7	382.0	135.1	90.4	255.1		2.4		2,085.7
At June 30, 2013 At December 31,	9,195.8	8,925.8	1,426.2	1,277.6	2,636.0			2,104.7	25,566.1
2012 Investments in unconsolidated affiliates: (see Note 7)	8,494.8	8,950.1	1,385.9	1,343.0	2,559.5			2,113.1	24,846.4
At June 30, 2013 At December 31,	515.5	24.4	783.1	543.3	72.5				1,938.8
2012 Intangible assets, net: (see Note 8)	324.6	24.9	493.8	479.0	72.3				1,394.6
At June 30, 2013 At December 31,	301.5	1,043.2	5.2	60.2	103.1				1,513.2
2012 Goodwill: (see Note 8)	320.6	1,067.9	5.9	66.2	106.2				1,566.8
At June 30, 2013 At December 31,	341.2	296.3	305.1	82.1	1,055.3				2,080.0
2012 Segment assets:	341.2	296.3	311.2	82.1	1,056.0				2,086.8
At June 30, 2013	10,354.0	10,289.7	2,519.6	1,963.2	3,866.9			2,104.7	31,098.1

At December 31, 2012	9,481.2	10,339.2	2,196.8	1,970.3	3,794.0	 2,113.1	29,894.6
35							

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents additional information regarding our consolidated revenues and costs and expenses for the periods indicated:

	For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2013 2012		For the Six Ended June 2013	
NGL Pipelines & Services:	2013	2012	2013	2012
Sales of NGLs and related products	\$3,235.9	\$3,133.9	\$6,901.5	\$7,249.2
Midstream asset services	269.0	198.6	554.4	437.8
Total	3,504.9	3,332.5	7,455.9	7,687.0
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services:	5,504.9	5,552.5	7,455.9	7,007.0
Sales of natural gas	723.9	510.8	1,363.4	1,083.4
Midstream asset services	233.6	209.6	471.8	470.6
Total	255.0 957.5	209.0 720.4	1,835.2	1,554.0
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services:	937.3	720.4	1,655.2	1,554.0
Sales of crude oil	5,057.4	4,174.0	9,800.2	8,621.6
Midstream asset services	72.1	14.7	9,800.2 122.5	40.7
Total	5,129.5	4,188.7	9,922.7	8,662.3
Offshore Pipelines & Services:	5,127.5	4,100.7),)22.1	0,002.5
Sales of natural gas	0.1		0.2	0.1
Sales of rude oil	(0.1)		2.2	1.4
Midstream asset services	41.3	49.0	81.5	103.6
Total	41.3	49.0	83.9	105.0
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services:	41.5	ч <i>у</i> .0	05.7	105.1
Sales of petrochemicals and refined products	1,334.2	1,316.8	2,881.4	2,668.0
Midstream asset services	1,334.2	1,310.8	353.3	2,008.0 365.9
Total	1,516.1	1,499.2	3,234.7	3,033.9
Total consolidated revenues	\$11,149.3	\$9,789.8	\$22,532.4	\$21,042.3
Total consolitated revenues	\$11,149.3	\$9,709.0	\$22,332.4	\$21,042.3
Consolidated costs and expenses				
Operating costs and expenses:				
Cost of sales	\$9,458.3	\$8,195.2	\$19,150.8	\$17,861.0
Other operating costs and expenses (1)	586.4	\$72.9	1,090.4	1,116.8
Depreciation, amortization and accretion	289.7	261.3	1,090.4 566.5	515.9
Losses (gains) attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries	5.7	(29.0)		
Non-cash asset impairment charges	27.1	(29.0°) 9.1	38.1	14.5
General and administrative costs	45.5	42.5	95.0	88.8
Total consolidated costs and expenses	\$10,412.7	\$9,052.0	\$20,882.6	\$19,565.5
Total consolitated costs and expenses	ψ10,412.7	ψ9,052.0	Ψ20,002.0	φ19,303.3

(1) Represents cost of operating our plants, pipelines and other fixed assets, excluding depreciation, amortization and accretion charges.

Period-to-period fluctuations in our product sales revenues and related cost of sales amounts are explained in part by changes in energy commodity prices. In general, lower energy commodity prices result in a decrease in our revenues attributable to product sales; however, these lower commodity prices also decrease the associated cost of sales as purchase costs decline. The same correlation would be true in the case of higher energy commodity sales prices and

purchase costs. 36

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12. Related Party Transactions

The following table summarizes our related party transactions for the periods indicated:

	For the ' Months	Three	For the Six Months		
	Ended J	une 30,	Ended June 30		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Revenues – related parties:					
Unconsolidated affiliates	\$6.7	\$25.6	\$12.6	\$56.4	
Costs and expenses - related parties:					
EPCO and affiliates	\$222.9	\$240.1	\$435.6	\$406.1	
Unconsolidated affiliates	29.3	7.2	60.6	12.3	
Total	\$252.2	\$247.3	\$496.2	\$418.4	

The following table summarizes our related party accounts receivable and accounts payable balances at the dates indicated:

	June 30, 2013	December 31, 2012
Accounts receivable - related parties:		
Unconsolidated affiliates	\$19.8	\$ 2.5
Accounts payable – related parties:		
EPCO and affiliates	\$116.3	\$ 102.4
Unconsolidated affiliates	25.7	24.7
Total	\$142.0	\$ 127.1

We believe that the terms and provisions of our related party agreements are fair to us; however, such agreements and transactions may not be as favorable to us as we could have obtained from unaffiliated third parties.

Relationship with EPCO and Affiliates

We have an extensive and ongoing relationship with EPCO and its privately held affiliates (including Enterprise GP, our general partner), which are not a part of our consolidated group of companies. At June 30, 2013, EPCO and its privately held affiliates (including Dan Duncan LLC and certain Duncan family trusts, the beneficiaries of which include the estate of Dan L. Duncan) beneficially owned the following limited partner interests in us:

Number of Units
Beneficially OwnedPercentage of
Total Units
Outstanding340,039,098 (1)37.0%(1)Includes 4,520,431 Class B
units that converted to an equal

number of distribution-bearing common units on August 8, 2013 (see Note 10).

We and Enterprise GP are both separate legal entities apart from each other and apart from EPCO and its other affiliates, with assets and liabilities that are also separate from those of EPCO and its other affiliates. EPCO and its privately held affiliates depend on the cash distributions they receive from us and other investments to fund their other activities and to meet their debt obligations. During the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we paid EPCO and its privately held affiliates cash distributions totaling \$397.5 million and \$369.6 million, respectively.

From time-to-time, EPCO and its privately held affiliates elect to reinvest a portion of the cash distributions they would otherwise receive from us into the purchase of additional common units under our DRIP. See Note 10 for additional information regarding these reinvestments, including an expected reinvestment of up to \$100 million in the aggregate during 2013.

37

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have no employees. All of our operating functions and general and administrative support services are provided by employees of EPCO pursuant to the ASA or by other service providers.

The following table presents our costs and expenses attributable to the ASA and other related party transactions with EPCO for the periods indicated:

	For the	Three	For the Six		
	Months		Months		
	Ended J	une 30,	Ended June 30,		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Operating costs and expenses	\$193.1	\$213.6	\$374.2	\$356.3	
General and administrative expenses	29.8	26.5	61.4	49.8	
Total costs and expenses	\$222.9	\$240.1	\$435.6	\$406.1	

Note 13. Earnings Per Unit

Basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing net income or loss attributable to our limited partners by the weighted-average number of our distribution-bearing units outstanding during a period, which excludes the Designated Units (see Note 10) to the extent such units do not participate in the distributions to be paid with respect to such period.

Diluted earnings per unit is computed by dividing net income or loss attributable to our limited partners by the sum of (i) the weighted-average number of our distribution-bearing units outstanding during a period (as used in determining basic earnings per unit), (ii) the weighted-average number of our Class B units outstanding during a period, (iii) the weighted-average number of Designated Units outstanding during a period and (iv) the number of incremental common units resulting from the assumed exercise of dilutive unit options outstanding during a period (the "incremental option units").

The following table presents our calculation of basic and diluted earnings per unit for the periods indicated:

	For the Three				
	Months	Months		x Months	
	Ended J	une 30	Ended June 30,		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
BASIC EARNINGS PER UNIT					
Numerator:					
Net income attributable to limited partners	\$552.5	\$566.3	\$1,306.0	\$1,217.6	
Denominator:					
Weighted-average number of distribution-bearing common units outstanding	889.1	857.9	885.4	857.3	
Basic earnings per unit:					
Net income attributable to limited partners	\$0.62	\$0.66	\$1.48	\$1.42	
DILUTED EARNINGS PER UNIT					
Numerator:					
Net income attributable to limited partners	\$552.5	\$566.3	\$1,306.0	\$1,217.6	
Denominator:					

Weighted-average number of units outstanding:				
Distribution-bearing common units	889.1	857.9	885.4	857.3
Class B units	4.5	4.5	4.5	4.5
Designated Units	23.7	26.1	23.7	26.1
Incremental option units	1.2	1.4	1.2	1.4
Total	918.5	889.9	914.8	889.3
Diluted earnings per unit:				
Net income attributable to limited partners	\$0.60	\$0.64	\$1.43	\$1.37

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

As part of our normal business activities, we may be named as defendants in legal proceedings, including those arising from regulatory and environmental matters. Although we are insured against various risks to the extent we believe it is prudent, there is no assurance that the nature and amount of such insurance will be adequate, in every case, to fully indemnify us against losses arising from future legal proceedings. We will vigorously defend the partnership in litigation matters.

Management has regular quarterly litigation reviews, including updates from legal counsel, to assess the possible need for accounting recognition and disclosure of these contingencies. We accrue an undiscounted liability for those contingencies where the loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If a range of probable loss amounts can be reasonably estimated and no amount within the range is a better estimate than any other amount, then the minimum amount in the range is accrued.

We do not record a contingent liability when the likelihood of loss is probable but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or when the likelihood of loss is believed to be only reasonably possible or remote. For contingencies where an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible and the impact would be material to our consolidated financial statements, we disclose the nature of the contingency and, where feasible, an estimate of the possible loss or range of loss. Based on a consideration of all relevant known facts and circumstances, we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of any currently pending litigation directed against us will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements either individually at the claim level or in the aggregate.

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, our accruals for litigation contingencies were \$4.9 million and \$4.4 million, respectively, and were recorded in our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as a component of "Other current liabilities." Our evaluation of litigation contingencies is based on the facts and circumstances of each case and predicting the outcome of these matters involves uncertainties. In the event the assumptions we use to evaluate these matters change in future periods or new information becomes available, we may be required to record additional accruals. In an effort to mitigate expenses associated with litigation, we may settle legal proceedings out of court.

Contractual Obligations

<u>Scheduled Maturities of Debt</u>. With the exception of routine fluctuations in the balances of our Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and commercial paper notes, the issuance of Senior Notes HH and II in March 2013 and the scheduled repayment of maturing debt obligations, there have been no significant changes in our consolidated debt obligations since those reported in our 2012 Form 10-K. See Note 9 for additional information regarding our consolidated debt obligations.

<u>Operating Lease Obligations</u>. Consolidated lease and rental expense was \$23.3 million and \$22.7 million during the second quarters of 2013 and 2012, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, consolidated lease and rental expense was \$45.3 million and \$45.1 million, respectively. There have been no material changes in our operating lease commitments since those reported in our 2012 Form 10-K.

<u>Purchase Obligations</u>. There have been no material changes in our consolidated purchase obligations since those reported in our 2012 Form 10-K.

Other Claims

As part of our normal business activities with joint venture partners and certain customers and suppliers, we occasionally make claims against such parties or have claims made against us as a result of disputes related to contractual agreements or similar arrangements. As of June 30, 2013, our contingent claims against such parties were \$41.8 million and claims against us were \$43.4 million. These matters are in various stages of assessment and the ultimate outcome of such disputes cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. With respect to claims against us, we believe that the likelihood of a material loss resulting from such claims is remote. Accordingly, no accruals for loss contingencies related to these matters have been recorded. 39

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15. Insurance Matters

We participate as a named insured in EPCO's insurance program, which provides us with property damage, business interruption and other insurance coverage, the scope and amounts of which we believe are customary and prudent for the nature and extent of our operations. While we believe EPCO maintains adequate insurance coverage on our behalf, insurance may not fully cover every type of damage, interruption or other loss that might occur.

We elected to forego windstorm coverage for our Gulf of Mexico offshore assets during the 2013 Atlantic hurricane season, which extends from June 1 through November 30. The combination of increasingly high deductibles and proposed premiums resulted in such coverage being uneconomic to us. Although EPCO's coverage does not provide any windstorm coverage for our offshore assets during the annual policy period that began on June 1, 2013, producers affiliated with our Independence Hub and Marco Polo platforms will continue to provide certain levels of physical damage windstorm coverage for each of these key offshore assets.

West Storage Claims

We received \$8.8 million of nonrefundable cash insurance proceeds during the six months ended June 30, 2013 attributable to property damage claims we filed in connection with a February 2011 NGL release and fire at the West Storage location of our Mont Belvieu, Texas underground storage facility. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, we collected \$27.7 million of such proceeds. We did not receive any proceeds related to these claims during the second quarter of 2013. We remain in negotiation with our insurance carriers regarding collection of the remaining West Storage claims, which are currently estimated at \$91.9 million.

Operating income during the six months ended June 30, 2013 includes \$8.8 million of gains related to these insurance recoveries. Operating income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 includes \$27.7 million of such gains. To the extent that additional nonrefundable cash insurance proceeds related to this incident are received, we expect to record gains equal to such proceeds.

Note 16. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following table presents the net effect of changes in our operating accounts for the periods indicated:

	For the Six			
	Months			
	Ended June 30,			
	2013 2012			
Decrease (increase) in:				
Accounts receivable - trade	\$(312.6) \$785.5			
Accounts receivable - related parties	(17.2)	35.7		
Inventories	(255.1)	(20.8)		
Prepaid and other current assets	(42.2)	(13.9)		
Other assets	0.8	(53.7)		
Increase (decrease) in:				

Accounts payable – trade	35.3	(45.7)
Accounts payable – related parties	15.0	(141.3)
Accrued product payables	195.7	(880.2)
Accrued interest	2.8	1.0
Other current liabilities	(16.5)	84.1
Other liabilities	(15.2)	(31.0)
Net effect of changes in operating accounts	\$(409.2)	\$(280.3)

We incurred liabilities for construction in progress that had not been paid at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 of \$218.1 million and \$221.7 million, respectively. Such amounts are not included under the caption "Capital expenditures" on the Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows. 40

Table of Contents

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents our cash proceeds from asset sales and insurance recoveries for the periods indicated:

	For the	Six
	Months	
	Ended J	une 30,
	2013	2012
Sale of Energy Transfer Equity common units (see Note 7)	\$	\$1,095.3
Sale of Stratton Ridge-to-Mont Belvieu segment of Seminole Pipeline (see Note 6)	86.9	
Sale of chemical trucking assets (see Note 6)	29.5	
Sale of lubrication oil and specialty chemical distribution assets (see Note 6)	35.3	
Marine transportation assets (see Note 6)	14.9	2.4
Insurance recoveries attributable to West Storage claims (see Note 15)	8.8	27.7
Other cash proceeds	23.8	31.3
Total	\$199.2	\$1,156.7

The following table presents gains (losses) attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries for the periods indicated:

	For the Month Ended 30,	S
	2013	2012
Sale of Energy Transfer Equity common units (see Note 7) (1)	\$	\$68.8
Sale of Stratton Ridge-to-Mont Belvieu segment of Seminole Pipeline (see Note 6) (2)	52.5	
Insurance recoveries attributable to West Storage claims (see Note 15) (2)	8.8	27.7
Sale of lubrication oil and specialty chemical distribution assets (see Note 6) (2)	6.7	
Marine transportation assets (see Note 6) (2)	(6.7)) (3.1)
Sale of chemical trucking assets (see Note 6) (2)	(0.5))
Other gains (losses), net (2)	(2.6)) 6.9
Total	\$58.2	\$100.3

(1) This amount is a component of "Other income" as presented on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations.

(2) These amounts are a component of "Operating costs and expenses" as presented on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Operations.

Note 17. Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

EPO conducts substantially all of our business. Currently, we have no independent operations and no material assets outside those of EPO. Enterprise Products Partners L.P. directly or indirectly owns 100% of EPO.

EPO has issued publicly traded debt securities. Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as the parent company of EPO, guarantees the debt obligations of EPO, with the exception of the remaining debt obligations of TEPPCO. If EPO were to default on any of its guaranteed debt, Enterprise Products Partners L.P. would be responsible for full and unconditional repayment of that obligation. EPO's consolidated subsidiaries have no significant restrictions on their

ability to pay distributions or make loans to Enterprise Products Partners L.P. See Note 9 for additional information regarding our consolidated debt obligations.

41

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet June 30, 2013

	EPO and S	EPO and			Enterprise				
ASSETS	Subsidiary Issuer (EPO)	Other Subsidiaries (Non- guarantor)	Subsidiarie Eliminatior and	is	Consolidated EPO and Subsidiaries	Products Partners L.P.	Eliminations and Adjustments	(Consolidated Fotal
Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents and									
restricted cash Accounts receivable –	\$39.6	\$42.5	\$(10.5)	\$71.6	\$	\$	5	571.6
trade, net Accounts receivable –	1,406.1	3,247.5	(2.1)	4,651.5				4,651.5
related parties Inventories Prepaid and other	292.7 1,170.2	1,375.8 242.2	(1,619.7 (1.0))	48.8 1,411.4		(29.0))	19.8 1,411.4
current assets	240.0	202.8	(17.4)	425.4	0.3			425.7
Total current assets Property, plant and	3,148.6	5,110.8	(1,650.7)	6,608.7	0.3	(29.0))	6,580.0
equipment, net Investments in unconsolidated	1,719.3	23,844.8	2.0		25,566.1				25,566.1
affiliates	29,590.0	2,459.1	(30,110.3)	1,938.8	14,185.1	(14,185.1))	1,938.8
Intangible assets, net	77.7	1,435.5			1,513.2				1,513.2
Goodwill	458.9	1,621.1			2,080.0				2,080.0
Other assets	130.0	74.8	(6.1)	198.7	0.1			198.8
Total assets	\$35,124.5	\$34,546.1	\$(31,765.1)	\$37,905.5	\$14,185.5	\$(14,214.1)) {	537,876.9
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities:									
Current maturities of									
debt	\$540.0	\$	\$		\$ 540.0	\$	\$	S	540.0
Accounts payable – trad Accounts payable –	e 230.4	557.5	(10.5)	777.4				777.4
related parties Accrued product	1,578.1	182.9	(1,619.6)	141.4	29.6	(29.0))	142.0
payables	1,778.3	2,995.3	(3.2)	4,770.4				4,770.4
Accrued interest	303.5	0.1			303.6				303.6
Other current liabilities	71.1	286.3	(17.4)	340.0		(0.3))	339.7
Total current liabilities	4,501.4	4,022.1	(1,650.7)	6,872.8	29.6	(29.3))	6,873.1
Long-term debt	16,414.7	14.9			16,429.6				16,429.6

Edgar Filing: ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L P - Form 10-Q									
Deferred tax liabilities	25.6	16.8	(6.1)	36.3		0.9	37.2	
Other long-term									
liabilities	10.0	174.2			184.2			184.2	
Commitments and									
contingencies									
Equity:									
Partners' and other									
owners' equity	14,172.8	30,244.8	(30,257.5)	14,160.1	14,155.9	(14,160.1)	14,155.9	
Noncontrolling interests		73.3	149.2		222.5		(25.6)	196.9	
	14,								
Total equity	172.8	30,318.1	(30,108.3)	14,382.6	14,155.9	(14,185.7)	14,352.8	
Total liabilities and	••••				* * * * * *		<i>•</i>		
equity	\$35,124.5	\$34,546.1	\$(31,765.1) 3	\$37,905.5	\$14,185.5	\$(14,214.1)	\$37,876.9	
10									
42									

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet December 31, 2012

	EPO and S	ubsidiaries						
	Subsidiary Issuer (EPO)	Other	and	S	Consolidated EPO and Subsidiaries	L.P.	Eliminations and Adjustments	Consolidated Total
ASSETS	(110)	Suuruntor)	rajustinent	5	Substatuties	(Outruintor)	rajustilients	Totul
Current assets:								
Cash and cash								
equivalents and								
restricted cash	\$4.3	\$28.0	\$(12.1)	\$20.2	\$0.2	\$	\$20.4
Accounts receivable -								
trade, net	1,585.2	2,768.7	(3.0)	4,350.9			4,350.9
Accounts receivable -								
related parties	180.5	1,372.8	())	2.5	(0.6)	0.6	2.5
Inventories	853.6	235.6	(0.8)	1,088.4			1,088.4
Prepaid and other								
current assets	154.9	231.8	(5.8)	380.9			380.9
Total current assets	2,778.5	4,636.9	(1,572.5)	5,842.9	(0.4)	0.6	5,843.1
Property, plant and								
equipment, net	1,673.6	23,170.8	2.0		24,846.4			24,846.4
Investments in								
unconsolidated affiliates	28,454.4	1,846.9	(28,906.7)	1,394.6	13,188.0	(13,188.0)	1,394.6
Intangible assets, net	78.5	1,488.3			1,566.8			1,566.8
Goodwill	458.9	1,627.9			2,086.8			2,086.8
Other assets	126.0	71.4	(0.9)		0.2		196.7
Total assets	\$33,569.9	\$32,842.2	\$(30,478.1)	\$35,934.0	\$13,187.8	\$(13,187.4)	\$35,934.4
LIABILITIES AND								
EQUITY								
Current liabilities:								
Current maturities of								
debt	\$1,516.7	\$29.9	\$		\$1,546.6	\$	\$	\$ 1,546.6
Accounts payable – trade	-	549.8			764.4	0.1	Ψ 	764.5
Accounts payable -				,		0.1		
related parties	1,584.2	92.9	(1,550.6)	126.5		0.6	127.1
Accrued product								
payables	1,851.8	2,628.4	(4.0)	4,476.2			4,476.2
Accrued interest	300.1	0.7			300.8			300.8
Other current liabilities	266.5	280.0	(5.8)	540.7		(0.2)	
Total current liabilities	5,746.0	3,581.7	(1,572.5)	7,755.2	0.1	0.4	7,755.7
Long-term debt	14,640.2	15.0		,	14,655.2			14,655.2
Deferred tax liabilities	5.1	17.7	(0.9)	21.9		0.6	22.5

Other long-term							
liabilities	15.6	189.4		205.0			205.0
Commitments and							
contingencies							
Equity:							
Partners' and other							
owners' equity	13,163.0	28,963.7	(28,961.1)	13,165.6	13,187.7	(13,165.6)	13,187.7
Noncontrolling interests		74.7	56.4	131.1		(22.8)	108.3
Total equity	13,163.0	29,038.4	(28,904.7)	13,296.7	13,187.7	(13,188.4)	13,296.0
Total liabilities							
and equity	\$33,569.9	\$32,842.2	\$(30,478.1)	\$35,934.0	\$13,187.8	\$(13,187.4)	\$ 35,934.4
43							

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Three Months Ended June 30, 2013

	EPO and Subsidiaries													
					EPO and				Enterprise					
		Other		S	Subsidiarie	es		ł	Products					
	Subsidiar	y Subsi	diarie	s E	Eliminatio		Consolidate			Elimina	tio	ons		
	Issuer	(Non-	•		nd		EPO and		L.P.	and			Consolida	ted
	(EPO)	guara	ntor)	P	Adjustmer	its	Subsidiaries		Guaranto	-	ner	nts]	Fotal	
Revenues	\$6,491.0	\$ 8,01	5.7	\$	6 (3,357.4)	\$11,149.3	9	S	\$		5	5 11,149.3	
Costs and expenses:														
Operating costs and														
expenses	6,326.6	7,39	98.1		(3,357.5)	10,367.2						10,367.2	2
General and administrative														
costs	7.4	37.4	ŀ				44.8		0.7				45.5	
Total costs and expenses	6,334.0	7,43	35.5		(3,357.5)	10,412.0		0.7				10,412.7	
Equity in income of														
unconsolidated affiliates	612.3	42.9)		(617.6)	37.6		553.2	(553.)	2)	37.6	
Operating income	769.3	623	.1		(617.5)	774.9		552.5	(553.)	2)	774.2	
Other income (expense):														
Interest expense	(199.7)) (0.5))			(200.2)					(200.2)
Other, net	0.1	(0.4))			(0.3)					(0.3)
Total other expense, net	(199.6)) (0.9))			(200.5)					(200.5)
Income before income taxes	569.7	622	.2		(617.5)	574.4		552.5	(553.)	2)	573.7	
Provision for income taxes	(17.5) (2.9))			(20.4)					(20.4)
Net income	552.2	619	.3		(617.5)	554.0		552.5	(553.)	2)	553.3	
Net income attributable to														
noncontrolling interests		(0.4))	(1.3)	(1.7)		0.9			(0.8)
Net income attributable to														
entity	\$552.2	\$618	.9	\$	6 (618.8)	\$ 552.3	9	5 552.5	\$ (552.	3) \$	\$ 552.5	

Enterprise Products Partners L.P.

Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

	EPO and S	Subsidiaries					
			EPO and		Enterprise		
		Other	Subsidiaries		Products		
	Subsidiary	/ Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated	dPartners	Elimination	IS
	Issuer	(Non-	and	EPO and	L.P.	and	Consolidated
	(EPO)	guarantor)	Adjustments	Subsidiaries	(Guaranton)Adjustment	sTotal
Revenues	\$6,033.6	\$ 6,696.0	\$(2,939.8)	\$ 9,789.8	\$	\$	\$ 9,789.8
Costs and expenses: Operating costs and							
expenses	5,864.4	6,083.0	(2,937.9)	9,009.5			9,009.5

General and administrative											
costs	9.1	32.6				41.7		0.8		42.5	
Total costs and expenses	5,873.5	6,115.6)	(2,937.9)	9,051.2		0.8		9,052.0	
Equity in income of											
unconsolidated affiliates	598.8	(51.0)	(536.5)	11.3		567.1	(567.1)	11.3	
Operating income	758.9	529.4		(538.4)	749.9		566.3	(567.1)	749.1	
Other income (expense):											
Interest expense	(185.7)	(0.9)			(186.6)			(186.6)
Other, net		13.2				13.2				13.2	
Total other expense, net	(185.7)	12.3				(173.4)			(173.4)
Income before income taxes	573.2	541.7		(538.4)	576.5		566.3	(567.1)	575.7	
Provision for income taxes	(4.6)	(3.7)			(8.3)		(0.2)	(8.5)
Net income	568.6	538.0		(538.4)	568.2		566.3	(567.3)	567.2	
Net loss (income) attributable	e										
to noncontrolling interests		40.2		(41.7)	(1.5)		0.6	(0.9)
Net income attributable to											
entity	\$568.6	\$ 578.2		\$ (580.1) :	\$ 566.7	9	\$ 566.3	\$ (566.7)	\$ 566.3	

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

	EPO and So	ubs	idiaries										
	Subsidiary Issuer	Sı	ther ubsidiarie Jon-	es	EPO and Subsidiarie Elimination and	ns	Consolidate EPO and] d]	Enterprise Products Partners L.P.	Eliminations		nsolidate	ed
	(EPO)	ğι	uarantor)		Adjustmen	ts	Subsidiaries	. ((Guarantor)	Adjustments	Tot	tal	
Revenues	\$13,846.5	0	15,456.1		\$ (6,770.2				\$	\$		2,532.4	
Costs and expenses:	. ,		,				. ,					,	
Operating costs and													
expenses	13,470.5		14,087.3		(6,770.2)	20,787.6				2	0,787.6	
General and						·							
administrative costs	12.1	:	82.0				94.1		0.9		9	5.0	
Total costs and expenses	13,482.6		14,169.3		(6,770.2)	20,881.7		0.9		2	0,882.6	
Equity in income of													
unconsolidated affiliates	1,359.0	9	94.1		(1,371.0)	82.1		1,306.9	(1,306.9)	8	2.1	
Operating income	1,722.9		1,380.9		(1,371.0)	1,732.8		1,306.0	(1,306.9)	1	,731.9	
Other income (expense):													
Interest expense	(395.0)) ((1.1)			(396.1)			(3	396.1)
Other, net	0.2	((0.6)			(0.4)			((0.4)
Total other expense, net	(394.8)) ((1.7)			(396.5)			(3	396.5)
Income before income													
taxes	1,328.1		1,379.2		(1,371.0)	1,336.3		1,306.0	(1,306.9)	1	,335.4	
Provision for income													
taxes	(22.6)) ((3.9)			(26.5)		(0.3)	(2	26.8)
Net income	1,305.5		1,375.3		(1,371.0)	1,309.8		1,306.0	(1,307.2)	1	,308.6	
Net income attributable													
to noncontrolling													
interests		((0.9)	(3.3)	(4.2)		1.6	(2	2.6)
Net income attributable													
to entity	\$1,305.5	\$	1,374.4		\$(1,374.3)	\$1,305.6		\$ 1,306.0	\$(1,305.6)	\$1	,306.0	

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues

EPO and Su	ıbsidiaries					
		EPO and		Enterprise		
	Other	Subsidiaries		Products		
Subsidiary	Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated	Partners	Eliminations	
Issuer	(Non-	and	EPO and	L.P.	and	Consolidated
(EPO)	guarantor)	Adjustments	Subsidiaries	(Guarantor)	Adjustments	Total
\$13,673.4	\$13,854.5	(6,485.6)	\$21,042.3	\$	\$	\$21,042.3

Operating costs and 13,274.2 12,686.6 (6,484.1) 19,476.7 19,476.7 General and 87.8 1.0 88.8 Total costs and expenses 13,298.7 12,749.9 (6,484.1) 19,564.5 1.0 19,565.5 Equity in income of 11,193.3 27.4 (1,199.5) 21.2 1,218.6 (1,218.6) 21.2 Operating income 1,568.0 1,132.0 (1,201.0) 1,499.0 1,217.6 (1,218.6) 1,498.0 Other income (expense): Interest expense (371.3) (1.8) (373.1) (373.1) (373.1)
General and administrative costs24.563.387.81.088.8Total costs and expenses13,298.712,749.9(6,484.119,564.51.019,565.5Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates1,193.327.4(1,199.521.21,218.6(1,218.621.2Operating income Other income (expense):1,568.01,132.0(1,201.01,499.01,217.6(1,218.61,498.0
administrative costs24.563.387.81.088.8Total costs and expenses13,298.712,749.9(6,484.119,564.51.019,565.5Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates1,193.327.4(1,199.521.21,218.6(1,218.621.2Operating income Other income (expense):1,568.01,132.0(1,201.01,499.01,217.6(1,218.61,498.0
Total costs and expenses 13,298.7 12,749.9 (6,484.1) 19,564.5 1.0 19,565.5 Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates 1,193.3 27.4 (1,199.5) 21.2 1,218.6 (1,218.6) 21.2 Operating income 1,568.0 1,132.0 (1,201.0) 1,499.0 1,217.6 (1,218.6) 1,498.0 Other income (expense): Unit of the second s
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates 1,193.3 27.4 (1,199.5) 21.2 1,218.6 (1,218.6) 21.2 Operating income 1,568.0 1,132.0 (1,201.0) 1,499.0 1,217.6 (1,218.6) 1,498.0 Other income (expense):
unconsolidated affiliates1,193.327.4(1,199.521.21,218.6(1,218.621.2Operating income1,568.01,132.0(1,201.01,499.01,217.6(1,218.61,498.0Other income (expense):
Operating income 1,568.0 1,132.0 (1,201.0 1,499.0 1,217.6 (1,218.6 1,498.0 Other income (expense): .
Other income (expense):
Interest expense $(3713)(18)$ (3731) (3731)
Other, net 0.1 71.8 71.9 71.9
Total other expense, net (371.2) 70.0 (301.2) (301.2)
Income before income
taxes 1,196.8 1,202.0 (1,201.0) 1,197.8 1,217.6 (1,218.6) 1,196.8
Benefit from income
taxes 22.4 3.7 26.1 (0.2) 25.9
Net income 1,219.2 1,205.7 (1,201.0) 1,223.9 1,217.6 (1,218.8) 1,222.7
Net income attributable
to noncontrolling
interests (4.2) (2.0) (6.2) 1.1 (5.1)
Net income attributable
to entity $$1,219.2$ $$1,201.5$ $$(1,203.0)$ $$1,217.7$ $$1,217.6$ $$(1,217.7)$ $$1,217.6$
45

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Three Months Ended June 30, 2013

	EPO an	d Subsidiari	es					
			EPO and		Enterprise	2		
		Other	Subsidiari	ies	Products			
	Subsidi	arSyubsidiarie	esEliminatio	onsConsolidat	edPartners	Elimination	ns	
	Issuer	(Non-	and	EPO and	L.P.	and	Consolida	ated
	(EPO)	guarantor)	Adjustme	ntsSubsidiarie	es (Guaranto	r)Adjustmen	ıtsTotal	
Comprehensive income	\$575.1	\$ 631.6	\$ (617.6) \$ 589.1	\$ 587.6	\$ (588.3) \$ 588.4	
Comprehensive income attributable	;							
to noncontrolling interests		(0.4)	(1.3) (1.7)	0.9	(0.8)
Comprehensive income attributable	;							
to entity	\$575.1	\$ 631.2	\$ (618.9) \$ 587.4	\$ 587.6	\$ (587.4) \$ 587.6	
-			-	-			-	

Enterprise Products Partners L.P.

Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

	EPO an	d Subsidiari	es							
			EPO and		Enterprise					
		Other	Subsidiarie	es	Products					
	Subsidia	bsidiarSubsidiariesEliminationsConsolidatedPartners Eliminations								
	Issuer	(Non-	and	EPO and	L.P.	and	Consolidated			
	(EPO)	guarantor)	Adjustmer	ntsSubsidiarie	s (Guaranto	r)Adjustmei	ntsTotal			
Comprehensive income	\$503.8	\$ 625.9	\$ (538.4) \$ 591.3	\$ 589.4	\$ (590.4) \$ 590.3			
Comprehensive loss (income)										
attributable to noncontrolling										
interests		40.2	(41.7) (1.5))	0.6	(0.9)			
Comprehensive income attributable										
to entity	\$503.8	\$ 666.1	\$ (580.1) \$ 589.8	\$ 589.4	\$ (589.8) \$ 589.4			

Enterprise Products Partners L.P.

Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

	EPO and	Subsidiaries						
			EPO and		Enterprise			
		Other	Subsidiaries		Products			
	Subsidiar	y Subsidiaries	s Eliminations	s Consolidate	dPartners	Eliminations	S	
	Issuer	(Non-	and	EPO and	L.P.	and	Consolida	ated
	(EPO)	guarantor)	Adjustments	Subsidiaries	Guarantor) Adjustments	s Total	
Comprehensive income	\$1,328.1	\$ 1,360.0	\$(1,371.0)	\$ 1,317.1	\$1,313.4	\$(1,314.5)	\$ 1,316.0	
Comprehensive income attributable to								
noncontrolling interests		(0.9)	(3.3)	(4.2)	1.6	(2.6)

91

Comprehensive income attributable to entity

\$1,328.1 \$1,359.1 \$(1,374.3) \$1,312.9 \$1,313.4 \$(1,312.9) \$1,313.4

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

	EPO and S	Subsidiaries						
			EPO and		Enterprise			
		Other	Subsidiaries		Products			
	Subsidiary	Subsidiaries	Eliminations	S Consolidated	dPartners	Eliminations		
	Issuer	(Non-	and	EPO and	L.P.	and	Consolidated	
	(EPO)	guarantor)	Adjustments	Subsidiaries	(Guarantor)) Adjustments	Total	
Comprehensive income	\$1,183.6	\$ 1,274.0	\$(1,201.0)	\$ 1,256.6	\$1,250.3	\$(1,251.5)	\$ 1,255.4	
Comprehensive income attributable to								
noncontrolling interests		(4.2)	(2.0)	(6.2)		1.1	(5.1)	
Comprehensive income								
attributable to entity	\$1,183.6	\$ 1,269.8	\$(1,203.0)	\$ 1,250.4	\$1,250.3	\$(1,250.4)	\$ 1,250.3	
46								

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

	EPO and S	ubsidiaries									
Operating activities:	Subsidiary Issuer (EPO)	Other Subsidiaries (Non- guarantor)	S E a		EPO and	ed	L.P.	a		Consolidat Total	ted
Net income	\$1,305.5	\$1,375.3	\$	\$(1,371.0)	\$ 1.309.8		\$1,306.0	\$	(1,307.2)	\$ 1.308.6	
Reconciliation of net	¢ 1,0 00 10	¢ 1,575.5	Ŷ	, (1,2,110)	¢ 1,20710		¢ 1,200.0	Ψ	(1,507.2)	<i>•</i> 1,000.0	
income to net cash flows											
provided by operating											
activities:											
Depreciation, amortization and											
accretion	69.8	530.0			599.8					599.8	
Equity in income of	07.0	550.0			577.0					577.0	
unconsolidated affiliates	(1,359.0)	(94.1))	1,371.0	(82.1)	(1,306.9)		1,306.9	(82.1)
Distributions received											
from unconsolidated											
affiliates	2,432.2	116.8		(2,429.7)	119.3		1,195.6		(1,195.6)	119.3	
Net effect of changes in											
operating accounts and other operating activities	(744.5)	337.1		1.5	(405.9)	21.6		(30.4)	(414.7)
Net cash flows provided	(711.5)	557.1		1.5	(105.))	21.0		(30.1)	(-1-1.7)
by operating activities	1,704.0	2,265.1		(2,428.2)	1,540.9		1,216.3		(1,226.3)	1,530.9	
Investing activities:											
Capital expenditures,											
net of contributions in aid	(100.0.)	(1.000.1.)			(1.100.1	,				(1.400.4	
of construction costs Proceeds from asset	(129.3)	(1,303.1))		(1,432.4)				(1,432.4)
sales and insurance											
recoveries	12.6	186.6			199.2					199.2	
Other investing	1210	10010									
activities	(1,798.7)	(361.1))	1,590.4	(569.4)	(835.8)		835.8	(569.4)
Cash used in investing											
activities	(1,915.4)	(1,477.6))	1,590.4	(1,802.6)	(835.8)		835.8	(1,802.6)
Financing activities:											
Borrowings under debt agreements	7,064.5				7,064.5					7,064.5	
Repayments of debt	(6,251.7))		(6,281.6)				(6,281.6)
Cash distributions paid	(-,,_,)	()			(-,0110	/				(=,===1.0	,
to partners	(1,226.3)	(2,434.4))	2,434.4	(1,226.3)	(1,171.9)		1,226.3	(1,171.9)
				(4.7)	(4.7)				(4.7)

Cash distributions paid to noncontrolling														
interests Cash contributions														
from noncontrolling														
interests		-			95.9		95.9						95.9	
Net cash proceeds from														
issuance of common units		-							835.4				835.4	
Cash contributions														
from owners	835.8]	1,686.2		(1,686.2)	835.8				(835.8)		
Other financing activities	(192.6) (0.1				(192.5)	(44.2)			(236.7)
Cash provided by	(1)2.0) (0.1				(1)2.5)	(44.2)			(230.7)
(used in) financing														
activities	229.7	((778.0)	839.4		291.1		(380.7)	390.5		300.9	
Net change in cash and														
cash equivalents	18.3	Ç	9.5		1.6		29.4		(0.2)			29.2	
Cash and cash			20.0		(10.1	``	15.0		0.0				16.1	
equivalents, January 1 Cash and cash		4	28.0		(12.1)	15.9		0.2				16.1	
equivalents, June 30	\$18.3	\$	37.5		\$(10.5) 9	\$45.3		\$		\$	¢	\$45.3	
equivalents, June 50	ψ10.2	ψ.	51.5		ψ(10.5) (φ Τ J,J		Ψ -		Ψ -	,	P -rJ.J	
47														

<u>Table of Contents</u> ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Unaudited Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

	EPO and S	ubsidiaries									
Operating activities:	Subsidiary Issuer (EPO)	Other Subsidiaries (Non- guarantor)	s l	and	ns	EPO and	ed	L.P.	Eliminations and djustments	Consolidat Fotal	ed
Net income	\$1,219.2	\$1,205.7	ç	\$(1,201.0)	\$ 1.223.9		\$1,217.6	\$(1,218.8)	\$ 1.222.7	
Reconciliation of net	+ - , ,	+ -)		+ (-,- • - • •	,	+ -,		+ -,	+ (-,)		
income to net cash flows											
provided by operating											
activities:											
Depreciation,											
amortization and accretion	66.4	472.0		(0.7)	537.7				537.7	
Equity in income of	00.4	472.0		(0.7)	551.1				551.1	
unconsolidated affiliates	(1,193.3)	(27.4)	1,199.5		(21.2)	(1,218.6)	1,218.6	(21.2)
Distributions		· · · · ·		,						,	,
received from											
unconsolidated affiliates	1,589.2	40.0		(1,578.7)	50.5		1,082.4	(1,082.4)	50.5	
Net effect of changes in											
operating accounts and	(1.1.10.6)	500 0		(2.4.5	,	(160.0	,	0.0	0.0	(1 5 1 1	
other operating activities	(1,148.6)	722.3		(34.5)	(460.8)	9.2	0.2	(451.4)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities	532.9	2,412.6		(1,615.4)	1,330.1		1,090.6	(1,082.4)	1,338.3	
Investing activities:	552.9	2,412.0		(1,015.4)	1,550.1		1,090.0	(1,082.4)	1,556.5	
Capital expenditures,											
net of contributions in aid											
of construction costs	(83.5)	(1,719.6))			(1,803.1)			(1,803.1)
Proceeds from asset											
sales and insurance											
recoveries	1,104.8	51.9				1,156.7				1,156.7	
Other investing activities	(061.0)	(010	`	040.4		(102.4	`	(60.1)	60.4	(102.4)
Cash provided by (used	(961.9)	(01.9)	940.4		(105.4)	(60.4)	60.4	(103.4)
in) investing activities	59.4	(1,749.6))	940.4		(749.8)	(60.4)	60.4	(749.8)
Financing activities:	5711	(1,71).0	,	21011		(715.0	,	(00.1)	00.1	(71)10	,
Borrowings under debt											
agreements	2,414.6					2,414.6				2,414.6	
Repayments of debt	(1,881.5)	(9.5)			(1,891.0)			(1,891.0)
Cash distributions paid	(1.000	(1 EO C O)				(1.000 :		(1.0.00.0.5)	1 000 1	(1.0.50.5	
to partners	(1,082.4)	(1,586.9))	1,586.9	`	(1,082.4)	(1,068.6)	1,082.4	(1,068.6)
				(8.1)	(8.1)			(8.1)

Cash distributions paid to noncontrolling interests														
Cash contributions														
from noncontrolling														
interests					5.9		5.9						5.9	
Net cash proceeds from														
issuance of common units									61.5				61.5	
Cash contributions														
from owners	60.4		946.4		(946.4)	60.4				(60.4)		
Other financing														
activities	(85.0)					(85.0)	(23.1))			(108.1)
Cash used in financing														
activities	(573.9)	(650.0)	638.3		(585.6)	(1,030.2))	1,022.0		(593.8)
Net change in cash and														
cash equivalents	18.4		13.0		(36.7)	(5.3)					(5.3)
Cash and cash														
equivalents, January 1	9.7		21.3		(11.2)	19.8						19.8	
Cash and cash														
equivalents, June 30	\$28.1		\$34.3		\$(47.9) 3	\$ 14.5		\$	\$			\$ 14.5	

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The following information should be read in conjunction with our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying Notes included in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes, together with our discussion and analysis of financial position and results of operations, included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, as filed on March 1, 2013 (the "2012 Form 10-K"). Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") in the United States ("U.S.").

Key References Used in this Quarterly Report

Unless the context requires otherwise, references to "we," "us," "our," "Enterprise" or "Enterprise Products Partners" are intended to mean the business and operations of Enterprise Products Partners L.P. and its consolidated subsidiaries. References to "EPO" mean Enterprise Products Operating LLC, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Enterprise, and its consolidated subsidiaries, through which Enterprise Products Partners L.P. conducts its business. Enterprise is managed by its general partner, Enterprise Products Holdings LLC ("Enterprise GP"), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dan Duncan LLC, a Texas limited liability company.

The membership interests of Dan Duncan LLC are owned of record by a voting trust, the current trustees ("DD LLC Trustees") of which are: (i) Randa Duncan Williams, who is also a director and Chairman of the Board of Enterprise GP; (ii) Dr. Ralph S. Cunningham, who is also a director of Enterprise GP; and (iii) Richard H. Bachmann, who is also a director of Enterprise GP. Each of the DD LLC Trustees also currently serves as one of the three managers of Dan Duncan LLC.

References to "EPCO" mean Enterprise Products Company, a Texas corporation, and its privately held affiliates. A majority of the outstanding voting capital stock of EPCO is owned of record by a voting trust, the current trustees ("EPCO Trustees") of which are: (i) Ms. Williams, who also serves as Chairman of EPCO; (ii) Dr. Cunningham, who also serves as a Vice Chairman of EPCO; and (iii) Mr. Bachmann, who also serves as the President and Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") of EPCO. Each of the EPCO Trustees is also a director of EPCO.

As generally used in the energy industry and in this quarterly report, the acronyms below have the following meanings:

/d	= per day	MMBbls	= million barrels
BBtus	= billion British thermal units	MMBPD	= million barrels per day
Bcf	= billion cubic feet	MMBtus	= million British thermal units
BPD	= barrels per day	MMcf	= million cubic feet
MBPD	= thousand barrels per day	TBtus	= trillion British thermal units

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains various forward-looking statements and information that are based on our beliefs and those of our general partner, as well as assumptions made by us and information currently available to us. When used in this document, words such as "anticipate," "project," "expect," "plan," "seek," "goal," "estimate," "forecast," "intend," "could," "should," "would," "will," "believe," "may," "potential" and similar expressions and statements regarding our plans and objectives for future operations are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Although we and our general partner believe that our expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, neither we nor our general partner can give any assurances that such expectations will

prove to be correct. Forward-looking statements are subject to a variety of risks, uncertainties and assumptions as described in more detail under "Risk Factors" within Part I, Item 1A included in our 2012 Form 10-K. If one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, projected or expected. You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements in this quarterly report speak only as of the filing date hereof. Except as required by federal and state securities laws, we undertake no obligation 49

Table of Contents

to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or any other reason.

Overview of Business

We are a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership, the common units of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the ticker symbol "EPD." We were formed in April 1998 to own and operate certain natural gas liquids ("NGLs") related businesses of EPCO and are now a leading North American provider of midstream energy services to producers and consumers of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil, refined products and petrochemicals.

Our integrated midstream energy asset network links producers of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil from some of the largest supply basins in the U.S., Canada and Gulf of Mexico with domestic consumers and international markets. Our midstream energy operations include: natural gas gathering, treating, processing, transportation and storage; NGL transportation, fractionation, storage, and import and export terminals (including LPG); crude oil gathering, transportation and services; and a marine transportation business that operates primarily on the U.S. inland and Intracoastal Waterway systems and in the Gulf of Mexico. Our assets include approximately 50,000 miles of onshore and offshore pipelines; 200 MMBbls of storage capacity for NGLs, petrochemicals, refined products and crude oil; and 14 Bcf of natural gas storage capacity. In addition, our asset portfolio includes 24 natural gas processing plants, 21 NGL and propylene fractionators, six offshore hub platforms located in the Gulf of Mexico, a butane isomerization complex, NGL import and export terminals, and octane enhancement and high-purity isobutylene production facilities.

We conduct substantially all of our business through EPO and are owned 100% by our limited partners from an economic perspective. Enterprise GP manages our partnership and owns a non-economic general partner interest in us. Like many publicly traded partnerships, we have no employees. All of our management, administrative and operating functions are performed by employees of EPCO pursuant to an administrative services agreement or by other service providers.

We have five reportable business segments: (i) NGL Pipelines & Services; (ii) Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services; (iii) Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services; (iv) Offshore Pipelines & Services; and (v) Petrochemical & Refined Products Services. For information regarding our business segments, see Note 11 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

Significant Recent Developments

The following information highlights significant commercial and operational developments since January 1, 2013 through the date of this filing (August 8, 2013). For information regarding recent offerings of our equity and debt securities and the expansion of our bank credit facilities, see "Liquidity and Capital Resources" within this Part I, Item 2.

Formation of Joint Venture to Own Two New NGL Fractionators at Mont Belvieu Complex

In June 2013, we formed a joint venture, Enterprise EF78 LLC, with Western Gas Partners, LP ("Western Gas"), an affiliate of Anadarko Petroleum Corporation, involving two NGL fractionators that are under construction at our complex in Mont Belvieu, Texas (i.e., NGL fractionators seven and eight). We own 75% of the joint venture's membership interests and consolidate the joint venture. Western Gas acquired a 25% noncontrolling interest in the joint venture for an initial contribution of \$90.2 million, which is reflected as a contribution from noncontrolling interests on our Unaudited Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2013. NGL

fractionators seven and eight are expected to begin operations in the fourth quarter of 2013 and, as designed, have a combined fractionation capacity of approximately 170 MBPD of NGLs. 50

Table of Contents

Plans to Develop Refined Products Export Facilities on Texas Gulf Coast

In May 2013, we announced the development of two refined products export facilities, one in Beaumont, Texas and another on the Houston Ship Channel, to meet growing demand for additional refined products export capability on the U.S. Gulf Coast. Export service at our Beaumont marine terminal is expected to begin during the first quarter of 2014 and initially accommodate Panamax class vessels, followed in mid-2014 by completion of our expanded marine terminal on the Houston Ship Channel, which is being designed to handle up to Aframax class vessels. Panamax and Aframax class vessels are both medium-sized tanker ships; however, Panamax vessels are designed to be able to transit the existing lock chambers of the Panama Canal. These new export facilities will complement our existing refined products pipelines, storage and terminal facilities in southeast Texas and enable us to provide customers with improved access to international markets.

Plans to Expand Crude Oil Storage and Distribution Infrastructure Serving Southeast Texas

Historically, Southeast Texas refineries have been primarily supplied by waterborne imports of crude oil. With the success of North America producers, crude oil from the Eagle Ford, Permian, Midcontinent, Bakken and Canada are flowing into Southeast Texas and displacing waterborne crude oil imports. As production from these regions continues to grow, we expect a significant increase in crude oil deliveries to the U.S. Gulf Coast market, which currently lacks sufficient storage capacity and has an inadequate distribution system for handling these varying grades of domestic crude oil.

In response, we announced plans in May 2013 to significantly expand our crude oil storage and distribution infrastructure serving the Southeast Texas refinery market. This planned expansion involves the construction of approximately 4.0 MMBbls of combined new crude oil storage capacity in the Houston, Texas area, including additional storage capacity at our Enterprise Crude Houston ("ECHO") storage facility. Also, we plan to construct 55 miles of associated pipelines to directly connect ECHO with several major refineries in the Southeast Texas market. The expansion would be completed in phases with final completion expected in the fourth quarter of 2014.

Upon completion, we will be able to provide Southeast Texas refiners with an integrated system featuring supply diversification, significant storage capabilities and a high capacity distribution system that will be connected via pipeline to refineries having an aggregate capacity of approximately 3.6 MMBPD. In addition, ECHO, which is expected to have over 6.0 MMBbls of crude oil storage capacity following the expansion, will have access to our marine terminal at Morgan's Point on the Houston Ship Channel.

Plans to Build Gulf Coast Ethane Pipeline

In March 2013, we announced the receipt of transportation commitments to support development of a new 270-mile pipeline system, the Aegis Pipeline, that will deliver ethane to petrochemical plants in the U.S. Gulf Coast region. The Aegis Pipeline will originate at our Mont Belvieu, Texas storage complex and have the capacity to transport purity ethane volumes to various petrochemical customers in Texas and Louisiana. The Aegis Pipeline is expected to begin commercial operations in 2014.

Operations Begin at Expanded LPG Export Facility

In March 2013, we completed an expansion project at our Houston Ship Channel LPG export terminal thereby increasing our capability to load propane, butane and isobutane (collectively, "LPG") cargoes. This expansion project increased the terminal's fully refrigerated export loading capacity for low-ethane propane from almost 4 MMBbls per month to approximately 7.5 MMBbls per month.

Oiltanking Partners, L.P. ("Oiltanking") leases to us the site upon which our LPG export terminal facility is located. In March 2013, we executed an amended terminal service agreement with Oiltanking that provides us with additional operating flexibility, including an increase in the number of docks available to load LPG cargoes. The amended terminal service agreement extends to 2026. Access to these additional docks could support further expansions of the export facility. We are currently evaluating an additional expansion project that could increase our propane export capacity to approximately 10 MMBbls per month and begin service as soon as the beginning of 2015.

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

Summarized Consolidated Income Statement Data

The following table summarizes the key components of our results of operations for the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

	For the Thr	ee					
	Months		For the Six Months				
	Ended June	e 30,	Ended June	2 30,			
	2013	2012	2013	2012			
Revenues	\$11,149.3	\$9,789.8	\$22,532.4	\$21,042.3			
Costs and expenses:							
Operating costs and expenses:							
Cost of sales	9,458.3	8,195.2	19,150.8	17,861.0			
Other operating costs and expenses	586.4	572.9	1,090.4	1,116.8			
Depreciation, amortization and accretion	289.7	261.3	566.5	515.9			
Losses (gains) attributable to asset sales and							
insurance recoveries	5.7	(29.0)	(58.2)	(31.5)			
Non-cash asset impairment charges	27.1	9.1	38.1	14.5			
Total operating costs and expenses	10,367.2	9,009.5	20,787.6	19,476.7			
General and administrative costs	45.5	42.5	95.0	88.8			
Total costs and expenses	10,412.7	9,052.0	20,882.6	19,565.5			
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates	37.6	11.3	82.1	21.2			
Operating income	774.2	749.1	1,731.9	1,498.0			
Interest expense	(200.2)	(186.6)	(396.1)	(373.1)			
Other, net	(0.3)	13.2	(0.4)	71.9			
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes	(20.4)	(8.5)	(26.8)	25.9			
Net income	553.3	567.2	1,308.6	1,222.7			
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	(0.8)	(0.9)	(2.6)	(5.1)			
Net income attributable to limited partners	\$552.5	\$566.3	\$1,306.0	\$1,217.6			

Consolidated Revenues by Business Segment

The following table presents each business segment's contribution to revenues (net of eliminations and adjustments) for the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

	For the Th Months Ended Jun		For the Siz Ended Jun	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
NGL Pipelines & Services:				
Sales of NGLs and related products	\$3,235.9	\$3,133.9	\$6,901.5	\$7,249.2
Midstream asset services	269.0	198.6	554.4	437.8
Total	3,504.9	3,332.5	7,455.9	7,687.0
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services:				
Sales of natural gas	723.9	510.8	1,363.4	1,083.4
Midstream services	233.6	209.6	471.8	470.6
Total	957.5	720.4	1,835.2	1,554.0
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services:				

Sales of crude oil	5,057.4	4,174.0	9,800.2	8,621.6	
Midstream asset services	72.1	14.7	122.5	40.7	
Total	5,129.5	4,188.7	9,922.7	8,662.3	
Offshore Pipelines & Services:					
Sales of natural gas	0.1		0.2	0.1	
Sales of crude oil	(0.1)		2.2	1.4	
Midstream asset services	41.3	49.0	81.5	103.6	
Total	41.3	49.0	83.9	105.1	
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services:					
Sales of petrochemicals and refined products	1,334.2	1,316.8	2,881.4	2,668.0	
Midstream asset services	181.9	182.4	353.3	365.9	
Total	1,516.1	1,499.2	3,234.7	3,033.9	
Total consolidated revenues	\$11,149.3	\$9,789.8	\$22,532.4	\$21,042.3	
50					

Table of Contents

Selected Energy Commodity Price Data

The following table presents index prices for natural gas, crude oil and selected NGL and petrochemical products for the periods indicated:

	Natural			Normal		Natural	Polymer Grade	Refinery Grade	WTI Crude	LLS Crude
	Gas,	Ethane,	Propane,	Butane,	Isobutane,	Gasoline,	Propylene,	Propylene,	Oil,	Oil,
	\$/MMBtu	\$/gallon	\$/gallon	\$/gallon	\$/gallon	\$/gallon	\$/pound	\$/pound	\$/barrel	\$/barrel
	(1)	(2)	(2)	(2)	(2)	(2)	(3)	(3)	(4)	(4)
2012 by										
quarter:										
1st Quarter	\$ 2.72	\$ 0.56	\$ 1.26	\$ 1.93	\$ 2.04	\$ 2.39	\$ 0.69	\$ 0.60	\$102.93	\$119.59
2nd Quarter	\$ 2.21	\$ 0.40	\$ 0.98	\$ 1.62	\$ 1.75	\$ 2.05	\$ 0.66	\$ 0.51	\$93.49	\$108.47
3rd Quarter	\$ 2.80	\$ 0.34	\$ 0.89	\$ 1.44	\$ 1.62	\$ 2.01	\$ 0.51	\$ 0.37	\$92.22	\$109.40
4th Quarter	\$ 3.41	\$ 0.28	\$ 0.88	\$ 1.64	\$ 1.82	\$ 2.15	\$ 0.56	\$ 0.48	\$88.18	\$109.43
2012 Averages	\$ 2.79	\$ 0.40	\$ 1.00	\$ 1.65	\$ 1.81	\$ 2.15	\$ 0.60	\$ 0.49	\$94.20	\$111.72
2013 by										
quarter:										
1st Quarter	\$ 3.34	\$ 0.26	\$ 0.86	\$ 1.58	\$ 1.65	\$ 2.23	\$ 0.75	\$ 0.65	\$94.37	\$113.93
2nd Quarter	\$ 4.10	\$ 0.27	\$ 0.91	\$ 1.24	\$ 1.27	\$ 2.04	\$ 0.63	\$ 0.53	\$94.22	\$104.63
2013 Averages	\$ 3.72	\$ 0.27	\$ 0.89	\$ 1.41	\$ 1.46	\$ 2.14	\$ 0.69	\$ 0.59	\$94.30	\$109.28

(1) Natural gas prices are based on Henry-Hub Inside FERC commercial index prices as reported by Platts, which is a division of McGraw Hill Financial, Inc.

(2) NGL prices for ethane, propane, normal butane, isobutane and natural gasoline are based on Mont Belvieu Non-TET commercial index prices as reported by Oil Price Information Service.

(3) Polymer-grade propylene prices represent average contract pricing for such product as reported by Chemical Market Associates, Inc. ("CMAI"). Refinery grade propylene prices represent weighted-average spot prices for such product as reported by CMAI.

(4) Crude oil prices are based on commercial index prices for West Texas Intermediate ("WTI") as measured on the New York Mercantile Exchange ("NYMEX") and for Louisiana Light Sweet ("LLS") as reported by Platts.

Period-to-period fluctuations in our consolidated revenues and cost of sales amounts are explained in large part by changes in energy commodity prices. Energy commodity prices fluctuate for a variety of reasons, including supply and demand imbalances and geopolitical tensions. The following is a discussion of period-to-period changes in key commodity prices affecting our results of operations:

The weighted-average indicative market price for NGLs (based on prices for such products at Mont Belvieu, Texas, which is the primary industry hub for domestic NGL production) was \$0.95 per gallon during the second quarter of 2013 versus \$1.09 per gallon during the second quarter of 2012 – a 13% quarter-to-quarter decrease. The weighted-average indicative market price for NGLs for the first six months of 2013 was \$0.99 per gallon compared to \$1.22 per gallon during the first six months of 2012 – a 19% period-to-period decrease. Ethane accounts for the largest volume of NGLs extracted from the natural gas stream (approximately 40% of NGLs produced from natural gas processing and fractionation operations). As a result of producers allocating more of their capital budgets to developing NGL-rich natural gas shale plays and their success in extracting such resources, ethane production has increased more rapidly than the ethylene industry's current capability to consume the increase in supplies. This oversupply situation has contributed to a significant decrease in average ethane prices since the beginning of 2012.

We believe this ethane oversupply may generally persist until ethylene producers increase their capacity to consume additional ethane feedstock volumes through plant modifications, expansions and the completion of recently announced new ethylene plants. For example, CP Chemical announced in December 2011 that it expects to build a 1.5 million metric tons per year ethylene plant in Cedar Bayou, Texas by 2017. Likewise, Formosa Plastics announced in March 2012 that it expects to build an 800 thousand metric tons per year ethylene plant along the U.S. Gulf Coast by 2016/2017. Also, Dow Chemical announced in April 2012 that it expects to build a 1.5 million metric tons per year ethylene plant along the U.S. Gulf Coast by 2017. Collectively, these and other announced petrochemical plant construction and expansion projects are expected to consume between 600 MBPD and 750 MBPD of ethane supplies when completed. However, in the near term and in the absence of such major plant construction projects being completed, the current ethane oversupply situation may result in volatile ethane prices and prolonged periods of ethane rejection by producers and natural gas processors in an effort to balance supply and demand. This could lower the 53

Table of Contents

value of our equity NGL production and reduce the volumes that would otherwise be handled by our NGL fractionators and pipelines.

The market price of natural gas (as measured at the Henry Hub in Louisiana) averaged \$4.10 per MMBtu during the second quarter of 2013 versus \$2.21 per MMBtu during the second quarter of 2012 – an 86% quarter-to-quarter increase. The Henry Hub market price of natural gas for the first six months of 2013 averaged \$3.72 per MMBtu \$compared to \$2.47 per MMBtu during the first six months of 2012 – a 51% period-to-period increase. In general, the period-to-period increase in prices is due to higher demand for natural gas for power generation and as a heating fuel. Natural gas prices (Henry Hub) continue to fluctuate below their 2011 and 2010 averages of \$4.04 per MMBtu and \$4.39 per MMBtu, respectively.

The market price of WTI crude oil (as measured on the NYMEX) averaged \$94.22 per barrel during the second quarter of 2013 compared to \$93.49 per barrel during the second quarter of 2012. The NYMEX market price of WTI crude oil for the first six months of 2013 averaged \$94.30 per barrel compared to \$98.21 per barrel during the first six months of 2012. As a result of our recent crude oil pipeline infrastructure improvements, we have greater \$ access to U.S. Gulf Coast refiners. Typically, these refining customers purchase crude oil based on LLS prices, which are significantly higher than WTI prices. Although lower quarter-to-quarter, LLS prices averaged \$104.63 per barrel during the second quarter of 2013 compared to \$108.47 per barrel during the second quarter of 2012. LLS prices averaged \$109.28 per barrel during the first six months 2013 compared to \$114.03 per barrel during the first six months of 2012.

A decrease in our consolidated marketing revenues due to lower energy commodity sales prices may not generate a decrease in gross operating margin or cash available for distribution, since our consolidated cost of sales amounts would also be lower due to comparable decreases in the purchase prices of the underlying energy commodities. The same correlation would be true in the case of higher energy commodity sales prices and purchase costs.

We attempt to mitigate any commodity price exposure through our hedging activities as well as through converting keepwhole and similar contracts to fee-based arrangements. For information regarding our commodity hedging activities, see Note 4 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

54

Table of Contents

Consolidated Income Statement Highlights

The following information highlights significant changes in our comparative income statement amounts and the primary drivers of such changes:

Revenues for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$1.36 billion when compared to the second quarter of 2012. Revenues from the marketing of NGLs, crude oil and refined products increased a combined \$1.17 billion quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher sales volumes. Revenues from the marketing of natural gas increased \$213.2 million primarily due to higher natural gas prices quarter-to-quarter. Revenues from the marketing of petrochemical products decreased \$167.0 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to lower sales prices, which accounted for an \$85.8 million decrease, and lower sales volumes, which accounted for an \$81.2 million decrease. Revenues from midstream asset services increased \$143.6 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to contributions from our recently constructed assets in the Eagle Ford Shale supply basin (e.g., our new Yoakum natural gas processing plant and Eagle Ford NGL and crude oil pipelines) and at our Mont Belvieu complex.

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, revenues increased \$1.49 billion when compared to the six months ended June 30, 2012. Revenues from the marketing of crude oil and refined products increased a combined \$1.42 billion period-to-period primarily due to higher sales volumes. Revenues from the marketing of natural gas increased \$280.1 million period-to-period primarily due to higher sales prices. Revenues from the marketing of NGLs decreased \$347.7 million period-to-period due to lower NGL sales prices, which accounted for a \$1.66 billion decrease, partially offset by higher sales volumes, which accounted for a \$1.31 billion increase. Revenues from the marketing of petrochemical products decreased \$30.9 million period-to-period primarily due to lower sales volumes. Revenues from midstream asset services increased \$164.9 million period-to-period primarily due to contributions from our recently constructed assets in the Eagle Ford Shale supply basin and at our Mont Belvieu complex.

Total operating costs and expenses for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$1.36 billion when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to a \$1.26 billion increase in our cost of sales amounts. The cost of sales associated with our marketing of NGLs, crude oil and refined products increased \$1.14 billion quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher sales volumes. Cost of sales associated with the marketing of natural gas increased \$197.5 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher natural gas prices. Cost of sales associated with our marketing of petrochemical products decreased \$78.8 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to lower purchase prices. Other operating costs and expenses increased \$13.5 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to the addition of operating costs of newly constructed assets.

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, total operating costs and expenses increased \$1.31 billion when compared to the same period in 2012 primarily due to a \$1.29 billion increase in cost of sales. The cost of sales associated with our marketing of crude oil and refined products increased \$1.22 billion period-to-period primarily due to higher sales volumes. Cost of sales associated with our marketing of natural gas increased \$213.3 million period-to-period primarily due to higher sales prices. Cost of sales associated with the marketing of NGLs decreased \$98.4 million period-to-period due to lower NGL sales prices, which accounted for a \$1.33 billion decrease, partially offset by higher sales volumes, which accounted for a \$1.23 billion increase. Cost of sales associated with our marketing of petrochemical products decreased \$45.7 million primarily due to lower sales volumes. Other operating costs and expenses decreased \$26.4 million period-to-period primarily due to the sale of assets, which accounted for a \$53.5 million decrease, partially offset by the addition of operating costs of newly constructed assets.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion in operating costs and expenses for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$28.4 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 and \$50.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 when compared to the same six-month period in 2012. These increases were primarily due to recently constructed assets being placed into service since the second quarter of 2012.

Losses attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries in operating costs and expenses were \$5.7 million during the second quarter of 2013 compared to gains of \$29.0 million during the second quarter of 2012. The \$34.7 million quarter-to-quarter change is primarily due to \$27.7 million of gains related to nonrefundable insurance proceeds we received during the second quarter of 2012. These proceeds were attributable to property damage claims we filed in connection with the February 2011 NGL release and fire at the West Storage location of 55

Table of Contents

our Mont Belvieu, Texas underground storage facility. We did not receive any such proceeds during the second quarter of 2013; however, we remain in negotiations with our insurance carriers for collection of the remaining West Storage claims, which are currently estimated at \$91.9 million. To the extent that additional nonrefundable cash insurance proceeds related to this incident are received, we expect to record gains equal to such proceeds.

We recorded gains attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries of \$58.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$31.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. In March 2013, we sold the Stratton Ridge-to-Mont Belvieu segment of the Seminole Pipeline, along with a related storage cavern, and recognized a \$52.5 million gain on the sale. In addition, we recognized \$8.8 million of gains attributable to the receipt of nonrefundable cash insurance proceeds related to our West Storage claims during the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$27.7 million of such gains for the six months ended June 30, 2012.

We recorded \$27.1 million and \$9.1 million of non-cash asset impairment charges during the second quarter of 2013 and 2012, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, we recorded \$38.1 million of such charges compared to \$14.5 million for the same period in 2012. Our non-cash asset impairment charges during the six months ended June 30, 2013 are primarily related to the abandonment of certain crude oil pipeline segments in Texas and Oklahoma, certain refined products terminal and storage assets in southeast Texas and an NGL storage cavern in Arizona. For additional information regarding our asset impairment charges, see Note 4 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

General and administrative costs increased \$3.0 million for the second quarter of 2013 and \$6.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 when compared to the same respective periods in 2012. These increases were primarily due to higher employee compensation expenses.

Equity income from our unconsolidated affiliates increased \$26.3 million for the second quarter of 2013 and \$60.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 when compared to the same respective periods in 2012. These increases were primarily due to increased earnings from our investments in crude oil pipeline joint ventures.

Interest expense for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$13.6 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012. Likewise, interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2013 increased \$23.0 million when compared to the same six-month period in 2012. These increases were primarily due to interest costs associated with assets placed into service since the second quarter of 2012 being recognized in earnings as opposed to being capitalized during construction. The \$13.6 million quarter-to-quarter increase in expense was largely due to assets being placed into service, which accounted for a \$23.7 million increase, partially offset by the effects of lower interest rates, which accounted for an \$11.0 million decrease. The \$23.0 million period-to-period increase in expense was also largely due to assets being placed into service, which resulted in a \$50.3 million increase, partially offset by the effects of lower interest of lower interest rates, which accounted for a \$27.7 million decrease.

Our average debt principal balance for the second quarter of 2013 was \$17.15 billion compared to \$14.80 billion for the second quarter of 2012. With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, our average debt principal balance was \$16.90 billion compared to \$14.66 billion for the same period in 2012. In general, our debt principal balances have increased over time due to the financing of our capital spending program. For a discussion of our consolidated debt obligations and capital spending program, see "Liquidity and Capital Resources" within this Item 2. On a weighted-average basis, the interest rates we paid on our consolidated debt were 5.4% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 5.9% for the three and six months ended June 20, 2012.

Other income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 reflects \$15.5 million and \$68.8 million, respectively, of aggregate gains we recorded in connection with our sale of common units of Energy Transfer Equity, L.P. (together with its subsidiaries, "Energy Transfer Equity"). For additional information regarding our former investment in Energy Transfer Equity, see Note 7 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included

under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

Provision for income taxes for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$11.9 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to Texas Margin Tax accruals. In June 2013, the State of Texas enacted certain changes to the Texas Margin Tax which lowered the tax rate and expanded the scope of depreciation deductions. As a result of these changes, current income tax expense decreased \$7.2 million and our deferred 56

income tax expense (related to book/tax depreciation timing differences) increased \$20.3 million, for a net \$13.1 million expense in the second quarter of 2013.

We recognized a net income tax expense of \$26.8 million for the first six months of 2013 compared to a net income tax benefit of \$25.9 million for the same period in 2012. The \$52.7 million period-to-period change is primarily due to (i) a \$46.5 million benefit recorded in the first quarter of 2012 related to the conversion of certain of our subsidiaries to limited liability companies and (ii) the \$13.1 million of expense recorded in June 2013 related to the Texas Margin Tax (as discussed above).

Business Segment Highlights

Total segment gross operating margin was \$1.14 billion for the second quarter of 2013 compared to \$1.03 billion for the second quarter of 2012. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, total segment gross operating margin was \$2.37 billion and \$2.09 billion, respectively.

The following information highlights significant changes in our comparative segment results (i.e., gross operating margin amounts) and the primary drivers of such changes. The selected volume statistics presented in the tabular information for each segment are reported on a net basis, taking into account our ownership interests in certain joint ventures, and reflect the periods in which we owned an interest in such operations. These statistics reflect volumes for newly constructed assets from the dates such assets were placed into service and for purchased assets from the date of acquisition.

We evaluate segment performance based on the non-GAAP financial measure of gross operating margin. For information regarding this financial metric, see "Other Items – Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures" within this Part I, Item 2.

All activities included in our former sixth reportable business segment, Other Investments, ceased on January 18, 2012, which was the date we discontinued using the equity method to account for our previously held investment in Energy Transfer Equity. Our equity earnings from this investment were \$2.4 million for the first quarter of 2012.

<u>NGL Pipelines & Services</u>. The following table presents segment gross operating margin and selected volumetric data for the NGL Pipelines & Services segment for the periods indicated (dollars in millions, volumes as noted):

	For the Three			
	Months		For the Six Month	
	Ended June 30,		Ended Jun	ie 30,
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Segment gross operating margin:				
Natural gas processing and related NGL marketing activities	\$263.9	\$338.8	\$533.5	\$760.5
NGL pipelines and related storage	187.8	157.8	420.0	326.2
NGL fractionation	93.2	69.2	183.9	134.0
Total	\$544.9	\$565.8	\$1,137.4	\$1,220.7
Selected volumetric data:				
Equity NGL production (MBPD) (1)	118	96	120	104
Fee-based natural gas processing (MMcf/d) (2)	4,581	4,232	4,553	4,183
NGL transportation volumes (MBPD)	2,744	2,440	2,641	2,409
NGL fractionation volumes (MBPD)	678	654	693	638

(1) Represents the NGL volumes we earn and take title to in connection with our processing activities.

(2) Volumes reported correspond to the revenue streams earned by our gas plants. The period-to-period increases in fee-based processing volumes are primarily due to (i) the start-up of our Yoakum gas plant in May 2012 and (ii) changes in processing agreements whereby producers are electing to process more of their natural gas on a fee basis in order to retain NGLs extracted from their natural gas streams, which, in turn, also lowers our equity NGL production from plants subject to such arrangements.

57

Table of Contents

Natural gas processing and related NGL marketing activities

Gross operating margin from our natural gas processing and related NGL marketing activities decreased \$74.9 million in the second quarter of 2013 when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to lower results from our Rocky Mountain gas plants. Gross operating margin from our Meeker natural gas processing plant in Colorado decreased \$55.4 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to lower processing margins in the second quarter of 2013. In general, natural gas processing margins are lower in 2013 compared to 2012 due to lower overall NGL prices, primarily ethane and propane, and higher natural gas prices in each respective period. Gross operating margin from our Pioneer natural gas processing plant in Wyoming decreased \$27.9 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to the effects of ethane rejection and overall production declines, both of which lowered equity NGL production during 2013 when compared to 2012. In general, producers utilizing our Pioneer facility have curtailed their drilling programs in the Jonah and Pinedale production fields in response to low prices.

Gross operating margin from our South Texas natural gas processing plants increased \$8.7 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher volumes, which accounted for a \$15.7 million increase, higher processing fees, which resulted in a \$5.4 million increase, partially offset by lower processing margins, which accounted for a \$13.4 million decrease. These gas plants continue to benefit from NGL-rich natural gas production from the Eagle Ford Shale and the start-up of our Yoakum processing plant. The first phase (or "train") of our new cryogenic natural gas processing plant at Yoakum, Texas commenced operations in May 2012. We placed the second and third trains in-service at the Yoakum plant in August 2012 and March 2013, respectively. Gross operating margin from our remaining natural gas processing plants decreased a combined \$14.5 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to lower processing margins in the second quarter of 2013.

Gross operating margin from our NGL marketing activities increased \$14.2 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher sales volumes, which accounted for a \$28.9 million increase, partially offset by lower sales margins, which accounted for a \$14.8 million quarter-to-quarter decrease.

Gross operating margin from these businesses decreased \$227.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2013 when compared to the same period in 2012. Gross operating margin from our Meeker and Pioneer natural gas processing plants decreased \$108.9 million and \$74.2 million period-to-period, respectively, attributable to the same reasons described above for the quarter-to-quarter changes. Gross operating margin from our South Texas natural gas processing plants increased \$14.7 million period-to-period primarily due to higher volumes, which accounted for a \$33.2 million increase, higher processing fees, which resulted in a \$13.7 million increase, partially offset by lower processing margins, which accounted for a \$32.6 million decrease. Gross operating margin from our remaining natural gas processing plants decreased a combined \$34.7 million period-to-period primarily due to lower processing margins in the 2013 period.

Gross operating margin from our NGL marketing activities increased \$9.8 million period-to-period primarily due to higher sales volumes, which accounted for a \$61.4 million period-to-period increase, partially offset by lower sales margins, which accounted for a \$50.9 million decrease.

Gross operating margin for the first six months of 2012 included a \$20.0 million gain related to proceeds received in a vendor settlement and a \$13.7 million gain attributable to changes in a provision for certain plant capacity obligations.

NGL pipelines and related storage

Gross operating margin from our NGL pipelines and related storage assets for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$30.0 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 largely due to strong results from our South Texas and Houston region assets. Gross operating margin from our South Texas NGL Pipeline System increased \$20.9 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to a 125 MBPD increase in transportation volumes associated with Eagle Ford Shale

production. Gross operating margin from our Houston Ship Channel LPG export terminal and related Channel Pipeline increased a combined \$12.0 million quarter-to-quarter primarily to due increased volumes. Loading volumes at our LPG export terminal increased 106 MBPD quarter-to-quarter and volumes on the related Channel Pipeline increased 96 MBPD quarter-to-quarter. 58

Table of Contents

Gross operating margin from our Mid-America Pipeline System, Seminole Pipeline and related NGL terminals decreased \$0.4 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to (i) a 50 MBPD decrease in transportation volumes, which accounted for \$6.2 million of the decrease, (ii) slightly higher operating costs of \$1.6 million quarter-to-quarter, partially offset by (iii) higher tariffs and other fees of \$7.4 million. Volumes on our Mid-America and Seminole pipelines decreased during 2013 primarily due to lower NGL production from Rocky Mountain gas plants caused by ethane rejection.

With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin from NGL pipelines and related storage assets increased \$93.8 million when compared to the same period in 2012 largely due to strong results from our South Texas and Houston region assets and the Dixie Pipeline. Gross operating margin from our South Texas NGL Pipeline System increased \$42.9 million period-to-period primarily due to a 102 MBPD increase in transportation volumes associated with Eagle Ford Shale production. Gross operating margin from our Houston Ship Channel LPG export terminal and related Channel Pipeline increased a combined \$15.8 million period-to-period primarily due to increased volumes. Loading volumes at our LPG export terminal increased 73 MBPD period-to-period and volumes on the related Channel Pipeline increased 76 MBPD period-to-period primarily due to a 29 MBPD increase in transportation volumes, which accounted for \$7.5 million of the increase, and higher transportation fees, which accounted for \$3.1 million of the increase. Transportation volumes on the Dixie Pipeline were negatively impacted during 2012 due to downtime associated with various pipeline integrity projects and warmer than normal winter weather.

Gross operating margin from our Lou-Tex NGL and Panola Pipelines increased a combined \$9.4 million period-to-period primarily due to higher transportation volumes of 21 MBPD period-to-period. Lastly, gross operating margin from our Mid-America Pipeline System, Seminole Pipeline and related NGL terminals increased a combined \$4.6 million period-to-period. A \$23.6 million increase in revenues associated with higher system-wide tariffs and other fees, combined with an \$8.7 million decrease in operating costs primarily due to pipeline gains during the 2013 period, was partially offset by a \$27.7 million decrease in gross operating margin attributable to a 105 MBPD decrease in transportation volumes primarily due to lower NGL production from Rocky Mountain gas plants caused by ethane rejection.

NGL fractionation

Gross operating margin from NGL fractionation for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$24.0 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to higher fractionation fees and volumes at our Mont Belvieu complex. Our Mont Belvieu NGL fractionators continue to benefit from increased NGL production volumes transported from the Eagle Ford Shale.

Gross operating margin from our Mont Belvieu NGL fractionators increased \$19.3 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to (i) higher average fractionation fees, which accounted for \$17.1 million of the increase, (ii) an increase in fractionation volumes of 57 MBPD (net to our interest), which accounted for an additional \$10.3 million of the increase, partially offset by (iii) a \$12.9 million increase in operating costs partially due to our sixth NGL fractionator, which commenced operations in December 2012. With respect to fractionation volumes at our Mont Belvieu complex for the second quarter of 2013, a 94 MBPD increase in processing volumes attributable to operations at our sixth NGL fractionator was partially offset by downtime at certain of our other Mont Belvieu NGL fractionators in connection with an expansion project.

Gross operating margin at our Shoup and Almeda NGL fractionators decreased \$2.3 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to a 19 MBPD decrease in volumes. The decrease in volumes at Shoup and Almeda is attributable to more natural gas being processed at our Yoakum facility, with the resulting mixed NGL stream being transported to our Mont Belvieu complex for fractionation. Gross operating margin at our Hobbs and Norco NGL fractionators

increased a combined \$6.1 million primarily due to higher fractionation fees during the second quarter of 2013.

With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin from NGL fractionation increased \$49.9 million when compared to the same period in 2012. Gross operating margin from our Mont Belvieu NGL fractionators increased \$47.6 million period-to-period primarily due to (i) an increase in fractionation volumes 59

Table of Contents

of 83 MBPD, which accounted for \$32.7 million of the increase, (ii) higher average fractionation fees, which accounted for \$30.9 million of the increase, partially offset by (iii) a \$20.7 million increase in operating costs, including those attributable to our sixth NGL fractionator. Gross operating margin from our Shoup and Almeda NGL fractionators decreased \$5.8 million period-to-period primarily due to a 17 MBPD decrease in volumes. Gross operating margin at our Hobbs and Norco NGL fractionator increased a combined \$5.9 million period-to-period primarily due to higher fractionation fees.

<u>Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services</u>. The following table presents segment gross operating margin and selected volumetric data for the Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services segment for the periods indicated (dollars in millions, volumes as noted):

	For the Three		For the S	ix
	Months		Months	
	Ended June 30,		Ended Ju	ne 30,
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Segment gross operating margin	\$197.7	\$175.8	\$388.5	\$382.0
Selected volumetric data:				
Natural gas transportation volumes (BBtus/d)	13,307	13,793	13,189	13,436

Gross operating margin from onshore natural gas pipelines and services for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$21.9 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to contributions from the Texas Intrastate System. Gross operating margin from our Texas Intrastate System increased \$21.8 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher firm capacity reservation revenues. Increased natural gas production volumes from the Eagle Ford Shale supply basin, in large part a by-product of increased NGL and crude oil production, continues to support strong demand for our natural gas transportation services on the Texas Intrastate System. Natural gas transportation volumes for the Texas Intrastate System increased 311 BBtus/d quarter-to-quarter.

Gross operating margin from our San Juan Gathering System increased \$4.5 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher gathering fees, which are indexed to natural gas prices and accounted for \$6.7 million of the increase, partially offset by the impact of lower gathering volumes, which accounted for a \$2.2 million decrease in results. Lastly, gross operating margin from the Jonah, Piceance Basin and Haynesville Gathering Systems decreased a combined \$4.7 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to lower gathering volumes. Producers served by these four gathering systems have curtailed their drilling programs in response to the continued low price of natural gas and NGLs. Collectively, natural gas transportation volumes for these gathering systems decreased 779 BBtus/d quarter-to-quarter.

With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin from onshore natural gas pipelines and services increased \$6.5 million. Gross operating margin from our Texas Intrastate System increased \$29.8 million period-to-period primarily due to higher firm capacity reservation revenues. Gross operating margin from our Jonah, Piceance Basin and Haynesville Gathering Systems decreased a combined \$15.1 million period-to-period primarily due to higher operating margin from our Acadian Gas System decreased \$5.9 million period-to-period primarily due to higher operating expenses during the 2013 period. Lastly, gross operating margin from our San Juan Gathering System decreased \$1.6 million period-to-period primarily due to (i) lower gathering volumes, which accounted for a \$6.7 million decrease, (ii) lower treating, compression and condensate revenues, which accounted for a \$4.3 million decrease, partially offset by (iii) higher gathering fees, which are indexed to natural gas prices and accounted for a \$9.4 million increase. Natural gas transportation volumes for the six months ended June 30, 2013 decreased 247 BBtus/d when compared to the first six months of 2012 primarily due to a combined 730 BBtus/d decrease in gathering volumes on our Jonah, Piceance Basin, Haynesville and San Juan gathering systems partially offset by increased volumes of 351 BBtus/d on our Texas Intrastate System and 129 BBtus/d on our Acadian Gas System.

<u>Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services</u>. The following table presents segment gross operating margin and selected volumetric data for the Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services segment for the periods indicated (dollars in millions, volumes as noted):

	For the Three				
	Months		For the Six		
	Ended J	une	Months		
	30,		Ended June 30,		
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Segment gross operating margin	\$197.2	\$95.8	\$433.6	\$135.1	
Selected volumetric data:					
Crude oil transportation volumes (MBPD)	1,145	725	1,073	716	

Gross operating margin from our onshore crude oil pipelines and services business for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$101.4 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to higher volumes on our crude oil pipeline systems. Gross operating margin from our South Texas Crude Oil Pipeline System increased \$58.7 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher transportation volumes attributable to the Eagle Ford Expansion pipeline, which commenced operations in June 2012 and transported 164 MBPD during the second quarter of 2013. Equity earnings from our investments in crude oil pipeline joint ventures (Seaway and Eagle Ford) increased \$26.5 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to a 200 MBPD increase in transportation volumes (net to our interest) attributable to the completion of expansion capital projects since the first quarter of 2012. Gross operating margin from our crude oil marketing and related activities increased \$11.8 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher sales margins, which accounted for \$3.8 million of the increase. Our crude oil marketing activities continue to benefit from increased crude oil production volumes from the Eagle Ford Shale, Permian Basin and Rocky Mountain regions.

With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin from onshore crude oil pipelines and services increased \$298.5 million period-to-period primarily due to improved results from our crude oil marketing activities and higher volumes on our crude oil pipeline systems. Gross operating margin from our crude oil marketing and related activities increased \$124.1 million period-to-period primarily due to higher sales margins. Gross operating margin from our South Texas Crude Oil Pipeline System increased \$104.6 million period-to-period primarily due to volumes attributable to the Eagle Ford Expansion pipeline, which transported 157 MBPD during the six months ended June 30, 2013. Equity earnings from our investments in crude oil pipeline joint ventures increased \$62.6 million primarily due to a 164 MBPD increase in transportation volumes (net to our interest).

<u>Offshore Pipelines & Services</u>. The following table presents segment gross operating margin and selected volumetric data for the Offshore Pipelines & Services segment for the periods indicated (dollars in millions, volumes as noted):

	For the Three		For the Six	
	Months		Month	s
	Ended	Ended June		June
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Segment gross operating margin	\$39.7	\$38.3	\$80.2	\$90.4
Selected volumetric data:				
Natural gas transportation volumes (BBtus/d)	720	907	726	934
Crude oil transportation volumes (MBPD)	311	285	303	287
Platform natural gas processing (MMcf/d)	224	326	234	341
Platform crude oil processing (MBPD)	14	18	14	19

Gross operating margin from our offshore pipelines and services business increased \$1.4 million for the second quarter of 2013 when compared to the second quarter of 2012. The primary reasons for this quarter-to-quarter increase were improved results from our equity investment in the Cameron Highway Oil Pipeline ("Cameron Highway") and lower insurance costs, partially offset by a decrease in gross operating margin amounts from our Independence Hub platform and related Independence Trail pipeline. Equity earnings from Cameron Highway increased \$3.7 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to a 42 MBPD increase (net to our interest) in transportation volumes. Gross operating margin for this segment also benefited from a \$3.7 million quarter-to-quarter decrease in insurance costs. Due to the high cost of windstorm coverage for our offshore Gulf of Mexico assets, we elected to self-insure these assets during the annual policy period extending from June 2012 to June 2013. We made the same 61

Table of Contents

election for the current annual policy period, which extends from June 2013 to June 2014. For a discussion of insurance-related matters, see "Other Items – Insurance Matters" within this Part I, Item 2.

The favorable quarter-to-quarter variances attributable to improved earnings from Cameron Highway and lower insurance costs were partially offset by a combined \$4.3 million decrease in gross operating margin from our Independence Hub platform and Independence Trail pipeline primarily due to lower platform processing and pipeline throughput volumes. Natural gas processing volumes on the Independence Hub platform decreased 80 MMcf/d quarter-to-quarter (net to our interest) and natural gas transportation volumes on the Independence Trail pipeline decreased 84 BBtus/d quarter-to-quarter.

With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin from offshore pipelines and services decreased \$10.2 million period-to-period. The primary reasons for this period-to-period decrease were lower fees and volumes impacting our Independence Hub platform and Trail pipeline, partially offset by improved results from Cameron Highway and lower insurance costs. Collectively, gross operating margin from our Independence Hub platform and Trail pipeline decreased \$18.4 million period-to-period primarily due to the expiration of contractual demand fees during the first quarter of 2012, which accounted for \$9.7 million of the decrease between the two six-month periods, and lower platform processing and pipeline throughput volumes during the 2013 period, which accounted for \$8.7 million of the decrease in gross operating margin. Natural gas processing volumes on the Independence Trail pipeline decreased 84 BBtus/d period-to-period. Equity earnings from Cameron Highway increased \$3.8 million period-to-period primarily due to a 22 MBPD increase (net to our interest) in transportation volumes. Gross operating margin for this segment also benefited from a \$7.5 million period-to-period decrease in insurance costs.

<u>Petrochemical & Refined Products Services</u>. The following table presents segment gross operating margin and selected volumetric data for the Petrochemical & Refined Products Services segment for the periods indicated (dollars in millions, volumes as noted):

	For the Three Months		For the Months	
	Ended June 30,		Ended J	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Segment gross operating margin:				
Propylene fractionation and related activities	\$26.1	\$42.8	\$61.1	\$103.9
Butane isomerization	27.4	25.1	50.8	45.7
Octane enhancement and related plant operations	43.0	50.7	81.3	37.6
Refined products pipelines and related activities	48.7	18.1	105.3	30.2
Marine transportation and other	17.5	20.6	35.1	37.7
Total	\$162.7	\$157.3	\$333.6	\$255.1
Selected volumetric data:				
Propylene fractionation volumes (MBPD)	71	73	70	73
Butane isomerization volumes (MBPD)	97	100	91	91
Octane additive and related plant production volumes (MBPD)	20	22	18	14
Transportation volumes, primarily refined products and				
petrochemicals (MBPD)	688	625	684	659

Propylene fractionation and related activities

Gross operating margin from our propylene fractionation and related petrochemical marketing activities decreased \$16.7 million for the second quarter of 2013 when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to lower propylene sales margins during the second quarter of 2013. With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin decreased \$42.8 million when compared to the same period in 2012 also primarily due to lower propylene sales margins during the first six months of 2013.

Butane isomerization

Gross operating margin from butane isomerization for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$2.3 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012. Likewise, gross operating margin for the first six months of 2013 62

increased \$5.1 million when compared to the same period in 2012. Both the quarter-to-quarter and year-to-date increases in gross operating margin are primarily due to the addition of a new deisobutanizer facility at our Mont Belvieu complex in March 2013.

Octane enhancement and related plant operations

Gross operating margin from octane enhancement and related high purity isobutylene plant operations for the second quarter of 2013 decreased a combined \$7.7 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to higher operating expenses during the second quarter of 2013. With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin for these facilities increased \$43.7 million when compared to the same period in 2012. Gross operating margin from our octane enhancement facility for the first six months of 2013 increased \$44.7 million primarily due to higher motor gasoline additive sales margins, which accounted for \$28.9 million of the increase, and higher sales volumes, which accounted for \$21.3 million of the increase, partially offset by higher operating expenses of \$5.5 million. Our octane enhancement facility experienced several periods of downtime for maintenance during the six months ended June 30, 2012, which negatively impacted the facility's operating results for the prior year-to-date period.

Refined products pipelines and related activities

Gross operating margin from refined products pipelines and related activities for the second quarter of 2013 increased \$30.6 million when compared to the second quarter of 2012 primarily due to improved results from our TE Products Pipeline. Gross operating margin from this pipeline system increased \$33.4 million quarter-to-quarter primarily due to higher transportation fees, which accounted for a \$36.3 million increase, partially offset by a \$5.5 million decrease in gross operating margin attributable to lower interstate transportation volumes. The higher transportation fees quarter-to-quarter include a \$24.3 million benefit recognized in connection with the settlement of a rate case with certain shippers during the second quarter of 2013. The rate case covered certain interstate transportation volumes for the TE Products Pipeline increased 73 MBPD quarter-to-quarter due to higher intrastate shipments of petrochemicals and refined products in southeast Texas, which accounted for a combined 110 MBPD increase, partially offset by lower interstate transportation volumes for refined products and NGLs of 37 MBPD.

With respect to the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross operating margin from our refined products pipelines and related activities increased \$75.1 million when compared to the same period in 2012 primarily due to improved results from our TE Products Pipeline and refined products terminals and related marketing activities. Gross operating margin from our TE Products Pipeline increased \$44.1 million period-to-period primarily due to higher transportation fees, which accounted for \$39.2 million of the increase (including the impact of the rate case settlement discussed previously). Overall, transportation volumes for the TE Products Pipeline increased 31 MBPD period-to-period due to (i) higher intrastate shipments of petrochemicals and refined products in southeast Texas, which accounted for a 56 MBPD increase, (ii) higher interstate NGL transportation volumes of 9 MBPD, partially offset by (iii) lower interstate refined products transportation volumes of 34 MBPD. Gross operating margin from our refined products terminals increased \$23.3 million period-to-period primarily due to a \$16.6 million benefit attributable to reductions in a provision for future pipeline capacity obligations recorded in the first quarter of 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At June 30, 2013, we had \$4.46 billion of consolidated liquidity, which is defined as unrestricted cash on hand plus borrowing capacity available under EPO's bank facilities. Unrestricted cash on hand at June 30, 2013 was \$45.3 million. See "Consolidated Debt – 364-Day Credit Agreement" below for information regarding a new \$1.0 billion bank facility we entered into in June 2013. Based on current market conditions, we believe we will have sufficient liquidity, cash flow from operations and access to capital markets to fund our capital expenditures and working capital

needs.

We expect to issue additional equity and debt securities to assist us in meeting our future liquidity requirements, including those related to capital spending. In June 2013, we filed with the SEC a new universal shelf registration statement (the "2013 Shelf") that replaced our prior universal shelf registration statement filed with the SEC in July 2010 (the "2010 Shelf"). The 2013 Shelf allows (and the prior 2010 Shelf allowed) Enterprise Products 63

Partners L.P. and EPO (each on a standalone basis) to issue an unlimited amount of equity and debt securities, respectively.

Consolidated Debt

We had \$16.97 billion of principal amounts outstanding under consolidated debt agreements at June 30, 2013. The following table presents contractually scheduled maturities of our consolidated debt obligations outstanding at June 30, 2013 for the next five years, and in total thereafter (dollars in millions):

		Remai	ıled Maturi nder	ties of Deb	ot		After
	— 1	of					After
	Total	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2017
Commercial Paper Notes	\$40.0	\$40.0	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility	45.0						45.0
Senior Notes	15,350.0		1,150.0	1,300.0	750.0	800.0	11,350.0
Junior Subordinated Notes	1,532.7						1,532.7
Total	\$16,967.7	\$40.0	\$1,150.0	\$1,300.0	\$750.0	\$800.0	\$12,927.7

At June 30, 2013, our current maturities of debt totaled \$540.0 million. We expect to refinance the current maturities of our debt obligations at or prior to their maturity.

<u>2013 Senior Notes Transactions</u>. In March 2013, EPO issued \$1.25 billion principal amount of 3.35% senior notes due March 2023 ("Senior Notes HH") and \$1.0 billion principal amount of 4.85% senior notes due March 2044 ("Senior Notes II"). Senior Notes HH were issued at 99.908% of their principal amount and Senior Notes II were issued at 99.619% of their principal amount. Net proceeds from the issuance of Senior Notes HH and II were used to repay debt, including (i) amounts outstanding under EPO's \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and EPO's commercial paper program (which we used to repay \$550.0 million principal amount of senior notes that matured in February 2013) and (ii) \$650.0 million principal amount of senior notes that matured in April 2013, and for general company purposes.

Enterprise Products Partners L.P. has unconditionally guaranteed Senior Notes HH and II on an unsecured and unsubordinated basis. These senior notes rank equal with EPO's existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and are senior to any existing and future subordinated indebtedness of EPO. These senior notes are subject to make-whole redemption rights and were issued under indentures containing certain covenants, which generally restrict EPO's ability (with certain exceptions) to incur debt secured by liens and engage in sale and leaseback transactions.

<u>364-Day Credit Agreement</u>. In June 2013, EPO entered into a 364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement with a group of lenders (the "364-Day Credit Agreement"). Under the terms of the 364-Day Credit Agreement, EPO may borrow up to \$1.0 billion at a variable interest rate for a term of 364 days, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein. Borrowings under this credit agreement provide us with an additional source of liquidity to fund our capital spending program.

EPO's obligations under the 364-Day Credit Agreement are not secured by any collateral; however, they are guaranteed by Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Amounts borrowed under the 364-Day Credit Agreement mature on June 18, 2014, although EPO may, between 15 and 60 days prior to the maturity date, elect to have the entire principal balance then outstanding continued as non-revolving term loans for a period of one additional year, payable on June 18, 2015.

The 364-Day Credit Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, covenants (affirmative and negative) and events of default, the occurrence of which would permit the lenders to accelerate the maturity date of amounts borrowed under the 364-Day Credit Agreement. The 364-Day Credit Agreement also restricts EPO's ability to pay cash distributions to its parent, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., if a default or an event of default (as defined in the 364-Day Credit Agreement) has occurred and is continuing at the time such distribution is scheduled to be paid. 64

Table of Contents

<u>First Amendment to \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility</u>. In June 2013, EPO amended the terms of its \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility to, among other things, extend the maturity date of commitments under the agreement from September 2016 to June 2018 and lower the applicable margin on borrowings.

See Note 9 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report for additional information regarding our consolidated debt.

Issuance of Common Units

The following table summarizes the issuance of Enterprise common units during the six months ended June 30, 2013 in connection with an underwritten equity offering, the at-the-market program, its quarterly distribution reinvestment plan ("DRIP") and employee unit purchase plan ("EUPP") (dollars in millions, number of units issued as shown):

	Number of	
	Common	
	Units	Net
	Issued	Proceeds
Common units issued in connection with underwritten offering	9,200,000	\$486.6
Common units issued in connection with the at-the-market program	3,766,557	226.5
Common units issued in connection with the DRIP and EUPP	2,440,784	134.6
Total	15,407,341	\$ 847.7

In February 2013, we issued 9,200,000 common units to the public (including an over-allotment amount of 1,200,000 common units) at an offering price of \$54.56 per unit. This underwritten offering generated net cash proceeds of \$486.6 million, which were used to temporarily reduce amounts outstanding under EPO's \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and commercial paper program and for general company purposes.

We have a registration statement on file with the SEC covering the issuance of up to \$1.0 billion of our common units in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions and other factors at the time of such offerings. Pursuant to this "at-the-market" program, we may sell common units under an equity distribution agreement between Enterprise Products Partners L.P. and certain broker-dealers from time-to-time by means of ordinary brokers' transactions through the NYSE at market prices, in block transactions or as otherwise agreed to with the broker-dealer parties to the agreement. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we sold 3,766,557 common units under the program for aggregate gross proceeds of \$228.5 million. After taking into account applicable costs, these transactions result in net proceeds of \$226.5 million, of which \$214.2 million was received as of June 30, 2013. After taking into account the aggregate sale price of common units sold under this program through June 30, 2013, we have the capacity to issue additional common units under this program up to an aggregate sale price of \$566.1 million.

We also have registration statements on file with the SEC collectively authorizing the issuance of up to 70,000,000 of our common units in connection with our DRIP. The DRIP provides unitholders of record and beneficial owners of our common units a voluntary means by which they can increase the number of our common units they own by reinvesting the quarterly cash distributions they would otherwise receive from us into the purchase of additional new common units. We issued 2,359,089 common units under our DRIP during the six months ended June 30, 2013, which generated net proceeds of \$129.8 million. After taking into account the number of common units issued under the DRIP through June 30, 2013, we may issue an additional 21,134,203 common units under this plan.

In January 2013, affiliates of privately held EPCO, which own our general partner and approximately 37.0% of our limited partner interests at June 30, 2013, expressed their willingness to purchase at least \$100 million of our common units during 2013 through our DRIP. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, these EPCO affiliates reinvested

\$50.0 million, resulting in the issuance of 908,217 common units under our DRIP (this amount being a component of the 2,359,089 common units issued in total under the DRIP during the first six months of 2013). In August 2013, these affiliates reinvested an additional \$25.0 million under the DRIP.

65

Table of Contents

In addition to the DRIP, we have a registration statement on file with the SEC authorizing the issuance of up to 440,879 of our common units in connection with an employee unit purchase plan (or "EUPP"). We issued 81,695 common units under our EUPP during the six months ended June 30, 2013, which generated net proceeds of \$4.8 million. After taking into account the number of common units issued under the EUPP through June 30, 2013, we may issue an additional 214,341 common units under this plan.

The net cash proceeds we received from the issuance of common units during the six months ended June 30, 2013 were used to temporarily reduce amounts outstanding under EPO's Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and commercial paper program and for general company purposes. For additional information regarding our registration statements, see Note 10 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

Credit Ratings

As of August 8, 2013, the investment-grade credit ratings of EPO's long-term senior unsecured debt securities were BBB+ from Standard and Poor's and Baa1 from Moody's. In addition, the credit ratings of EPO's short-term senior unsecured debt securities were A-2 from Standard and Poor's and P-2 from Moody's. Fitch Ratings issued non-solicited ratings of BBB and F-2 for EPO's long-term senior unsecured debt securities and short-term senior unsecured debt securities, respectively.

EPO's credit ratings reflect only the view of a rating agency and should not be interpreted as a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any of our securities. A credit rating can be revised upward or downward or withdrawn at any time by a rating agency, if it determines that circumstances warrant such a change. A credit rating from one rating agency should be evaluated independently of credit ratings from other rating agencies.

Cash Flows from Operating, Investing and Financing Activities

The following table summarizes our consolidated cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the periods indicated (dollars in millions). For additional information regarding our cash flow amounts, see the Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

	For the Six Months		
	Ended June 30,		
	2013	2012	
Net cash flows provided by operating activities	\$1,530.9	\$1,338.3	
Cash used in investing activities	1,802.6	749.8	
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities	300.9	(593.8)	

Net cash flows provided by operating activities are largely dependent on earnings from our consolidated business activities. As a result, these cash flows are exposed to certain risks. We operate predominantly in the midstream energy industry. We provide products and services to producers and consumers of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil, refined products and certain petrochemicals. The products that we process, sell, transport or store are principally used as fuel for residential, agricultural and commercial heating; as feedstocks in petrochemical manufacturing; by crude oil refineries; and in the production of motor gasoline. Reduced demand for our services or products by industrial customers, whether because of a decline in general economic conditions, reduced demand for the end products made with our products, or increased competition from other service providers or producers due to pricing differences or other reasons, could have a negative impact on our earnings and operating cash flows. For a more complete discussion of these and other risk factors pertinent to our business, see "Risk Factors" under Part I, Item 1A of our 2012 Form 10-K.

Table of Contents

The following information highlights significant period-to-period fluctuations in our consolidated cash flow amounts:

Comparison of Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 with Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

<u>Operating Activities</u>. Cash provided by operating activities for the first six months of 2013 increased \$192.6 million when compared to the first six months of 2012. The increase in cash flow was primarily due to a \$252.9 million period-to-period increase in cash attributable to overall higher partnership income (after adjusting our \$85.9 million period-to-period increase in net income for changes in the non-cash items identified on our Unaudited Condensed Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows) partially offset by a \$128.9 million period-to-period decrease in cash flow generally attributable to the timing of cash receipts and disbursements related to operations. In addition, cash distributions from unconsolidated affiliates increased \$68.8 million period-to-period primarily due to improved results from our investments in crude oil pipeline joint ventures. For information regarding significant period-to-period changes in our consolidated net income and underlying segment results, see "Results of Operations" within this Item 2.

<u>Investing Activities</u>. Cash used in investing activities for the first six months of 2013 increased \$1.05 billion when compared to the first six months of 2012. The period-to-period increase in cash used for investing activities was primarily due to increased cash contributions to unconsolidated affiliates to fund their capital spending programs and lower cash proceeds received from asset sales, partially offset by lower cash payments for consolidated property, plant and equipment.

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates increased \$422.4 million period-to-period primarily due to contributions we made in connection with expansion projects for the Seaway Pipeline, Texas Express Pipeline, Front Range Pipeline and Eagle Ford Crude Oil Pipeline joint ventures.

Proceeds from asset sales and insurance recoveries decreased from \$1.16 billion for the first six months of 2012 to \$199.2 million for the first six months of 2013. Proceeds for the first six months of 2012 primarily reflect the \$1.1 billion we received in connection with sales of common units of Energy Transfer Equity. For additional information regarding the liquidation of our investment in Energy Transfer Equity, see Note 7 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report. Proceeds for the first six months of 2013 primarily reflect \$86.9 million we received from the sale of the Stratton Ridge-to-Mont Belvieu segment of the Seminole Pipeline, \$35.3 million we received from the sale of lubrication oil and specialty chemical distribution assets, \$29.5 million we received from the sale of chemical trucking assets and \$14.9 million we received from the sale of certain marine transportation assets.

Capital spending for consolidated property, plant and equipment, net of contributions in aid of construction costs, decreased \$370.7 million period-to-period.

<u>Financing Activities</u>. Cash provided by financing activities was \$300.9 million during the first six months of 2013 compared to cash used in financing activities of \$593.8 million during the first six months of 2012. The \$894.7 million change in cash flows attributable to financing activities was primarily due to the following:

Net cash proceeds from the issuance of common units increased \$773.9 million period-to-period. In total, we issued an aggregate of 15,407,341 common units during the first six months of 2013 in connection with an underwritten offering, the at-the market program and our DRIP and EUPP. We received \$835.4 million of net cash proceeds from these issuances during the first six months of 2013. This compares to 1,270,609 common units we issued during the first six months of 2012 in connection with our DRIP and EUPP. These issuances generated \$61.5 million of net cash proceeds during the first six months of 2012. For additional information regarding our consolidated partners' equity amounts, see Note 10 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

Net borrowings under our consolidated debt agreements increased \$259.3 million period-to-period. EPO issued \$\$2.25 billion and repaid \$1.2 billion in principal amount of senior notes during the first six months of 2013, compared to the issuance of \$750.0 million and repayment of \$500.0 million in principal amount

67

Table of Contents

of senior notes during the first six months of 2012. In addition, net borrowings under EPO's \$3.5 Billion Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility decreased \$232.0 million period-to-period and net repayments under EPO's commercial paper program during the first six months of 2013 were \$307.1 million. For additional information regarding our consolidated debt obligations, see Note 9 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

Cash contributions from noncontrolling interests increased \$90.0 million period-to-period primarily due to a \$contribution from Western Gas during the second quarter of 2013 for a 25% noncontrolling interest in a joint venture involving two NGL fractionators that are under construction at our complex in Mont Belvieu, Texas.

⁸ Cash distributions paid to limited partners increased \$103.3 million period-to-period due to increases in the number ⁹ of distribution-bearing common units outstanding and the quarterly distribution rates per unit.

Cash payments related to the monetization of interest rate derivative instruments increased \$91.2 million § period-to-period. For information regarding our interest rate hedging activities, see Note 4 of the Notes to Unaudited

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report. Capital Spending Program

An important part of our business strategy involves expansion through growth capital projects, business combinations and investments in joint ventures. We believe that we are positioned to continue to expand our system of assets through the construction of new facilities and to capitalize on expected increases in natural gas, NGL and crude oil production resulting from development activities in the Rocky Mountains, Midcontinent, Northeast and U.S. Gulf Coast regions, including the Niobrara, Barnett, Eagle Ford, Permian, Haynesville, Marcellus and Utica Shale plays and deepwater Gulf of Mexico production fields.

Although our current focus is on expansion through growth capital projects, management continues to analyze potential business combinations, asset acquisitions, joint ventures and similar transactions with businesses that operate in complementary markets or geographic regions. In past years, major oil and gas companies have sold non-strategic assets in the midstream energy sector in which we operate. We believe this trend will continue and we expect independent oil and natural gas companies to consider similar divestitures.

The following table summarizes our capital spending for the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

	For the Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2013	2012
Capital spending for property, plant and equipment, net of contributions in aid of construction		
costs	\$1,432.4	\$1,803.1
Capital spending for investments in unconsolidated affiliates	547.9	125.5
Other investing activities		16.6
Total capital spending	\$1,980.3	\$1,945.2

Our payments for growth capital spending totaled \$1.8 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2013. Our most significant growth capital expenditures for the first six months of 2013 involved projects in the Eagle Ford Shale, at our Mont Belvieu complex, to expand joint venture crude oil pipelines and for the ATEX Express pipeline.

Based on information currently available, we estimate our consolidated capital spending for 2013 will approximate \$4.6 billion, which includes estimated expenditures of \$4.2 billion for growth capital projects and \$350 million for sustaining capital expenditures. Our forecast of consolidated capital spending for 2013 is net of cash contributions from non-controlling interests in connection with consolidated joint venture growth capital projects. In addition, our forecast of consolidated capital expenditures for 2013 is based on our announced strategic operating and growth plans, which are dependent upon our ability to generate the required funds from either operating cash flows or other means, including borrowings under debt agreements, issuance of additional equity and debt securities, and potential

divestitures. We may revise our forecast of capital spending due to factors beyond our control, such as 68

Table of Contents

weather related issues, changes in supplier prices or adverse economic conditions. Furthermore, our forecast of capital spending may change as a result of decisions made by management at a later date, which may include the addition of costs in connection with unforeseen acquisition opportunities.

Our success in raising capital, including the formation of joint ventures to share costs and risks, continues to be a principal factor in determining how much capital we can invest. We believe our access to capital resources is sufficient to meet the demands of our current and future growth needs and, although we currently intend to make the forecast capital expenditures noted above, we may adjust the timing and amounts of projected expenditures in response to changes in capital markets.

At June 30, 2013, we had approximately \$1.45 billion in purchase commitments outstanding that relate to our capital spending for property, plant and equipment. These commitments primarily relate to construction projects in Texas, the Rocky Mountains and the Northeast U.S.

In the first six months of 2013, we placed \$1.1 billion of capital projects into service. For the remainder of 2013, we expect to complete construction and begin commercial operations related to growth capital spending representing \$1.5 billion of investment. These projects include:

§the Texas Express Pipeline during the third quarter of 2013;

[§] completion of the remaining segments of the Eagle Ford crude oil pipeline in the joint venture with Plains All [§] American Pipeline, L.P. in the third quarter of 2013;

\$two NGL fractionators at Mont Belvieu during the fourth quarter of 2013;

§the Front Range Pipeline during the fourth quarter of 2013; and

[§] an extension of the Seaway Pipeline from the Jones Creek terminal to our ECHO storage facility during the fourth quarter of 2013.

Pipeline Integrity Costs

Our pipelines are subject to safety programs administered by the U.S. Department of Transportation ("DOT"). This federal agency has issued safety regulations containing requirements for the development of integrity management programs for hazardous liquid pipelines (e.g., NGL, crude oil, refined products and petrochemical pipelines) and natural gas pipelines. In general, these regulations require companies to assess the condition of their pipelines in certain high consequence areas (as defined by the regulation) and to perform any necessary repairs.

The following table summarizes our pipeline integrity costs, including those attributable to DOT regulations, for the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

	For the Three		For the	e Six
	Months		Months Months	
	Ended June		Ended	June
	30,		30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Expensed	\$16.6	\$17.9	\$27.3	\$36.9
Capitalized	9.8	27.0	22.6	39.9
Total	\$26.4	\$44.9	\$49.9	\$76.8

We expect the cost of our pipeline integrity program, regardless of whether such costs are capitalized or expensed, to approximate \$91.0 million for the remainder of 2013. The cost of our pipeline integrity program was \$150.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

69

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

A discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates is included in our 2012 Form 10-K. The following estimates, in our opinion, are subjective in nature, require the exercise of professional judgment and involve complex analysis:

§ depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment;

§ measuring recoverability of long-lived assets and equity method investments;

§ amortization methods and estimated useful lives of qualifying intangible assets;

§ methods we employ to measure the fair value of goodwill; and

§revenue recognition policies and the use of estimates for revenue and expense accruals.

When used to prepare our Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the foregoing types of estimates are based on our current knowledge and understanding of the underlying facts and circumstances. Such estimates may be revised as a result of changes in the underlying facts and circumstances. Subsequent changes in these estimates may have a significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Other Items

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We evaluate segment performance based on the non-GAAP financial measure of gross operating margin. Gross operating margin (either in total or by individual segment) is an important performance measure of the core profitability of our operations. This measure forms the basis of our internal financial reporting and is used by our management in deciding how to allocate capital resources among business segments. We believe that investors benefit from having access to the same financial measures that our management uses in evaluating segment results. The GAAP financial measure most directly comparable to total segment gross operating margin is operating income. Our non-GAAP financial measure of total segment gross operating margin should not be considered an alternative to GAAP operating income.

Our non-GAAP gross operating margin by business segment and in total was as follows for the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

	For the Three				
	Months		For the Si	x Months	
	Ended June 30,		Ended Jui	ne 30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
NGL Pipelines & Services	\$544.9	\$565.8	\$1,137.4	\$1,220.7	
Onshore Natural Gas Pipelines & Services	197.7	175.8	388.5	382.0	
Onshore Crude Oil Pipelines & Services	197.2	95.8	433.6	135.1	
Offshore Pipelines & Services	39.7	38.3	80.2	90.4	
Petrochemical & Refined Products Services	162.7	157.3	333.6	255.1	
Other Investments (1)				2.4	
Total segment gross operating margin	\$1,142.2	\$1,033.0	\$2,373.3	\$2,085.7	

(1) Represents the equity earnings we recorded from our previously held investment in Energy Transfer Equity. Our reporting for this segment ceased on January 18, 2012 when we stopped using the equity method to account for this investment.

70

The following table presents a reconciliation of total segment gross operating margin to operating income and further to income before income taxes for the periods indicated (dollars in millions):

Months		For the Siz	x Months
Ended June	e 30,	Ended Jun	e 30,
2013	2012	2013	2012
Total segment gross operating margin\$1,142.2	\$1,033.0	\$2,373.3	\$2,085.7
Adjustments to reconcile total segment gross operating margin to			
operating income:			
Amounts included in operating costs and expenses:			
Depreciation, amortization and accretion (289.7)	(261.3)	(566.5)	(515.9)
Non-cash asset impairment charges (27.1)	(9.1)	(38.1)	(14.5)
Gains (losses) attributable to asset sales and insurance recoveries (5.7)	29.0	58.2	31.5
General and administrative costs (45.5)	(42.5)	(95.0)	(88.8)
Operating income 774.2	749.1	1,731.9	1,498.0
Other expense, net (200.5)	(173.4)	(396.5)	(301.2)
Income before income taxes \$573.7	\$575.7	\$1,335.4	\$1,196.8

For additional information regarding gross operating margin, see Note 11 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

Contractual Obligations

With the exception of routine fluctuations in the balances of our Multi-Year Revolving Credit Facility and commercial paper notes, the issuance of Senior Notes HH and II in March 2013 and the scheduled repayment of maturing debt obligations, there have been no significant changes in our consolidated debt obligations since those reported in our 2012 Form 10-K. See Note 9 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report for information regarding our consolidated debt obligations. There were no material changes in our operating lease or purchase obligations since those reported in our 2012 Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably expected to have a material current or future effect on our financial position, revenues, expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Related Party Transactions

For information regarding our related party transactions, see Note 12 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report.

In October 2009, we issued 4,520,431 Class B units to a privately held affiliate of EPCO in connection with the merger of TEPPCO Partners, L.P. with one of our wholly owned subsidiaries. The Class B units were entitled to vote together with our common units as a single class on partnership matters and generally had the same rights and privileges as our common units, except that the Class B units were not entitled to receive regular quarterly cash distributions until they automatically converted into an equal number of common units on August 8, 2013.

Insurance Matters

For information regarding insurance matters, see Note 15 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report. 71

Table of Contents

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

In the normal course of our business operations, we are exposed to certain risks, including changes in interest rates and commodity prices. In order to manage risks associated with certain anticipated future transactions, we use derivative instruments such as futures, forward contracts, swaps, options and other instruments with similar characteristics. Substantially all of our derivatives are used for non-trading activities.

Our exposures to market risk have not changed materially since those reported under Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," included in our 2012 Form 10-K.

We assess the risk associated with each of our derivative instrument portfolios using a sensitivity analysis model. This approach measures the change in fair value of the derivative instrument portfolio based on a hypothetical 10% change in the underlying interest rates or quoted market prices on a particular day. In addition to these variables, the fair value of each portfolio is influenced by changes in the notional amounts of the instruments outstanding and the discount rates used to determine the present values. The sensitivity analysis approach does not reflect the impact that the same hypothetical price movement would have on the hedged exposures to which they relate. Therefore, the impact on the fair value of a derivative instrument resulting from a change in interest rates or quoted market prices (as applicable) would normally be offset by a corresponding gain or loss on the hedged debt instrument, inventory value or forecasted transaction assuming:

\$the derivative instrument functions effectively as a hedge of the underlying risk;

§the derivative instrument is not closed out in advance of its expected term; and

§the hedged forecasted transaction occurs within the expected time period.

We routinely review the effectiveness of our derivative instrument portfolios in light of current market conditions. Accordingly, the nature and volume of our derivative instruments may change depending on the specific exposures being managed.

See Note 4 of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report for additional information regarding our derivative instruments and hedging activities.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

We may utilize interest rate swaps, forward starting swaps and similar derivative instruments to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates charged on borrowings under certain consolidated debt agreements. This strategy is a component in controlling our overall cost of capital associated with such borrowings. The composition of our derivative instrument portfolios may change from period-to-period depending on our hedging requirements.

With respect to the tabular data below, each portfolio's estimated fair value at a given date is based on a number of factors, including the number and types of derivatives outstanding at that date, the notional value of the swaps and associated interest rates.

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps exchange the stated interest rate paid on a notional amount of existing debt for the fixed or floating interest rate stipulated in the derivative instrument. The following table summarizes our portfolio of interest rate swaps at June 30, 2013 (dollars in millions):

Hedged Transaction	Number and Type of Derivatives Outstanding	Notional Amount	Period of Hedge 1/2011 to	Rate Swap 3.2% to	Accounting Treatment
Senior Notes AA Undesignated	10 fixed-to-floating swaps	\$ 750.0	2/2016 5/2010 to	1.3% 0.3% to	Fair value hedge
swaps	6 floating-to-fixed swaps	\$ 600.0	7/2014	2.0%	Mark-to-market
72					

The following table shows the effect of hypothetical price movements (a sensitivity analysis) on the estimated fair value ("FV") of our interest rate swap portfolio at the dates indicated (dollars in millions):

		Interest Rate Swap Portfolio		
		Aggregate Fair		
		Value at		
		Decembleme July		July
	Resulting	31,	30,	16,
Scenario	Classification	2012	2013	2013
FV assuming no change in underlying interest rates	Asset	\$28.0	\$23.1	\$26.4
FV assuming 10% increase in underlying interest rates	Asset	27.2	22.0	25.4
FV assuming 10% decrease in underlying interest rates	Asset	28.8	24.2	27.5

Forward-starting interest rate swaps

Forward starting swaps perform a similar function as traditional interest rate swaps except that they are associated with interest rates underlying anticipated future issuances of debt. The 16 forward starting swaps outstanding at December 31, 2012 with an aggregate notional value of \$1.0 billion were settled at a loss of \$168.8 million in March 2013 in connection with the issuance of Senior Notes HH and II. There were no forward starting swaps outstanding at June 30, 2013.

73

Commodity Hedging Activities

The prices of natural gas, NGLs, crude oil, refined products and petrochemical products are subject to fluctuations in response to changes in supply and demand, market conditions and a variety of additional factors that are beyond our control. In order to manage such price risks, we enter into commodity derivative instruments such as physical forward contracts, futures contracts, fixed-for-float swaps, basis swaps and option contracts. The following table summarizes our portfolio of commodity derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2013 (volume measures as noted):

	Volume		Accounting
Derivative Purpose	Current (2)Long-Term (2)Treatment		
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:			
Octane enhancement:			
Forecasted purchases of NGLs (MMBbls)	1.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of octane enhancement products (MMBbls)	2.2	0.1	Cash flow hedge
Natural gas marketing:			
Forecasted sales of natural gas (Bcf)	2.3	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Natural gas storage inventory management activities (Bcf)	10.0	n/a	Fair value hedge
NGL marketing:			
Forecasted purchases of NGLs and related hydrocarbon products	3.3	n/a	Cash flow hadra
(MMBbls)	5.5	11/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of NGLs and related hydrocarbon products (MMBbls)	7.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Refined products marketing:			
Forecasted purchases of refined products (MMBbls)	0.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of refined products (MMBbls)	0.1	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Crude oil marketing:			
Forecasted purchases of crude oil (MMBbls)	2.6	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Forecasted sales of crude oil (MMBbls)	3.0	n/a	Cash flow hedge
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:			
Natural gas risk management activities (Bcf) (3,4)	145.7	24.0	Mark-to-market
Refined products risk management activities (MMBbls) (4)	0.5	n/a	Mark-to-market
Crude oil risk management activities (MMBbls) (4)	8.5	n/a	Mark-to-market

(1) Volume for derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflects the total amount of volumes hedged whereas volume for derivatives not designated as hedging instruments reflects the absolute value of derivative notional volumes.

(2) The maximum term for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, derivatives designated as fair value hedges and derivatives not designated as hedging instruments is January 2015, February 2014 and March 2016, respectively.

(3) Current and long-term volumes include 63.9 Bcf and 1.2 Bcf, respectively, of physical derivative instruments that are predominantly priced at a marked-based index plus a premium or minus a discount related to location differences.(4) Reflects the use of derivative instruments to manage risks associated with transportation, processing and storage assets.

At August 1, 2013, our predominant commodity hedging strategies consisted of (i) hedging anticipated future contracted sales of NGLs, crude oil, and related products associated with volumes held in inventory and (ii) hedging the fair value of natural gas and refined products in inventory. The following information summarizes these hedging strategies:

The objective of our NGL, crude oil, and related products sales hedging program is to hedge the margins of § anticipated future sales of inventory by locking in sales prices through the use of forward physical sales contracts and commodity derivative instruments.

The objective of our natural gas and refined products inventory hedging program is to hedge the fair value of natural § gas and refined products currently held in inventory by locking in the sales price of the inventory through the use of commodity derivative instruments.

At August 1, 2013, we did not have any hedges in place with respect to gross margins associated with our future natural gas processing activities. Management continues to evaluate market conditions to determine the appropriate timing, if at all, of implementing this strategy during 2013.

Certain basis swaps, basis spread options and other derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments are used to manage market risks associated with anticipated purchases and sales of natural gas and crude oil. There is some uncertainty involved in the timing of these transactions often due to the development of more favorable profit opportunities or when spreads are insufficient to cover variable costs thus reducing the likelihood 74

that the transactions will occur during the periods originally forecasted. In accordance with derivatives guidance, these instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting even though they are effective at managing the risk exposures of the underlying assets. The earnings volatility caused by fluctuations in non-cash, mark-to-market earnings cannot be predicted.

The following table shows the effect of hypothetical price movements (a sensitivity analysis) on the estimated fair value of our natural gas marketing portfolio at the dates indicated (dollars in millions):

		Portfolio Fair Value at		
		Decemberne Jul		July
Scenario	Resulting	31,	30,	16,
	Classification	2012	2013	2013
FV assuming no change in underlying commodity prices	Asset	\$7.6	\$5.3	\$3.9
	Asset			
FV assuming 10% increase in underlying commodity prices	(Liability)	3.0	(1.6)	(3.0)
FV assuming 10% decrease in underlying commodity prices	Asset	12.2	12.2	10.8

The following table shows the effect of hypothetical price movements (a sensitivity analysis) on the estimated fair value of our NGL marketing, refined products marketing and octane enhancement portfolios at the dates indicated (dollars in millions):

		Portfolio Fair Value at		
		Decemb	June	July
	Resulting	31,	30,	16,
Scenario	Classification	2012	2013	2013
FV assuming no change in underlying commodity prices	Asset (Liability)	\$10.5	\$1.7	\$(27.1)
FV assuming 10% increase in underlying commodity prices	Liability	(27.5)	(25.5)	(71.3)
FV assuming 10% decrease in underlying commodity prices	Asset	48.5	28.9	17.1

The following table shows the effect of hypothetical price movements (a sensitivity analysis) on the estimated fair value of our crude oil marketing portfolio at the dates indicated (dollars in millions):

		Portfolio Fair Value at		
		Decemb	elune	July
	Resulting	31,	30,	16,
Scenario	Classification	2012	2013	2013
FV assuming no change in underlying commodity prices	Asset (Liability)	\$(2.0)	\$6.9	\$4.8
FV assuming 10% increase in underlying commodity prices	Liability	(10.0)	(0.2)	(2.6)
FV assuming 10% decrease in underlying commodity prices	Asset	6.1	13.9	12.1

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, our management carried out an evaluation, with the participation of our general partner's chief executive officer, Michael A. Creel (our principal executive officer), and chief financial officer, W. Randall Fowler (our principal financial officer), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this evaluation, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report, Mr. Creel and Mr. Fowler concluded:

that our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized (i) and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and financial officers, as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosures; and

(ii) that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Table of Contents

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the second quarter of 2013, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

The required certifications of Mr. Creel and Mr. Fowler under Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are included as exhibits to this quarterly report (see Exhibits 31 and 32 under Part II, Item 6 of this quarterly report).

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

For information regarding litigation matters, see Note 14, "Commitments and Contingencies," of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included under Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Security holders and potential investors in our securities should carefully consider the risk factors set forth in our 2012 Form 10-K, in addition to other information in our annual report. The risk factors set forth in our 2012 Form 10-K are important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those contained in any written or oral forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

The following table summarizes our repurchase activity during the six months ended June 30, 2013:

				Maximum
			Total	Number of
			Number of	Units
			Units	That May
			Purchased	Yet
	Total	Average	as Part of	Be
	Number of	Price	Publicly	Purchased
	Units	Paid	Announced	Under the
Period	Purchased	per Unit	Plans	Plans
February 2013 (1)	315,783	\$ 55.78		
May 2013 (2)	298,408	\$60.65		

(1) Of the 939,226 restricted common units that vested in February 2013 and converted to common units, 315,783 units were sold back to us by employees to cover related withholding tax requirements.

(2) Of the 890,784 restricted common units that vested in May 2013 and converted to common units, 298,408 units were sold back to us by employees to cover related withholding tax

requirements.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

76

<u>Table of Contents</u> Item 5. Other Information.

None.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit	Exhibit*
Number	
2.1	Merger Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2003, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise Products Management LLC, GulfTerra Energy Partners, L.P. and GulfTerra Energy Company, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed December 15, 2003).
2.2	Amendment No. 1 to Merger Agreement, dated as of August 31, 2004, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise Products Management LLC, GulfTerra Energy Partners, L.P. and GulfTerra Energy Company, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed September 7, 2004).
2.3	Parent Company Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2003, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise Products GTM, LLC, El Paso Corporation, Sabine River Investors I, L.L.C., Sabine River Investors II, L.L.C., El Paso EPN Investments, L.L.C. and GulfTerra GP Holding Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Form 8-K filed December 15, 2003). Amendment No. 1 to Parent Company Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2004, by and among Enterprise
2.4	Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise Products GTM, LLC, El Paso Corporation, Sabine River Investors I, L.L.C., Sabine River Investors II, L.L.C., El Paso EPN Investments, L.L.C. and GulfTerra GP Holding Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed April 21, 2004).
2.5	Purchase and Sale Agreement (Gas Plants), dated as of December 15, 2003, by and between El Paso Corporation, El Paso Field Services Management, Inc., El Paso Transmission, L.L.C., El Paso Field Services Holding Company and Enterprise Products Operating L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 to Form 8-K filed December 15, 2003).
2.6	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 28, 2009, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise Sub B LLC, TEPPCO Partners, L.P. and Texas Eastern Products Pipeline Company, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed June 29, 2009).
2.7	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 28, 2009, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise Sub A LLC, TEPPCO Partners, L.P. and Texas Eastern Products Pipeline Company, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Form 8-K filed June 29, 2009).
2.8	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 3, 2010, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise ETE LLC, Enterprise GP Holdings L.P. and EPE Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed September 7, 2010).
2.9	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 3, 2010, by and among Enterprise Products GP, LLC, Enterprise GP Holdings L.P. and EPE Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Form 8-K filed September 7, 2010).
2.10	Contribution Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2010, by and between Enterprise Products Company and Enterprise Products Partners L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed October 1, 2010).
2.11	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 28, 2011, by and among Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise Products Holdings LLC, EPD MergerCo LLC, Duncan Energy Partners L.P. and DEP Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K filed April 29, 2011).
3.1	Certificate of Limited Partnership of Enterprise Products Partners L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Form 10-Q filed November 9, 2007).

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Limited Partnership of Enterprise Products Partners L.P., filed on

- 3.2 November 22, 2010 with the Delaware Secretary of State (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Form 8-K filed November 23, 2010).
- 3.3 Sixth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Enterprise Products Partners L.P., dated November 22, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K filed November 23, 2010). Amendment No. 1 to Sixth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Enterprise Products
- 3.4 Partners L.P., dated effective as of August 11, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed August 16, 2011).

Certificate of Formation of Enterprise Products Holdings LLC (formerly named EPE Holdings, LLC)

3.5 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Form S-1/A Registration Statement, Reg. No. 333-124320, filed by Enterprise GP Holdings L.P. on July 22, 2005).

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Formation of Enterprise Products Holdings LLC (formerly named

- 3.6 EPE Holdings, LLC), filed on November 22, 2010 with the Delaware Secretary of State (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to Form 8-K filed November 23, 2010).
- Fifth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Enterprise Products Holdings LLC dated 3.7 effective as of September 7, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed September 8, 2011).
- 3.8 Company Agreement of Enterprise Products Operating LLC dated June 30, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Form 10-Q filed August 8, 2007).
- 3.9 Certificate of Incorporation of Enterprise Products OLPGP, Inc., dated December 3, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to Form S-4 Registration Statement, Reg. No. 333-121665, filed December 27, 2004).
- 3.10 Bylaws of Enterprise Products OLPGP, Inc., dated December 8, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Form S-4 Registration Statement, Reg. No. 333-121665, filed December 27, 2004).
- 4.1 Form of Common Unit certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed August 16, 2011).

Indenture, dated as of March 15, 2000, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer, Enterprise Products

4.2 Partners L.P., as Guarantor, and First Union National Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed March 10, 2000).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 22, 2003, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Guarantor, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee

4.5 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Registration Statement on Form S-4, Reg. No. 333-102776, filed January 28, 2003).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 14, 2003, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as

- 4.4 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Guarantor, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 10-K filed March 31, 2003). Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2007, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Original
- 4.5 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as New Issuer, and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.55 to Form 10-Q filed August 8, 2007).

Indenture, dated as of October 4, 2004, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer, Enterprise Products

- 4.6 Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed October 6, 2004).Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 4, 2004, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer,
- 4.7 Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed October 6, 2004).
 Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 4, 2004, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as
- 4.8 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Form 8-K filed October 6, 2004).

Table of Contents

- Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 2, 2005, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer,
- 4.9 Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed March 3, 2005). Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 2, 2005, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer,
- 4.10Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed March 3, 2005).
- Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer, 4.11 Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed July 19, 2006).
- Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 24, 2007, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Issuer,
 4.12 Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed May 24, 2007).
 Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2007, among Enterprise Products Operating L.P., as Original
- 4.13 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as New Issuer, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.54 to Form 10-Q filed August 8, 2007).

Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 4, 2007, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as

- 4.14 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed September 5, 2007). Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 3, 2008, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as Issuer,
- 4.15 Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed April 3, 2008).
 Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 3, 2008, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as
- 4.16Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed April 3, 2008).
 Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 8, 2008, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as
- 4.17 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed December 8, 2008).

Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 10, 2009, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as 4.18 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed June 10, 2009).

Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 5, 2009, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as 4.19 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as

- Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed October 5, 2009). Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 27, 2009, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, 4.20 as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
- 4.20as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
- 4.21 Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 27, 2009, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
- Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 20, 2010, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as 4.22 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed May 20, 2010).

79

Table of Contents

- Twentieth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 13, 2011, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, as
- 4.23 Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed January 13, 2011). Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 24, 2011, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC,
- 4.24 as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed August 24, 2011).
 Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 15, 2012, among Enterprise Products Operating
- 4.25LLC, as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.25 to Form 10-Q filed May 10, 2012).
 Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 13, 2012, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC,
- 4.26 as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Parent Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed August 13, 2012).
- Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 18, 2013, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, 4.27 as Issuer, Enterprise Products Partners L.P., as Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
- Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed March 18, 2013). Form of Global Note representing \$350.0 million principal amount of 6.375% Series B Senior Notes due 2013
- 4.28 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registration Statement on Form S-4, Reg. No. 333-102776, filed January 28, 2003).
- 4.29 Form of Global Note representing \$499.2 million principal amount of 6.875% Series B Senior Notes due 2033 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Form 10-K filed March 31, 2003). Form of Global Note representing \$500.0 million principal amount of 5.60% Series B Senior Notes due 2014
- 4.30 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to Form S-3 Registration Statement, Reg. No. 333-123150, filed March 4, 2005).

Form of Global Note representing \$150.0 million principal amount of 5.60% Series B Senior Notes due 2014

4.31 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to Form S-3 Registration Statement, Reg. No. 333-123150, filed March 4, 2005).

Form of Global Note representing \$350.0 million principal amount of 6.65% Series B Senior Notes due 2034 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to Form S. 3 Pegistration Statement Peg. No.

- 4.32 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to Form S-3 Registration Statement, Reg. No. 333-123150, filed March 4, 2005).
- 4.33 Form of Global Note representing \$250.0 million principal amount of 5.00% Series B Senior Notes due 2015 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.31 to Form 10-Q filed November 4, 2005).
- 4.34 Form of Global Note representing \$250.0 million principal amount of 5.75% Series B Senior Notes due 2035 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.32 to Form 10-Q filed November 4, 2005).
- 4.35 Form of Junior Subordinated Note, including Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed July 19, 2006).
- 4.36 Form of Global Note representing \$800.0 million principal amount of 6.30% Senior Notes due 2017 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Form 10-Q filed November 9, 2007).
- 4.37 Form of Global Note representing \$400.0 million principal amount of 5.65% Senior Notes due 2013 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed April 3, 2008).
- 4.38 Form of Global Note representing \$700.0 million principal amount of 6.50% Senior Notes due 2019 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed April 3, 2008).
- 4.39 Form of Global Note representing \$500.0 million principal amount of 9.75% Senior Notes due 2014 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed December 8, 2008).

80

Table of Contents
4.40 Form of Global Note representing \$500.0 million principal amount of 4.60% Senior Notes due 2012 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed June 10, 2009).
4.41 Form of Global Note representing \$500.0 million principal amount of 5.25% Senior Notes due 2020 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed October 5, 2009).
Form of Global Note representing \$600.0 million principal amount of 6.125% Senior Notes due 2039 with 4.42 attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed October 5, 2009)
^{4.43} Form of Global Note representing \$490.5 million principal amount of 7.625% Senior Notes due 2012 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009)
4.44 Form of Global Note representing \$182.6 million principal amount of 6.125% Senior Notes due 2013 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
4.45 Form of Global Note representing \$237.6 million principal amount of 5.90% Senior Notes due 2013 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
4.46 Form of Global Note representing \$349.7 million principal amount of 6.65% Senior Notes due 2018 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
4.47 Form of Global Note representing \$399.6 million principal amount of 7.55% Senior Notes due 2038 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
4.48 Form of Global Note representing \$285.8 million principal amount of 7.000% Junior Subordinated Notes due 2067 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).
4.49 Form of Global Note representing \$400.0 million principal amount of 3.70% Senior Notes due 2015 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed May 20, 2010).
4.50 Form of Global Note representing \$1.0 billion principal amount of 5.20% Senior Notes due 2020 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed May 20, 2010).
4.51 Form of Global Note representing \$600.0 million principal amount of 6.45% Senior Notes due 2040 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed May 20, 2010).
Form of Global Note representing \$750.0 million principal amount of 3.20% Senior Notes due 2016 with
4.5 ² attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed January 13, 2011). Form of Global Note representing \$750.0 million principal amount of 5.95% Senior Notes due 2041 with
4.55 attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed January 13, 2011). Form of Global Note representing \$650.0 million principal amount of 4.05% Senior Notes due 2022 with
4.5 ⁴ attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed August 24, 2011). Form of Global Note representing \$600.0 million principal amount of 5.70% Senior Notes due 2042 with
4.5 ³ attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed August 24, 2011). 4.56 Form of Global Note representing \$750.0 million principal amount of 4.85% Senior Notes due 2042 with
4.5° attached Guarantee (included in Exhibit 4.25 above). 4.57 Form of Global Note representing \$650.0 million principal amount of 1.25% Senior Notes due 2015 with
 ^{4.57} attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed August 13, 2012). ^{4.58} Form of Global Note representing \$1.1 billion principal amount of 4.45% Senior Notes due 2043 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed August 13, 2012).
Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed August 13, 2012).

Table of Contents

- 4.59 Form of Global Note representing \$1.25 billion principal amount of 3.35% Senior Notes due 2023 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed March 18, 2013).
- 4.60 Form of Global Note representing \$1.0 billion principal amount of 4.85% Senior Notes due 2044 with attached Guarantee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed March 18, 2013).
- Replacement Capital Covenant, dated May 24, 2007, executed by Enterprise Products Operating L.P. and
 4.61 Enterprise Products Partners L.P. in favor of the covered debtholders described therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed May 24, 2007).

First Amendment to Replacement Capital Covenant dated August 25, 2006, executed by Enterprise Products

4.62 Operating L.P. in favor of the covered debtholders described therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8-K filed August 25, 2006).

Replacement Capital Covenant, dated October 27, 2009, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC and

4.63 Enterprise Products Partners L.P. in favor of the covered debtholders described therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to Form 8-K filed October 28, 2009).

Indenture, dated February 20, 2002, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Jonah Gas Gathering

- 4.64 Company, as Subsidiary Guarantors, and First Union National Bank, NA, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Form 8-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on February 20, 2002).
 First Supplemental Indenture, dated February 20, 2002, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE
- 4.65 Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Jonah Gas Gathering Company, as Subsidiary Guarantors, and First Union National Bank, NA, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Form 8-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on February 20, 2002). Second Supplemental Indenture, dated June 27, 2002, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Jonah
- 4.66 Gas Gathering Company, as Initial Subsidiary Guarantors, Val Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P., as New Subsidiary Guarantor, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, formerly known as First Union National Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Form 10-Q filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on August 14, 2002).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated January 20, 2003, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P. as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P., Jonah Gas

4.67 Gathering Company and Val Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P. as Subsidiary Guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Form 10-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on March 21, 2003).

Full Release of Guarantee, dated July 31, 2006, by Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Trustee, in favor of

4.68 Jonah Gas Gathering Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the Form 10-Q filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on November 7, 2006).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 30, 2007, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P., Val Verde

4.69 Gas Gathering Company, L.P., TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC and TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC, as Subsidiary Guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Form 8-K filed by TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC on July 6, 2007).
Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 27, 2008, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 27, 2008, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gathering

- 4.70 Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Form 10-Q filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on May 8, 2008). Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 27, 2008, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE
- ^{4.71} Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to the Form 10-Q filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on May 8, 2008).

- Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated March 27, 2008, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gas
- 4.72 Gathering Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to the Form 10-Q filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on May 8, 2008). Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated October 27, 2009, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pineling Company. LLC. TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstroom Companies, LLC and Vel Verde Case.
- 4.73 Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on October 28, 2009). Full Release of Guarantee, dated November 23, 2009, of TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P.,
- 4.74 TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P. by U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.64 to Form 10-K filed on March 1, 2010). Indenture, dated May 14, 2007, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, 4.75 Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Val Verde Gas Gathering Company,
- 4.75 Linned Fathership, TCTW, L.F., TEFFCO Midstream Companies, L.F. and Var Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Form 8-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on May 15, 2007). First Supplemental Indenture, dated May 18, 2007, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Val Verde Gas
- 4.76 Gathering Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 8-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on May 18, 2007).

Replacement of Capital Covenant, dated May 18, 2007, executed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P., TE Products , Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Val Verde Gas

- 4.77 Gathering Company, L.P. in favor of the covered debt holders described therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Form 8-K of TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on May 18, 2007). Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 30, 2007, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, Limited Partnership, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, L.P. and Val
- 4.78 Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P., as Existing Subsidiary Guarantors, TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC and TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC, as New Subsidiary Guarantors, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 8-K filed by TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC on July 6, 2007).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 27, 2009, by and among TEPPCO Partners, L.P., as Issuer, TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gas

4.79 Gathering Company, L.P., as Subsidiary Guarantors, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 8-K filed by TEPPCO Partners, L.P. on October 28, 2009).

Full Release of Guarantee, dated as of November 23, 2009, of TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC, TCTM, L.P., TEPPCO Midstream Companies, LLC and Val Verde Gas Gathering Company, L.P. by The Bank of New 4.80 M at the second seco

^{4.80} York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.70 to Form 10-K filed on March 1, 2010).

364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of June 19, 2013, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, the Lenders party thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent and Swingline Lender, Citibark, N.A., DNB, Bark, ASA, New York, Branch, JDMargan, Chasa, Bark, N.A., Minuba, Corporate Bark, Ltd.

- Citibank, N.A., DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., and The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc, as Co-Syndication Agents, and The Bank of Nova Scotia, SunTrust Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., UBS Securities LLC and Royal Bank of Canada, as Co-Documentation Agents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2013). Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2013, by Enterprise Products Partners L.P. in favor of Wells Fargo
- 10.2 Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2013).

- First Amendment dated as of June 19, 2013 to Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of September 7, 2011, among Enterprise Products Operating LLC, Canadian Enterprise Gas Products, Ltd., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent for each of the lenders that is a signatory or which becomes a signatory to the Credit Agreement, the Lenders party thereto, Citibank, N.A., DNB Bank ASA, New York Branch, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. and The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc,
- 10.3 as Co-Syndication Agents, and The Bank of Nova Scotia, SunTrust Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., UBS Securities LLC and Royal Bank of Canada, as Co-Documentation Agents, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., DNB Markets, Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., RBS Securities Inc., Scotia Capital, SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2013).
- 12.1# Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
- 31.1# Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certification of Michael A. Creel for Enterprise Products Partners L.P.'s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013.
- 31.2# Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certification of W. Randall Fowler for Enterprise Products Partners L.P.'s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013.
- 32.1# Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 certification of Michael A. Creel for Enterprise Products Partners L.P.'s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013.
- 32.2# Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 certification of W. Randall Fowler for Enterprise Products Partners L.P.'s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013.
- 101.CAL#XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
- 101.DEF# XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
- 101.INS# XBRL Instance Document
- 101.LAB#XBRL Labels Linkbase Document
- 101.PRE# XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
- 101.SCH#XBRL Schema Document

With respect to any exhibits incorporated by reference to any Exchange Act filings, the Commission file numbers for *Enterprise Products Partners L.P., Enterprise GP Holdings L.P, TEPPCO Partners, L.P. and TE Products Pipeline Company, LLC are 1-14323, 1-32610, 1-10403 and 1-13603, respectively.

#Filed with this report.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on August 8, 2013.

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS L.P. (A Delaware Limited Partnership)

By: Enterprise Products Holdings LLC, as General Partner

By: /s/ Michael J. Knesek Name: Michael J. Knesek Title: Senior Vice President, Controller and Principal Accounting Officer of the General Partner